
Notice of Meeting 
 

ASSEMBLY 
 

Monday, 25 February 2013 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking 

 
To: Members of the Council of the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 
 Chair:   Councillor N S S Gill 
 Deputy Chair:  Councillor J Davis 
 

 
Date of publication: 15 February 2013      Graham Farrant 
           Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Margaret Freeman 
Tel: 020 8227 2638 

Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: margaret.freeman@lbbd.gov.uk 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this 
meeting.  Members are reminded that the provisions of paragraph 12.3 of 
Article 1, Part B in relation to Council Tax arrears apply to the "Budget 
Framework 2013/14" report at item 6. 
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meetings held on 5 
December 2012 and 14 January 2013 (Pages 1 - 11)  

 
4. Appointments   
 
5. Barking & Dagenham Youth Forum Annual Report 2011/12 (Pages 13 - 18)  
 
6. Budget Framework 2013/14 (Pages 19 - 87)  
 
7. Localising Support for Council Tax in England - Final Scheme 

Amendment (To Follow)  
 
8. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2013/14 (Pages 89 - 136)  
 
9. Pay Policy Statement 2013/14 (Pages 137 - 148)  
 



10. Constitutional Arrangements for the Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 
149 - 162)  

 
11. Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule (Pages 163 - 

196)  
 
12. Management of Complaints relating to Councillors (Pages 197 - 201)  
 
13. Motions   
 
 None received.  

 
14. Leader's Question Time   
 
15. General Question Time   
 
16. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
17. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Assembly, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended).  There are no such items at the time of preparing this 
agenda.  

 
18. Any confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 



MINUTES OF 

ASSEMBLY 

 
Wednesday, 5 December 2012 

(7:05  - 8:42 pm) 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor N S S Gill (Chair) 
   
 

 Councillor S Alasia Councillor J L Alexander
 Councillor G Barratt Councillor S J Bremner
 Councillor P Burgon Councillor L Butt
 Councillor E Carpenter Councillor J Channer
 Councillor J Clee Councillor R Douglas
 Councillor C Geddes Councillor R Gill
 Councillor D Hunt Councillor M Hussain
 Councillor A S Jamu Councillor I S Jamu
 Councillor E Kangethe Councillor E Keller
 Councillor G Letchford Councillor D S Miles
 Councillor M Mullane Councillor E O Obasohan
 Councillor J Ogungbose Councillor T Perry
 Councillor B Poulton Councillor H S Rai
 Councillor A K Ramsay Councillor L A Reason
 Councillor C Rice Councillor D Rodwell
 Councillor T Saeed Councillor A Salam
 Councillor S Tarry Councillor G M Vincent
 Councillor L R Waker Councillor P T Waker
 Councillor J R White Councillor M M Worby 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Councillor S Ashraf Councillor A Gafoor Aziz
 Councillor R Baldwin Councillor H J Collins
 Councillor J Davis Councillor M A McCarthy
 Councillor J E McDermott Councillor M McKenzie MBE
 Councillor L Rice Councillor L A Smith
 Councillor D Twomey Councillor J Wade 
 
47. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 There were no declarations of interest 

 
48. Minutes (10 October 2012) 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 10 October 2012 were confirmed as correct. 

 
49. Appointments 
 
 Assembly agreed that the Council's representation on the Admissions Forum be 

changed from "5 Councillors – 4 year appointments" to "The Cabinet Member for 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



Children's Services plus 4 Councillors – 4 years appointments" and that as a 
consequence of this, Councillor White would replace Councillor R Gill on the 
Admissions Forum with immediate effect. 
 

50. Sutton Road CPZ - Update 
 
 Assembly noted this report presented by the Divisional Director of Environmental 

Services regarding: 
 
1. the arrangements put in place to suspend the CPZ in Sutton Road and  
2. the consultation on a CPZ for Sutton Road and the surrounding roads not 

currently in the Traffic Management Order. 
 

51. Response to Petition regarding Scrattons Sports and Social Club 
 
 Assembly received and noted the terms of a petition presented by Ms Ellis on 

behalf of Ms S Cooper, the lead petitioner. 
 
Ms Ellis thanked Assembly for their time and made the following points: 
 

• Transport to and from Scrattons Farm Estate is very poor. 

• Many residents are elderly, have limited mobility and their main social 
interaction took place in the club.  Since the club's demise, the residents 
feel more isolated. 

• Petitioners feel that the Council has ignored them and not given sufficient 
time to discuss their needs. 

• There is a good community spirit with Christmas parties and trips for senior 
citizens being arranged. 

• They are proposing to revamp the building, which would be open to all. 

• They have prepared a business plan which set out arrangements for 
charging for the use of the hall and the grounds. 

• They were seeking the insurance monies from the Council in order to 
rebuild the premises and proposed the use of their own builder. 

 
In conclusion Ms Ellis stated that the petitioners wanted to provide a modern, 
vibrant facility for everyone. 
 
Assembly received the response to the petition presented by the Corporate 
Director for Adult and Community Services (CDACS) who advised that: 
 

� Officers had been working with the residents to progress this matter. 
� A Community Association (CA) had been formed with effect from 1 

December 2012.   
� The Barking & Dagenham Council for Voluntary Services could be asked to 

provide advice to the CA with regard to Charitable Status as some 
reluctance to applying for it had been voiced by the CA, because it was 
unclear as to what it might achieve from it.   

� Officers would discuss the use of the petitioners' own builders with them 
outside this meeting. 

� The final insurance claim settlement was awaited and should there be a 
shortfall, this could be identified from other budgets. 

 

Page 2



Members were encouraged by the strength of feeling of the community and re-
assured that officers were working with the CA. 
 
In response, the Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities, Councillor 
Alexander, stated that: 
 

� the Council recognised the value of community facilities; 
� she was pleased to note the formation of the CA as at 1 December; 
� this was a fantastic outcome and a great opportunity for the community; 
� she would welcome an update on progress from the Ward Members. 

 
Assembly: 
(i) noted that the petition from local residents to save the Scratton’s Sports 

and Social Club had received a positive response, 
(ii) noted the steps that had been taken to ensure that the community would 

continue to be able to use the building for social purposes, 
(iii)  supported the option for the local community to take formal responsibility 

for the building through a lease agreement subject to funding being 
identified to meet the building costs.  

 
52. Response to Petition re exemption from CPZ for teachers of Ripple Primary 

School 
 
 Assembly received and noted the terms of a petition presented by Mr Terence 

Harding, the lead petitioner. 
 
Mr Harding thanked Assembly for their time and made the following points on 
behalf of parents of children at Ripple Primary School: 
 
� The intake of children is increasing and more staff would have to be 

employed. 
� The school staff are being penalised by having to pay to park. 
� There is sufficient parking space in Surrey Road and parking wardens have 

personally agreed with Mr Harding. 
� There are concerns regarding cars that park under Ripple flyover.  Children 

and parents have to walk in the road because cars are parked on the 
pavement. 

� More than 400 people walk back and forth, morning and afternoon. 
 
The Chair invited Mr Roger Mitchell, Head Teacher of Ripple Primary School, to 
speak. 
 
Mr Mitchell made the following points: 
 
� He became Head of Ripple Junior in 2005 and became Head of Ripple 

Primary when the Junior and Infants schools merged. 
� For the first 2/3 years that had been no difficulties with parking. 
� The CPZ in the area prevents people from parking and walking to the 

station. 
� At the time of day that staff park their cars, the streets are empty. 
� Many staff travel a long way and cannot do that without their cars. 
� The school will be expanding over the course of the next two years. 

Page 3



� There are only 38 parking spaces across the school's two sites. 
� In support of the Green Policy, the school has provided bicycles to enable 

staff to travel between the two sites. 
� The school is recognised by Ofsted as "good" with qualities of "outstanding" 

and to sustain this, he needs to be able to employ the highest calibre of 
staff. 

� He is concerned that parking restrictions will be a barrier against employing 
the best staff, which he sees as a tragedy for a school that is doing so well. 

 
Assembly received the response to the petition presented by the Divisional 
Director of Environmental Services (DDES) who stated that the CPZ in the area 
was working well and had been supported by 59% of the residents. 
 
Members were pleased to note the progress that had been made by Ripple 
School. 
 
In response to Members' questions, the DDES stated that permits were issued to 
doctors and voluntary workers to park in the borough but that permits were not 
provided to them to park at their place of work.   
In response, the Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities, Councillor 
Alexander, stated that: 
 

• She is on the Governing Board of Ripple Primary School and is also an 
Eastbury Ward Member. 

• She did not think that the residents who are having to pay for their permits 
would be happy if a parking permit was provided to the teachers. 

• If a permit were to be provided to the teachers at Ripple, a similar one 
would have to be provided to all the schools. 

• Council staff have to pay to park. 

• There are many bus routes from Barking Station. 

• Ripple Primary is a good school with a good Head Teacher and Governing 
Body – it will always attract good staff. 

 
Assembly agreed for the reasons set out in the report that it was unable to support 
the petition. 
 

53. Response to Petition - Voluntary Sector Cuts 
 
 Assembly received and noted the terms of a petition presented by Mr Ted Parker, 

Chair of the Barking & Dagenham Council for Voluntary Services, on behalf of Carl 
Blackburn, the lead petitioner. 
 
Mr Parker thanked Assembly for their time and referred to the valuable 
contributions made to the community by: 
 

• Harmony House 

• Lifeline Community Projects 

• The Volunteer Bureau 

• The Disablement Association of Barking & Dagenham 

• Shpresa 
 
He stated that the power of volunteering had been demonstrated at the London 

Page 4



2012 Olympics and that there were over 500 community organisations in the 
borough, 106 of which had been showcased at the last Voluntary Sector Open day 
held in Vicarage Fields. 
 
Speaking of the scale of the cuts, Mr Parker referred to a letter that had been 
received from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services (CDACS) 
dated 17 January 2011 which said: 
 
"...I am happy to reiterate that funding returning to the borough arising from the 
London Councils grants review will be kept within the voluntary sector grants 
programmes, so that every pound saved from London Councils is a pound we 
don't have to save through local cuts." 
 
In conclusion, Mr Parker stated that he felt the Council could balance the budget 
without making the proposed cut to the Voluntary Sector. 
 
Assembly received the response to the petition presented by the CDACS who 
stated that when she sent the letter of 17 January 2011, it was genuinely believed 
that this could be achieved and that safeguarding the voluntary sector had been 
sought.  She referred to the debate that had taken place at the Safer & Stronger 
Community Select Committee on 31 October 2012 and confirmed that Cabinet 
would be reviewing these issues on 19 December 2012. 
 
In response to questions from Members: 
 

• Mr Parker advised that £665,000 funding had been received from the Big 
Lottery. 

• Mr Blackburn confirmed that in terms of their own money the ratio was 4:1 
and that he could provide audited accounts if required. 

• The CDACS advised that she was very aware that there were no savings 
that would not impact on residents but that officers were looking at what 
would have the least effect.  However, there were no easy options and the 
budget must be balanced. 

 
In response, the Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities, Councillor 
Alexander, confirmed that she worked closely with Carl Blackburn and she valued 
the work of the Voluntary Sector.  However, these were challenging financial times 
and the cuts had been imposed on this Council by the Coalition Government. 
 
Her concerns were for the residents of the borough, but she was unable to support 
the petition. 
 
Assembly agreed that for the reasons set out in the report, it was unable to 
support the petition. 
 

54. The Council's Petition Scheme 
 
 Assembly received and noted this report presented by the Monitoring Officer and 

agreed the amended Petition Scheme as set out in Appendix B to the report. 
 

55. Joint Management 
 

Page 5



 Assembly received and noted the report regarding joint management presented by 
the Chief Executive and agreed: 
 
1. the continued shared legal services structure and the joint role of Head of 

Legal Services and Monitoring Officer between this Council and Thurrock 
Council; 

2. that officers should continue to develop options for both joint management 
and shared services between this Council and Thurrock Council to save at 
least £1m across both Councils; 

3. that officers should continue to explore options for shared services with 
other councils as is most appropriate for each service; and 

4. that the Governance Guarantee set out in Appendix 1 to the report be 
adopted for all joint management and shared services agreements. 

 
56. Adoption of Regulatory Provisions to Enforce the Unauthorised Crossing of 

Kerbed Footways and Verges 
 
 Assembly received this report introduced by the Divisional Director of 

Environmental Services (DDES). 
 
Following questions from Members, the DDES advised that: 
 

• The cost of the majority of dropped kerbs fell below £500 but where there 
are grass verges, this could be in excess of £1,000. 

• The cost should be affordable for most residents and the value of the 
property would be increased. 

• Cabinet would be presented with proposals for affordable payment 
arrangements. 

• To stop people parking across dropped kerbs, where a TMO is in place, a 
yellow line or double yellow line could be painted.  However, a double 
yellow line would also prevent the householder from parking over their own 
dropped kerb.  At the time the dropped kerb is put in, the householder could 
be asked for their preference. 

• Officers will revisit the Council's policy on dropped kerbs to ensure that it is 
a fit for purpose document. 

 
Assembly resolved that: 
 
(i) the Council adopts the powers available under Section 16 of the London 

Local Authorities and Transport for London Act 2003 in respect of the 
enforcement of unauthorised crossing by vehicles over kerbed footways or 
verges; and 

(ii) 17 March 2013 is the ‘appointed day’ on which these powers will come into 
effect. 

 
57. Treasury Management Strategy Statement Mid-year Review Report 2012/13 
 
 Assembly received and noted this report introduced by the Divisional Director of 

Finance (DDF). 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Carpenter in relation to the use of 
revenue resources to fund the capital programme, the DDF confirmed that he 

Page 6



would write to her separately on this. 
  
Assembly: 
 
(i) Noted the report, the treasury activity, the prudential indicators and risk 

study results; and 

(ii) Agreed to the following changes to the Council’s Investment Strategy, as 
detailed in section 6 of the report: 

 
1. Increase the limit on investment with Lloyds TSB from £30m to a 

maximum of 40% of the average monthly cash available to invest; and 
 
2. Set a fixed investment limit of £40m to be invested with Lloyds TSB after 

which all additional investment need to be invested in the Lloyds TSB 
call account. 

 
58. Review of the Council's Financial Regulations and Rules 
 
 Assembly received and noted this report introduced by the Divisional Director of 

Finance (DDF). 
 
Assembly: 
 
a) approved the new Financial Regulations and Rules for full adoption across 

the Council as set out in Appendix A 
b) approved the internal financial scheme of delegation as set out in Appendix 

B, 
c) authorised the Chief Financial Officer to vary the revised corporate limits 

set out in Appendix B where this is considered to improve the efficiency of 
the Council’s financial operations without unacceptably increasing risk, and    

authorised the Monitoring Officer to make the necessary amendments to the 
Council Constitution 
 

59. Motions 
 
 None. 

 
60. Leader's Question Time 
 
 None. 

 
61. General Question Time 
 
 General Question from Councillor Channer: 

 
"Does the Deputy Leader agree that as a Labour Council, providing Education 
Maintenance Allowance to our poorest students in the borough will support and 
encourage our young people to continue in further education and, if so, what can 
we do about it?" 
 
Councillor R Gill, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 

Page 7



Finance responded that: 
 

� It is scandalous that EMA has been cut and it does impact on this borough 
� The number of students has begun to increase this year and we have also 

opened the Skills Academy 
� A dedicated schools grant would be very difficult and could damage another 

core area in Children's Services 
� Some national funding is still available for the most vulnerable 
� There are free school meals 
� In Barking and Dagenham, the schools manage 16-19 support 
� We have the Colin Pont Trust Fund that could provide bursaries for anyone 

over the age of 16 in the borough considering further education and who 
needs financial help 

 
In conclusion Council R Gill confirmed that he would be happy to examine this 
issue further and discuss a scheme, which as a Labour Councillor he approved in 
principle, but that such a scheme would have to be sustainable, rather than say, 
the Tower Hamlets' scheme, which appeared to be funded by reserves. 
 
Councillor Gill advised Assembly that he would be happy to bring a paper back to 
Members for further discussion. 
 
 

 
The Chair wished everyone a merry Christmas and a happy and healthy New Year 
and declared the meeting closed at 8.42 pm. 
 

 

Page 8



MINUTES OF 

EXTRAORDINARY ASSEMBLY 

 
Monday, 14 January 2013 

(7:05  - 7:47 pm) 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor N S S Gill (Chair) 
Councillor J Davis (Deputy Chair) 

 
 Councillor S Alasia Councillor J L Alexander
 Councillor S Ashraf Councillor A Gafoor Aziz
 Councillor G Barratt Councillor S J Bremner
 Councillor P Burgon Councillor L Butt
 Councillor E Carpenter Councillor J Channer
 Councillor J Clee Councillor H J Collins
 Councillor R Douglas Councillor C Geddes
 Councillor R Gill Councillor D Hunt
 Councillor M Hussain Councillor A S Jamu
 Councillor I S Jamu Councillor E Kangethe
 Councillor G Letchford Councillor M A McCarthy
 Councillor J E McDermott Councillor M McKenzie MBE
 Councillor D S Miles Councillor M Mullane
 Councillor J Ogungbose Councillor T Perry
 Councillor B Poulton Councillor H S Rai
 Councillor A K Ramsay Councillor L A Reason
 Councillor L Rice Councillor D Rodwell
 Councillor T Saeed Councillor A Salam
 Councillor L A Smith Councillor S Tarry
 Councillor D Twomey Councillor G M Vincent
 Councillor L R Waker Councillor P T Waker
 Councillor M M Worby 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Councillor E Keller Councillor E O Obasohan
 Councillor C Rice Councillor J Wade
 Councillor J R White 
 
62. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 There were no declarations of interest 

 
63. Localising Support for Council Tax In England - Final Scheme 
 
 The Assembly received a report supported by a presentation from the Divisional 

Director of Finance setting out proposals to establish a local Council Tax support 
scheme from April 2013, a requirement of the Local Government Finance Act 
2012, brought about as a consequence of the abolition of Council tax benefit. In 
future Council Tax support will be centrally funded by a fixed grant based on 
prevailing expenditure levels, but reduced by 10% nationally, which for 2013/14 

Page 9



represents a shortfall to the Council of £2.3m. The Act also makes provision for 
local authorities to reform Council Tax on empty homes premiums allowing greater 
flexibility on the level of discounts and exemptions that can be applied, and in so 
doing allowing additional income to be raised to offset the 10% cut in funding. 
 
The presentation outlined the range of options available to the Council to establish 
a scheme to fund the shortfall, taking into account the government stipulation that 
any scheme must fully protect pensioners in terms that their Council Tax Support 
should not be reduced.  This principle did not apply to working age Council Tax 
Support recipients and a contribution could be sought from them towards their 
Council Tax liability. 
 
In debate Members raised concerns that many residents were already struggling 
financially and that the Council Tax Support change was not a policy this Labour 
Council would have chosen to implement but one which is unavoidable, brought 
about by the Coalition Government.  In concurring with Members’ concerns, 
Councillor Smith, Leader of the Council referred to the fuel buyout scheme the 
Council is promoting to assist residents with their fuel bills, which demonstrates the 
positive ways in which the Council is helping its residents in these tough economic 
times. 
 
Members debated using the government's additional grant funding for year one to 
set the percentage contribution from working age Council Tax Support recipients 
at 8.5% but concluded that this option was not viable as the grant was insufficient 
to establish an 8.5% contribution and would create a funding shortfall that would 
have to be met by making cuts elsewhere in the budget. 
 
Having considered the options available as set out in the report, and taking into 
account that the Council has already carried out an extensive consultation with 
affected residents: 
 
The Assembly resolved to:  
 
(i) implement option 2 as set out in the report, whereby a 15% contribution 

would be required from working age Council Tax Support claimants and that 
this should form the basis of the London Borough of Barking and 
Dagenham Council Tax Support Scheme from 1 April 2013, and  

 
(ii) agree the changes to empty property exemptions as set out in the report, 

similarly to take effect from 1 April 2013. 
 

64. Calculation and Setting of the Council Tax Base for 2013/14 
 
 The Assembly received a report supported by a presentation from the Divisional 

Director of Finance on the calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2013/14 and 
information on powers available to the Council to set locally determined discounts. 
 
In debating the matter, Members noted that this was the fifth year running that 
Council Tax had been frozen and how important this support was to the residents 
of the borough. 
 
The Assembly agreed that: 

Page 10



 

1. in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) 
(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by the London Borough 
of Barking & Dagenham Council as its Tax Base for the year 2013-14 shall 
be 39,955.66 Band ‘D’ properties, following approval of the Council Tax 
Support Scheme and new rules on empty properties set out in the report 
entitled ‘Localising Support for Council Tax in England – Final Scheme’ and 
presented to Assembly on 14 January 2013;  

2. discounts and exemptions applied in calculating the tax base as 
recommended in the report named above and those prescribed by statute; 

3. no locally determined discounts based on categories of property or occupier 
be awarded for 2013-14.  This is consistent with previous decisions of the 
Council; and 

4. there should be no award of reductions for prompt payment during 2013-14.  
This is consistent with previous decisions of the Council. 

 
65. Business Rates Income Forecast 2013/14 
 
 The Assembly received a report supported by a presentation from the Divisional 

Director of Finance, setting out details of the changes in the collection of business 
rates from 2013/14, brought about by the Local Government Finance Act 2012. 
 
Members noted that as a result of these changes, the Department for 
Communities and Local Government require local authorities to submit their 
business rates income forecasts by way of a return entitled the National Non-
Domestic Rates Return 1 form and that the forecast be formally approved by the 
Council. 
 
Following debate, the Assembly agreed the Council's business rates income 
forecast for 2013/14 as set out in the National Non-Domestic Rates Return 1 form 
in Appendix A to the report. 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.47 pm. 
 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Annual Report of the Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum 

 
Report of the Divisional Director, Targeted Support 

 
Open Report  For Information 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: No 

Report Author: Sally Allen-Clarke 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 3297 
E-mail: sally.allen-clarke@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Christine Pryor 
 

Accountable Director: Helen Jenner 
 

Summary:  
 
This report is a summary of the work and achievements of the Barking and Dagenham 
Youth Forum during 2012. 
 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to continue to provide member support for the Forum and 
its associated campaigns, particularly in relation to providing young people with 
information about attending 6th form in the borough and continuing to work constructively 
with Police to comment on policies and procedures that directly affect young people. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
The Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum is a borough-wide platform for young people to 
express their views and help shape services.  Members of the Barking & Dagenham 
Youth Forum are democratically elected each year through schools and youth groups to 
represent their peers.  Through their participation, young people develop youth-focussed 
campaigns based on topics most important to young people in Barking and Dagenham. 
The campaigns aim to raise awareness of the issue being tackled and to bring about 
change that will positively impact young people’s lives.  Through the fortnightly 
consultation sub-group, council officers and partner agencies have the opportunity to 
promote services, gather feedback about policies, strategies and services as well as 
gaining a youth perspective on how services can be improved and promoted to young 
people locally.  In addition, a single member of the Forum sits on the Children’s Services 
Select Committee. 
 
The Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum Young Inspectors' sub-group provides local 
services with the opportunity to have their services inspected by trained, experienced 
youth inspectors.  In 2012, the Young Inspectors sub-group successfully carried out 
inspections of nine pharmacies - offering feedback on their condom distribution scheme 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 13



aimed at young people and an inspection of Barking Police Station and the Police service 
in general.  This report was fed back directly to the Borough Commander, Andy Ewing. 
The Young Inspectors also attended the Sydenham Centre sexual health clinic, where 
they inspected the young people’s drop in clinic and fed back to the team leader who has 
compiled an action plan based on the recommendations made in the report.  This is to be 
presented to the Integrated Reproductive and Sexual Health Board. 
 
The Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum members have gained many skills through 
their participation in the forum, including communication, leadership, negotiation, 
presentation and social skills, essential life skills which young people can utilise in a 
variety of settings.  

 

 
 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 In January 2012, 65 young people were elected to the Barking and Dagenham 

Youth Forum.  The young people were elected from all secondary schools and 
Trinity School, which has two representatives and a key worker who supports the 
young people during sessions 
 

1.2 At the beginning of the forum year, all members attended two full forum sessions 
and debated current youth issues that the forum might tackle in 2012.  As a result of 
this meeting two sub-groups were chosen, ‘Student Voice’ and ‘Crime Community’. 

 
1.3 The Young Inspectors became a sub group of the forum in order to sustain the 

programme following a £30k saving on the project made in 2011-2012.  The 
transition from being an independent project within Integrated Youth Services to a 
sub-group of the Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum has been successful, aided 
by the support of two young people who progressed to Young Leader roles. 

 
1.4 Additionally, a consultation sub-group was set up to allow officers, partners and 

external organisations to consult with forum members on one-off issues.  The group 
meets fortnightly and has been very successful with 17 distinct consultations 
undertaken with young people. 

 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
Sub-groups work outline 
 
2.1 Student Voice 
 
 Work focussed on the transition from secondary school to sixth form.  Some 

members had experience of transition, whilst others were aware that with the rise in 
participation age, the decision whether to stay on in sixth form was looming.  

 
 A questionnaire was developed asking current sixth formers to identify positive 

aspects of transition together with suggestions for those approaching transition and 
information that would be useful if available online.  Four schools returned 
completed questionnaires. 

 

Page 14



 Extensive research of local, regional and national websites found a dearth of 
information about sixth form transition.  This discovery along with the questionnaire 
feedback was presented formally to Consortium Heads and Jane Hargreaves, 
Divisional Director for Education.  

 
 Consortium Heads welcomed the feedback acknowledging the lack of information, 

tips and advice available based on existing sixth formers’ experience, now identified 
as a valuable resource.  They agreed to include this on their websites in the near 
future to be reviewed by the new Forum, to be elected in 2013. 

 
2.2 Crime and Community 
  
 The sub-group focussed on local crime issues relevant to young people as well as 

the community aspect.  The group developed relationships with local police officers, 
including Inspector Mark Joyce, and was involved in a discussion regarding local 
tensions, one year on from the 2011 disturbances.  This provided the Police with a 
youth perspective of the issues and a youth perception of Police.  The group 
participated in a Stop and Search monitoring exercise.  This was the first time 
young people had been asked for their views about Stop and Search rates and 
challenged Police about methods and the statistics. 

 
 The group worked in partnership with The Challenge Network creating short films 

on youth issues that were used during the National Citizens’ Service summer 
programme.  The project was aimed at equipping young people with skills to 
develop local campaigns based on youth issues. 

 
 The group developed its own short films based on three topics chosen by young 

people: music influence; healthy eating/obesity and stereotyping young people.  
Pending clearance from our Marketing and Communications Team, the films will be 
available on the Council’s YouTube channel. 

 
2.3 Young Inspectors 
 
 Young Inspectors became a Youth Forum sub group in February 2012 in order to 

continue the valuable work of the project.  Some current Young Inspectors opted to 
continue in the group and other places were filled with newly elected members, with 
the mix working well.  Two young people progressed to be Young Leaders and 
worked in partnership with Council staff to plan, deliver and evaluate sub-group 
sessions. 

 
 They carried out 16 inspections and were externally commissioned to undertake 

four inspections for London and Quadrant Housing Association in 2013, securing 
income of £3,300 for the Council.  Inspections included Barking Police Station and 
police attitudes to young people, Sydenham Centre Sexual Health Service, Barking 
Learning Centre, the Integrated Youth Service code of conduct and behaviour 
policies, and nine local pharmacies involved in the condom distribution scheme.  
Each inspection generated a report that was submitted to the service, clearly 
outlining the young people’s findings and their recommendations for improving the 
service for young people.  Young Inspectors are formally part of the Council’s 
Traded Services booklet, and further externally commissioned inspections are being 
sought. 

 

Page 15



2.4 Consultation 
 

The following one-off consultations took place, in collaborations with council officers 
and external partners: 
 

• Streetbase: to improve understanding and how to use Streetbase to their 
advantage; 

• Department for Health: health outcomes – online; 

• Ofsted: inspection arrangements for maintained schools and services to 
protect children; 

• Seetec: re-engaging 16 and 17 year olds in employment; 

• House of Commons: survey re short films detailing the work of the House 
– online; 

• LBBD Community Cohesion Strategy; 

• LBBD Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: opportunity to express views by 
testing if recommendations meet needs of young people and capture any 
additional needs.  Feedback used in the final report; 

• Arc Theatre: workshops ‘Girls in Gangs’ and ‘Sexual Exploitation’; 

• Skills Centre; 

• LBBD School Catering: standards of school lunches; 

• Borough Transport; 

• LBBD Health and Wellbeing Strategy Equality Impact Assessment; 
 
2.5 UK Youth Parliament 
  
 In February 2012, two members were elected to represent LBBD in the UK Youth 

Parliament.  Known as Member of Youth Parliament (MYP) and Deputy Member of 
Youth Parliament (DMYP), they attended three conventions, the Annual Sitting at 
Nottingham University and a national debate in the House of Commons. 

 
2.6 Children’s Service Select Committee (CSCC) 
 

For the first time in the Forum’s history, this year saw the Chair of the BAD Youth 
Forum become a co-opted member of the CCSC.  This has helped to ensure that 
Young People’s voices are heard at the highest level.  Issues raised and discussed 
by the Chair at the CCSC have included the Council’s budget proposals.  In 
addition, the Chair gave a formal presentation on issues related to student voice 
systems in schools . This campaign resulted in £15k of funding being given to 
Children’s Services by Schools’ Forum to conduct development work with schools 
around their student voice systems to improve them. 

 
3. Options Appraisal - N/A 

 
4. Consultation - See section 2 above 
 
5. Financial Implications  
 
 Implications completed by: Martin Henwood, Deputy Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications for future years arising from this report.  It 

is highly probable that the work of the Youth Forum will have a positive financial 

Page 16



impact for the Council (and other public sector organisations) through improving the 
effectiveness of services, but this cannot be quantified robustly.   

 
6. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by: (Shahnaz Patel Senior Lawyer) 
 
6.1  No specific legal implications arise from this report.  
 
7. Other Implications 
 
7.1 Risk Management - No implications 
 
7.2 Contractual Issues - No implications  
 
7.3 Staffing Issues - No implications  
 
7.4 Customer Impact  
 
 The Council supports the BAD Youth Forum to provide a key channel for 

consultation and engagement with young people in the borough.  Services across 
the Borough are encouraged to bring relevant draft policies and strategies to the 
Forum to seek the views of young people, so that service design is informed by 
their feedback. 

 
The Student Voice sub-group has created a comprehensive list of 
recommendations for both the Southern and North East Consortium websites in 
order to improve the information for students considering sixth form.  The Forum 
would like both Consortia to seriously consider the recommendations made and 
include the ‘tips and advice’ section on both websites to ensure other young people 
have access to information that informs them about the experience of being a 6th 
former as opposed to just course information. 
 
Through the commissioned inspection with London and Quadrant (L&Q) Housing 
Association, five Young Inspectors will be training ten L&Q residents to carry out 
inspections.  As a result of this process young people will be able to assess 
services, have a greater influence on some of the future policies and procedures of 
the Housing Association and develop links with the Housing Association which will 
prove useful whilst a resident and a potential tenancy holder in the future. 
 
The various inspections carried out by the Young Inspectors' group have had an 
impact on each of the services which have been inspected.  The pharmacies have 
been able to identify training needs for staff, based on the young people’s 
experience and comprehensive feedback including recommendations.  The 
Sydenham Centre staff team are currently devising a plan to address the issues 
raised in the Young Inspectors’ report and will be formally responding to the report 
young people completed as well as feeding back to the group the service changes 
that have been made.  This feedback will also be presented to the Integrated 
Reproductive and Sexual Health Board meeting in the near future.  
 
The Integrated Youth Service (IYS) policy inspection has helped to shape the policy 
to ensure it is young people friendly, including the language used in the policy. This 

Page 17



has now been distributed to service users of the IYS centres and has proved to be 
successful in monitoring behaviour.  The Police inspection report has been 
submitted to the Borough Commander who has taken responsibility for ensuring the 
recommendations are distributed appropriately to colleagues to ensure the 
recommendations are considered and implemented where possible.  The Borough 
Commander has expressed an interest in working with Young Inspectors in the 
future with regards to other services that impact on young people locally.  
 
The addition of £15k in funding from Schools’ Forum, given as a direct result of a 
campaign led by the BAD Youth Forum, will see improvements made to school 
councils and student voice systems across the borough’s schools. 

 
7.5 Safeguarding Children  
 
 The Young Inspectors’ work in improving sexual health services for young people 

has impacted on young people’s ability to access safe, impartial and 
comprehensive advice on issues relating to sexual health.  In addition, the 
Inspectors’ forthcoming inspection of L&Q Housing will focus on aspects of safety 
and safeguarding. 

 
Arc Theatre’s Girls in Gangs project saw the Forum gain a greater understanding 
and awareness of the issues around sexual exploitation and what they can do, as 
ambassadors for local young people, to tackle the issue.  The Forum also worked 
closely with Skittlz (our Children in Care Council) and the Progress Project 
(Disabled Children’s Parliament), which raised safeguarding issues faced by these 
groups of vulnerable young people. 

 
7.6 Health Issues - N/A 
 
7.7 Crime and Disorder Issues  
 

The Barking and Dagenham Youth Forum have developed a very positive 
relationship with the Police and have agreed to participate in the Stop and Search 
Monitoring Group.  The role of the young people will be to review and monitor stop 
and search statistics including age, gender and ethnic background of all stop and 
searches that take place in the borough.  This process enables young people to 
challenge Police about any discrepancies they identify with the process.  Equally 
young people are able to see an accurate account of the number of people stopped 
and the outcome of each stop and search.  This will help young people to 
understand the process and reasons behind stop and search and continually 
monitor in the future if the process is justified and appropriate. 

 
7.8 Property / Asset Issues -  No implications 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: None 
 
List of appendices: None 

Page 18



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Budget Framework 2013/14 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Open Report For Decision 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  
Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director – Finance 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8874 8427 
E-mail: jonathan.bunt@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Accountable Divisional Director:  Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director – Finance 
 

Accountable Director:  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
This report sets out the: 
 

• Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2013/14 to 2014/15; 
• Proposed General Fund budget for 2013/14; 
• Proposed level of Council Tax for 2013/14; 
• Financial outlook for 2014/15 onwards; 
• Four year draft capital investment programme. 

 
The General Fund net budget for 2012/13 is £177.4m and the proposed net budget for 
2013/14 is £178.1m.  The budget for 2013/14 incorporates changes in government grants, 
decisions previously approved by Members in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
savings approved by Cabinet Members on 19 December 2012 and other financial 
adjustments. 
 
Council Tax for 2013/14 is proposed to remain at the current level (£1,016.40 for a Band D 
property).  This would be the fifth consecutive year that Council Tax will have been frozen. 
 
The proposed draft capital programme is £315m for 2013/14 to 2015/16, including £203m 
for proposed HRA schemes.  Details of the schemes included in the draft capital 
programme are at Appendix E. 
 
The Greater London Authority is reducing their precept by 1.2% for a Band D property, 
reducing the charge from £306.72 in 2012/13 to £303.00 in 2013/14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 19



Recommendation(s) 
 
Assembly is recommended to agree: 
 
(i) A base revenue budget for 2013/14 of £178.1m as detailed in Appendix A; 

 
(ii) The adjusted Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) position for 2013/14 to 

2014/15 allowing for other known pressures and risks at this time as detailed in 
Appendix B; 
 

(iii) Note the Chief Finance Officer's recommendation to increase the minimum level of 
balances to £15m and reduce the base budget contingency held. 

 
(iv) The Statutory Budget Determination for 2013/14 at Appendix C, which reflects a 

freeze on the amount of Council Tax levied by the Council, plus the final Council 
Tax announced by the Greater London Assembly on 25 February 2013 (1.2% 
reduction), as detailed in Appendix D; 

 
(v) The Council’s draft four year capital programme as detailed in Appendix E. 
 

 
Reason(s) 
 
The setting of a robust and balanced budget for 2013/14 will enable the Council to provide 
and deliver required services within its overall business and financial planning framework, 
and to meet its policy priority of ‘A Well Run Organisation.’   
 

 
 
 
1.0 Introduction and Background  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek agreement to the revenue budget for 2013/14 

of £178.1m (£177.4m in 2012/13).  
 

1.2 The report also sets out the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2013/14 to 
2014/15 and the Council Tax level for 2013/14. 
 

1.3 As part of the budget setting process consideration has been given to the priorities 
set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan and how best these can be achieved with 
the recourses available.  The Council’s latest Corporate Plan will be presented for 
approval in March. 

 
 
2.0 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

 
2.1 The Budget Strategy 2013/14 report presented to Cabinet on 19 December 2012 

showed the MTFS was forecasting a surplus of £719k for 2013/14.   
 

2.2 Table 1 below shows how the MTFS changed from its position reported to 
Assembly in February 2012 to the position reported to Cabinet in December 2012. 
 
 

Page 20



Table 1 – MTFS Changes from February 2012 to December 2012 

Medium Term Financial Strategy Pressures and 
Adjustments 

2013/14 
£’000 

2014/15 
£’000 

MTFS Pressures – February 2012 Assembly 19,330 16,050 

MTFS Savings – February 2012 Assembly (10,950) (739) 

MTFS Budget Gap – February Assembly 2012 8,380 15,311 

Service pressures and adjustments since February  (2,566) (2,300) 

Additional savings before Select Committees (7,085) (7,140) 

Net Budget Gap / (surplus) – November 2012  (1,271) 5,871 

Savings withdrawn/deferred/amended 552 80 

Net Budget Gap / (Surplus) – December 2012 (719) 5,951 

 
 

2.3 Since December’s Cabinet meeting the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (CLG) announced the final 2013/14 finance settlement for local 
authorities on the 4 February 2013.  Prior to this announcement the MTFS had 
made assumptions regarding the funding the Council would receive based on 
indicative indications from CLG and advice from other external bodies.  The impact 
of the finance settlement on the MTFS is shown in the table below. 
 

 
Table 2 – Changes to the MTFS following the 2013/14 finance settlement 

Medium Term Financial Strategy Pressures and 
Adjustments 

2013/14 
£’000 

2014/15 
£’000 

Net Budget Gap / (Surplus) – December 2012 (719) 5,951 

Changes in Funding (Paragraph 2.6) (6,975) 3,183 

Reduction in Corporate Contingency (paragraph 2.7) - (2,000) 

Pressures in Children’s Services (paragraph 2.8) 1,700 - 

Transfer of Council Tax and NNDR surplus to reserves 
(paragraph 2.9) 

860 (450) 

Reduced Expenditure Due to Ceasing of the Housing 
Fraud Grant (Paragraph 2.10) 

(100) - 

In Year Net Budget Gap / (Surplus) (5,234) 6,684 

Roll-forward of Previous Year’s Surplus - (5,234) 

Total  Net Budget Gap / (Surplus) (5,234) 1,450 

 
2.4 The 2013/14 finance settlement provided the Council with higher than expected 

funding in 2013/14, resulting in a forecast £5.2m surplus.  However, the funding for 
2014/15 was worse than expected and including the 2013/14 surplus a budget gap 
of £1.5m exists. 
 

2.5 Based on the 2012/13 underspend reported to Cabinet, the Council will create a 
cash fund to balance the budget over the two years 2013/14 – 2014/15.  Although 
the 2014/15 budget gap is £1.5m a cash fund of up to £2.0m could be created from 
the underspend. 

 
2.6 The difference between the funding assumptions made in the MTFS before and 

after the announcement of the settlement is shown in the table below. 
 

Page 21



Table 3 –Changes in funding built into the MTFS before and after the announcement 
of the finance settlement, and the resulting difference 

 
2013/14 2014/15 

Funding Source 
Before 
£000's 

After 
£000's 

Diff 
£000's 

Before 
£000's 

After 
£000's 

Diff  
£000's 

Formula & Specific Grant 6,685 6,657 (28) 8,000 11,807 3,807 

Council Tax Freeze Grant  (400) (545) (145) - - - 

Weekly Collection Grant  (281) (417) (136) - - - 

New Homes Bonus Grant (500) (1,423) (923) (500) (1,328) (828) 

Council Tax Surplus - (450) (450) - 450 450 

Council Tax Precept - (183) (183) - (246) (246) 

NNDR Surplus - (410) (410) - - - 

Education Services Grant - (4,700) (4,700) - - - 

Change in Funding 
  

(6,975) 
  

3,183 

 
2.7 By applying £1.0m of unused contingency from 2012/13 and reducing the 2014/15 

contingency originally in the MTFS by £1.0m, an overall reduction in contingency of 
£2.0m can be achieved. 
 

2.8 To meet the demands of an increasing young population in the Borough additional 
funding has been allocated to Children’s Services [£1.7m]. 
 

2.9 The future Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) income due to 
the authority in the proposed budget is based on estimated collection rates.  Due to 
the uncertainties around the localisation of Council Tax benefit and NNDR, and to 
mitigate the risk of actual income becoming lower than estimated, a reserve is being 
created from the assumed Council Tax and NNDR surpluses [£860k]. 
 

2.10 In addition to the wider funding changes released on 4th February, the government 
announced that the housing fraud grant would cease from 2013/14.  As a result the 
expenditure funded by the grant has been removed and the reduction in income is 
included as a funding change [(£100k)]. 

 
2.11 Following the 2013/14 finance settlement the Council’s net budget requirement is 

£178.1m.  The table below shows how this is funded and details the changes in 
funding from 2012/13 to 2014/15. 

 
Table 4 - Sources of funding 2012/13 to 2014/15 

Funding Source 
2012/13 
£000's 

2013/14 
£000's 

2014/15 
£000's 

Formula & Specific Grant 119,268 112,612 100,805 

Council Tax Freeze Grants  2,655 1,885 1,885 

Weekly Collection Grant (Refuse) - 417 417 

New Homes Bonus Grant 1,469 2,892 4,220 

Education Services Grant - 4,700 4,700 

Government Funding 123,392 122,506 112,027 

Council Tax Surplus 399 450 - 

Council Tax Precept 53,588 40,610 40,856 

Council Tax Support Grant - 14,136 14,136 

Page 22



NNDR Surplus - 410 410 

Local Funding 53,987 55,606 55,402 

    
Total  Funding 177,379 178,112 167,429 

 
2.12 Table 4 shows that government funding will reduce by 0.7% (£0.9m) in 2013/14 

then by a further 8.6% (£10.5m) in 2014/15.  In addition the Council Tax Support 
(CTS) grant has been excluded from the government’s calculations of local authority 
funding.  This change creates another £1.8m pressure to the Council each year, 
and this is being managed through the CTS scheme approved by Assembly on 14 
January 2013. 
 

2.13 The government will announce the final Education Services Grant allocations in 
March 2013, which could change the funding position.  On the basis of the 
information released to the Council by the Department for Education, the grant and 
associated expenditure has been incorporated into the budget for 2013/14 and 
2014/15.  Once the final terms and conditions of the grant are announced, the 
application of the funds and their implication s on the Council's budget may have to 
be reviewed. 
 

2.14 An important consideration in the MTFS is the level of balances and contingency to 
be held.  This is determined by the financial risks the Council faces.  Previously this 
has been set at £10m balances and £2m contingency.  The level of financial risk 
faced by the Council has increased significantly in the last 12 months from a 
number of sources:  
 

• The new funding system for local government transferring financial 
risk from central to local government, especially through CTS and 
NNDR; 

• Welfare reforms leading to direct pressures on key Housing budget, 
and potentially also to Children’s and Adults budgets; 

• Continued poor economic performance impacting on the Council’s 
income streams; and 

• Demographic changes, especially in the demand for school places. 
 

2.15 In view of this increased risk, the minimum level of balances is recommended to 
increase to £15m.  In return for maintaining a higher minimum level of balances, the 
Council can operate on a lower contingency within the base budget therefore 
releasing recurring savings. 

 
 

3.0 General Fund Revenue Budget 2013/14 
 

3.1 The proposed budget for 2013/14 has been set starting with the original 2012/13 
budget approved by Assembly in February 2012.  This was then adjusted for items 
detailed in the approved MTFS and other adjustments made in accordance with 
financial regulations during 2012/13. 
 

3.2 The Chief Finance Officer has advised that in order to ensure the Council’s financial 
base is not eroded that Council Tax levels should increase.  However, a political 
decision has been taken to keep Council Tax frozen for a further year. 
 

Page 23



3.3 Proposed Directorate budgets are provided in Appendix A and the Statutory Budget 
Determination for 2012/13 is set out in Appendix C of this report. 
 

3.4 In order to address the funding reductions as well as other service pressures 
outlined in the MTFS, Cabinet in December 2012 approved savings of £16.6m in 
respect of 2013/14.  An analysis of savings by Directorate has been provided in 
Appendix B of the Budget Strategy Report (December 2012).  An equalities impact 
assessment of savings options has also been completed based on separate 
assessments for each saving and can be found at Appendix D of the same report. 
 

3.5 The proposed net budget requirement for 2013/14 is £178.1m and the details of 
how this is funded are set out in Table 4 of this report. 
 

3.6 Details of the levies (Environment Agency, East London Waste Authority, Lee 
Valley Park, London Pension Fund Authority) the Council is required to pay in 
2013/14 have yet to be confirmed.  The budget includes an increased provision for 
the cost of levies of £700k from 2012/13 which, based on current information 
provided by the levying authorities, is expected to be sufficient.  As highlighted in 
section 2, allocations of the Education Services Grant paid by the Department for 
Education are to be confirmed in March 2013. 
 

4.0 Council Tax Requirement 
 

4.1 The Council proposes to freeze its Council Tax for 2013/14 (£1,016.40 for a Band D 
property).  This will be the fifth consecutive year the Council has set a budget 
without increasing Council Tax.  

 
4.2 The Mayor of London has set a 1.2% reduction in the Greater London Authority 

precept for 2013/14.  The precept will be reduced from the 2012/13 amount of 
£306.72 to £303.00 (Band D property).  This reduction was presented to the London 
Assembly on 25 February 2013. 
 

4.3 Councils who opt to freeze their Council Tax will receive a grant from the 
government in 2013/14 and 2014/15.  Barking and Dagenham will receive additional 
funding of £545k and this has been factored into the MTFS. 
 

4.4 The calculation of the proposed Council Tax for 2013/14 is shown in Appendix D. 
 

4.5 Under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 Council Tax must be set before 11 

March of the preceding year. 
 

5.0 Financial Outlook 
 

5.1 The Chancellor’s Autumn Statement made on 5 December 2012 showed the 
economy was not recovering as quickly as forecast.  The gross domestic product 
(GDP), a key indicator of growth, is now expected to be lower in every year of the 
forecast.  Consequently the government now expects to start reducing debt a year 
later in 2016/17. 
 

5.2 The Autumn Statement also confirmed that total government spending in 2015/16 
and 2016/17 will continue to change at the same rate as the Spending Review 2010 
(SR10) period.  Detailed spending plans, including the breakdown between 

Page 24



departments, will be set out in the first half of 2013, although it was confirmed that 
the protection of the health, schools and overseas aid budgets will continue. 
 

5.3 In addition to these changes there will be a one off impact to 2015/16 of £1.9m 
when the Council Tax Freeze grants end. 
 

5.4 In light of this information and modelling undertaken by the Local Government 
Association, the Council has built further funding reductions into the MTFS from 
2015/16.  The forecast reductions are shown in the table below. 
 

Table 5 – Forecast reductions in government funding over the next 5 years 

 2015/16 
£000's 

2016/17 
£000's 

2017/18 
£000's 

2018/19 
£000's 

2019/20 
£000's 

Reduction in Funding 7,775 4,652 4,008 3,840 3,682 

 
5.5 As details of the next spending review are yet to be announced there is uncertainty 

about the level of funding reductions that will occur from 2015/16.  The table below 
models different reduction scenarios to provide an indication of the possible 
outcomes. 
 

Table 6 – Indicative cuts to central funding from 2015/16 to 2019/20 

% of Reduction 4% 5% 6% 7% 8% 

 Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually 

  £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 

2015/16 4,030 5,037 6,045 7,052 8,059 

2016/17 3,868 4,785 5,682 6,558 7,415 

2017/18 3,714 4,546 5,341 6,099 6,821 

2018/19 3,565 4,319 5,020 5,672 6,276 

2019/20 3,423 4,103 4,719 5,275 5,774 

Total 18,600 22,790 26,807 30,656 34,345 

 
6.0 Draft Capital Programme 

 
6.1 The Council is required to review its capital spending plans each year and set a 

capital programme.  A key consideration when setting the programme is the 
projected level of available capital resources and the affordability of the overall 
programme.  
 

6.2 The level of existing internal resources has been reviewed during the year and 
existing and expected General Fund capital receipts have been allocated to reduce 
the borrowing requirement of the approved programme, rather than being made 
available to fund new schemes.  The reason for this is to reduce the impact of debt 
charges on the Council’s revenue budget. Officers continue to review the level of 
existing planned borrowing and identify further reductions that can be made.  
 

6.3 New schemes that have identified external funding (e.g. government grants) are 
added to the capital programme during the year and are appraised internally as and 
when the development arises (see paragraph 6.7).  Further borrowing will only be 
possible for new schemes where the expenditure is essential for statutory and/or 
health and safety reasons to enhance assets that are in need of urgent 

Page 25



maintenance or where the completed project generates an income stream that will 
enable the financing of the incurred debt.  Directorates are required to find savings 
in their existing approved programmes to fund new schemes, where possible, in 
order to limit the level of borrowing.     
 

6.4 To meet the statutory demand for school places, the Council will continue to lobby 
for additional funds from central Government.  Through successful lobbying to date 
by Members and officers, the Council has been awarded an additional £29.8m of 
Basic Needs funding in 2012/13 in respect of school places.  This forms part of an 
overall allocation from government of £89.8m since 2011/12 and will be invested 
over the next four years.  An announcement on new Basic Needs funding from the 
government is expected in February and indications are that a further £35m will be 
allocated to the Council, but this is not yet confirmed.  
 

6.5 Current capital programme 
 The current capital programme for the Council is £110.9m for 2012/13, and a further 

£315.021m for 2013/16.  This is summarised in the table below.  .   
  
Table 7 – Draft capital programme 2012/13 to 2015/16 

Capital Expenditure 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

£000’s Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

General Fund 97,178  67,587   74,579   32,017   5,475  

HRA * 30,968  43,350   83,240   74,090   45,620  

HRA settlement 265,912  -   -   -   -  

Approved Capital Prog 394,058 110,937 157,819 106,107 51,095 

Financed by:       

Capital Receipts  -  6,037  12,429   5,700   1,920  

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

79,728 54,161  96,990   33,557   7,225  

Revenue contributions 1,440 607  -   -   -  

Capital Reserves  -  1,195  -   -   -  

HRA Resources 7,638 33,850  42,260   45,250   41,950  

Net financing need for 
the year 

305,252 15,087  6,140   21,600   -  

*HRA programme is based on the HRA business plan as at Jan 2013 
 

6.6 The capital programme is supported by the Capital Delivery Team (Assets and 
Commercial Services) and is monitored by the Finance Capital Team.  The current 
programme is funded by £54.1m grants and contributions, £33.9m in HRA 
resources, £7.8m General Fund sources (i.e. capital receipts, revenue contributions 
and reserves) with the remaining £15.1m funding requirement to be met from 
borrowing.  It is currently anticipated that the capital programme will underspend in 
the region of £11m this year due to slippage.  Requests for carry forwards of 
funding will be submitted to June Cabinet for approval. 
 

6.7 The full list of approved schemes is included at Appendix E.  Future capital scheme 
proposals will be considered as and when new funding streams are identified, or 
where there are major Council developments which will require capital investment to 
meet strategic objectives.  Essential remedial works for health and safety/statutory 

Page 26



reasons will be met, however it is planned that further borrowing will be kept to an 
absolute minimum. 
 

6.8 A draft capital programme is presented for approval as amendments will be required 
before 2013/14 when further information becomes available.  The amendments will 
be carried out in accordance with financial regulations. 
 

6.9 Capital appraisal and monitoring system 
 The Council has in place a Capital Programme Monitoring system to ensure that 

capital projects are appraised and scored in terms of: 
 

• Strategic fit and business justifications; 

• Options analysis and achievability; 

• Management and delivery structure; 

• Risk analysis; 

• Financial implications. 
 

6.10 The Capital Programme Monitoring process is Office of Government Commerce 
(OGC) Gateway compliant and supports the effective delivery of the Council’s 
capital programme.  The OGC is the recognised industry standard for procurement 
purposes.  
 

7.0 Consultation 
 
Implications provided by Paul Bates: Group Manager Marketing and 
Communication: 020 8227 3362; paul.bates@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

7.1 The details of the consultation are included in Appendix F – 2013/14 Budget 
Consultation – Summary of Submissions and Responses 
 

8.0 Financial Implication 
 

8.1 Financial Implications have been covered throughout the report. 
 

9.0 Legal Implications 
 
Implications completed by Paul Feild, Corporate Governance Lawyer 
 

9.1 A local authority is required under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to 
produce a ‘balanced budget’.  The current budget setting takes place in the context 
of significant and widely known reductions in public funding to local authorities. 
Where there are reductions or changes in service provision as a result of changes 
in the financial position the local authority is free to vary its policy and consequent 
service provision but at the same time must have regard to public law 
considerations in making any decision lawfully as any decision eventually taken is 
also subject to judicial review.  Members would also wish in any event to ensure 
adherence as part of good governance.  Specific legal advice may be required on 
the detailed implementation of agreed savings options. Relevant legal 
considerations are identified below: 
 

9.2 Whenever there are proposals for the closure or discontinuance of a service or 
services, there will be a need for appropriate consultation, so if savings proposals t 

Page 27



will affect staff then it will require consultation with Unions and staff.  In addition to 
that Members will need to be satisfied that Equality Impact Assessments have been 
carried out before the proposals are decided by Cabinet.  
 

9.3 If at any point resort to constricting expenditure is required, it is important that due 
regard is given to statutory duties and responsibilities. In particular the Council must 
have regard to: 

 
• any existing contractual obligations covering current service provision.  Such 

contractual obligations where they exist must be fulfilled or varied with 
agreement of current providers; 

 
• any legitimate expectations that persons already receiving a service (due to be 

cut) may have to either continue to receive the service or to be consulted 
directly before the service is withdrawn; 

 
• any rights which statute may have conferred on individuals and as a result of 

which the council may be bound to continue its provision.  This could be where 
an assessment has been carried out for example for special educational needs 
statement of special educational needs in the education context); 

 
• the impact on different groups affected by any changes to service provision as 

informed by relevant equality impact assessments; 
 

• having due regard to any consultation undertaken. 
 

9.4 In relation to the impact on different groups, it should be noted that the Equality Act 
2010 provides that a public authority must in the exercise of its functions have due 
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and to advance equality of opportunity 
between persons who do and those who do not share a relevant ‘protected 
characteristic’.  This means an assessment needs to be carried out of the impact 
and a decision taken in the light of such information.  

 
10.0 Other Implications 

 
10.1 Risk Management – This report concerns financial risks carried by the Council. 

The report sets out how the Council will manage and minimise these financial risks. 
 
10.2 Contractual Issues – There are no contractual risks directly linked to this report 

however the impact of the savings approved as part of this budget report may have 
an impact on individual contracts. 
 

10.3 Staffing Implications – Discussions with the Trade Unions on the specific impact 
of the savings proposals for 2013/14 began in mid-October, although budgets are 
discussed at each formal meeting with them.  For each individual savings proposal, 
where there is an impact on staff, consultation has taken place with the staff 
affected.  Appropriate HR policies and procedures around implementing change will 
be followed.  The Council remains committed to minimising compulsory 
redundancies where possible.  We have issued HR1 and S188 letters to advise of 
the potential of a significant number of redundancies. 

 
10.4 Where there are reductions in posts, this frequently means that smaller numbers of 

staff are required to carry out the same volume of work.  The process of 

Page 28



implementation of the savings will need to be handled with care to mitigate risks in 
relation to this. 

 
10.5 Customer Impact – The freezing of Council Tax at 2010/11 levels is designed to 

minimise the financial impact on residents.  The saving options have been subject 
to an assessment of equalities and diversity implications and consideration given to 
the extent of adverse impact on customers.  Extensive consultation has also taken 
place.  Front line services have been protected as far as possible, but some cuts to 
front line services have been unavoidable.  

 
10.6 Crime and Disorder Issues – The Crime and Disorder Act places a duty on the 

Council as a responsible authority to have regard to the reduction and prevention of 
crime and disorder in its decision making process and policy development and 
delivery.  As such in terms of financial constraints it is important to have regard to 
the impact of budget reductions in terms of crime and disorder. 

 
10.7 Property / Asset Issues – Some of the savings proposals have indirect property/ 

asset implications with regards building closures resulting from service reviews, 
which will reduce the Council’s property estate.  The implications of these will be 
dealt with on a property-by-property basis in line with the Council’s disposal rules. 
Additionally the continued reduction in posts across various areas of the Council 
may result in increased health and safety management risks within the borough. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
Assembly Budget Framework 2012/13 report – February 2012 
Cabinet Budget Strategy 2013/14 report – December 2012 
 
List of appendices: 
Appendix A – Revenue Budget 2013/14 
Appendix B – MTFS 2013/14 to 2014/15 
Appendix C – The Statutory Budget Determination 
Appendix D – Calculation of the Council Tax Requirement 
Appendix E – The Council’s Draft 4 year Capital Programme 
Appendix F – 2013/14 Budget Consultation – Summary of Submissions and Responses 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 G
ro

s
s
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

C
o

s
ts

D
e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
 

In
c
o

m
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

7
6
,2
2
4

6
,9
4
9

3
,1
4
3

(8
6
2
)

(2
8
,2
2
5
)

5
7
,2

2
9

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

6
4
,1
0
2

7
,7
3
5

1
4
,3
5
5

(1
,6
0
1
)

(1
6
,6
6
4
)

6
7
,9

2
7

H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

3
1
,3
4
2

1
0
,7
2
8

9
,2
6
3

(6
,7
3
2
)

(2
2
,0
0
8
)

2
2
,5

9
3

F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

1
7
5
,9
2
2

1
0
,0
5
6

9
7
0

(2
2
,0
9
5
)

(1
4
4
,9
0
4
)

1
9
,9

4
9

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

6
,4
1
5

1
,6
8
2

8
(8
,1
2
6
)

(1
6
6
)

(1
8
7
)

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 &
 L
e
v
ie
s

1
4
,9
0
1

-
-

-
-

1
4
,9

0
1

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
in
a
n
c
e

2
4
,3
3
5

-
(2
7
,7
3
9
)

-
(8
9
6
)

(4
,3

0
0
)

D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 G
ra
n
t

2
1
3
,3
6
0

2
,2
6
6

-
-

(2
1
5
,6
2
6
)

-

T
O

T
A

L
6
0
6
,6

0
1

3
9
,4

1
6

-
(3

9
,4

1
6
)

(4
2
8
,4

8
9
)

1
7
8
,1

1
2

 APPENDIX A 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 D

e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 G
ro

s
s
 a

n
d

 N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

 I
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

T
o
ta
l

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

B
U
D
G
E
T
 I
N
C
R
E
A
S
E
S

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
/I
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 O
f 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 C
lim

a
te

5
,5
3
0

2
,4
5
0

7
,9
8
0

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 O
f 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s

7
5
0

7
5
0

1
,5
0
0

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 O
f 
F
u
tu
re
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

(1
3
9
)

5
0
0

3
6
1

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 T
o
 E
n
s
u
re
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
Is
 R
o
b
u
s
t

5
,9
8
7

5
0

6
,0
3
7

T
o
ta
l 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
C
o
s
ts
 (
A
)

1
2
,1
2
8

3
,7
5
0

1
5
,8
7
8

C
H
A
N
G
E
S
 I
N
 I
N
C
O
M
E
 &
 F
U
N
D
IN
G

F
o
rm

u
la
 G
ra
n
t

(2
,6
0
2
)

(1
1
,2
8
2
)

(1
3
,8
8
4
)

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 G
ra
n
ts

(4
,0
5
5
)

(5
2
5
)

(4
,5
8
0
)

N
H
S
 G
ra
n
ts

-
-

-

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 F
re
e
z
e
 G
ra
n
t 
2
0
1
2
/1
3

(1
,3
1
5
)

-
(1
,3
1
5
)

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 F
re
e
z
e
 G
ra
n
t 
2
0
1
3
/1
4

5
4
5

-
5
4
5

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x

2
6
0

2
4
6

5
0
6

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

5
0
0

-
5
0
0

W
e
e
k
ly
 C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
t 

4
1
7

-
4
1
7

N
e
w
 H
o
m
e
s
 B
o
n
u
s
 G
ra
n
t

1
,4
2
3

1
,3
2
8

2
,7
5
1

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
a
s
e

-
-

-

C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 s
u
rp
lu
s
/d
e
fi
c
it

4
5
0

(4
5
0
)

-

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
 s
u
rp
lu
s
/d
e
fi
c
it

4
1
0

-
4
1
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 G
ra
n
t

4
,7
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 (
B
)

7
3
3

(1
0
,6
8
3
)

(9
,9
5
0
)

B
U
D
G
E
T
 G
A
P
 (
A
 l
e
s
s
 B
)

1
1
,3
9
5

1
4
,4
3
3

2
5
,8
2
8

S
A
V
IN
G
S

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
a
v
in
g
s

1
1
,6
2
9

7
,7
4
9

1
9
,3
7
8

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
a
v
in
g
s
 &
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

5
,0
0
0

-
5
,0
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
S
a
v
in
g
s

1
6
,6
2
9

7
,7
4
9

2
4
,3
7
8

B
U
D
G
E
T
 G
A
P
 I
N
C
L
U
D
IN
G
 S
A
V
IN
G
S

(5
,2
3
4
)

6
,6
8
4

1
,4
5
0

APPENDIX B

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 -
 2

0
1

4
/1

5

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 

 

STATUTORY BUDGET DETERMINATIONS 

SETTING THE AMOUNT OF COUNCIL TAX FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF 

BARKING AND DAGENHAM 

 
1.  At its meeting on 14 January 2013 the Council approved the Council Tax Base 

2012/2013 calculation for the whole Council area as 39,955.66 [Item T in the 
formula in Section 31B (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as 
amended (“the Act”)] 

 
2. The following amounts have been calculated by the Council for the year 2013/14 

in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:- 
 

(a) £606,601,000 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the 
Act. 

(b) £565,990,067 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the 
Act. 

(c) £40,610,933  

being the amount by which the aggregate at 2(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 2(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as 
its Council Tax requirement for the year (i.e. Item R in the 
formula in Section 31A(4) of the Act). 

(d) £1,016.40 

being the amount at 2(c) above (i.e. “Item R), divided by 
Item T (shown at 1 above), calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for the year. Refer below for 
further detail. 

 
 
Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H 
£677.60 £790.53 £903.47 £1,016.40 £1,242.27 £1,468.13 £1,694.00 £2,032.80 

 
 being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 2(d) above by the number 

which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(2) of the Act, is applicable to 
dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that 
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation Band 'D' calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different 
valuation bands. 

 
3.  That it be noted that for the year 2013/14 the Greater London Authority has 

indicated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance 

Page 35



APPENDIX C 

 

with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each of the 
categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 
 
Precepting Authority: Greater London Authority 
 
Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H 
£202.00 £235.67 £269.33 £303.00 £370.33 £437.67 £505.00 £606.00 

 
 
4.  That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 2 and 3 

above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of Council 
Tax for the year 2013/14 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 
 
Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H 
£879.60 £1,026.20 £1,172.80 £1,319.40 £1,612.60 £1,905.80 £2,199.00 £2,638.80 

 

Page 36



APPENDIX D

£000's

Original 2012/13 Budget 177,379

Members Approved Decisions - February 2012 Assembly 9,830

New MTFS Items 7,532

Savings (16,629)

Total Adjustments 733

Base Budget Requirement for 2013/14 178,112

Funded By:

Formula & Specific Grants (112,611)

Council Tax Support Grant (14,137)

Education Services Grant (4,700)

New Homes Bonus Grant (2,892)

Council Tax Freeze Grants (1,885)

Council Tax Surplus (450)

Weekly Collection Grant (417)

NNDR Surplus (410)

Total Funding (137,502)

Council Tax Requirement 40,610

Council Tax Base (Equivalent Band D properties) 39,955.66

Council Tax:

London Borough of Barking & Dagenham £1,016.40

Greater London Authority (subject to confirmation) £303.00

Overall Council Tax - Band D equivalent £1,319.40

Calculation of the Proposed Council Tax for 2013/14

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

D
R

A
F

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 (

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 -
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
)

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

A
d
u
lt
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 &
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

1
6
5
4

R
ip
p
le
 H
a
ll 
(S
t 
G
e
o
rg
e
s
/V
o
l 
G
ro
u
p
 R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
)

2
4
5
,4
0
5

2
4
5
,4
0
5

2
4
5
,4
0
5

2
4
5
,4
0
5

1
9
1

E
a
s
tb
u
ry
 H
o
u
s
e

1
0
,8
1
8

1
0
,8
1
8

1
0
,8
1
8

1
0
,8
1
8

2
2
3
3

V
a
le
n
c
e
 S
it
e
 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

5
4
,1
6
2

5
4
,1
6
2

4
3
,0
8
7

1
1
,0
7
5

5
4
,1
6
2

2
8
7
2

F
e
w
s
 L
o
d
g
e
 E
x
tr
a
 C
a
re
 S
c
h
e
m
e

6
7
7
,0
2
9

6
7
7
,0
2
9

5
7
7
,0
2
9

1
0
0
,0
0
0

6
7
7
,0
2
9

2
8
8
8

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
y
m
t 
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s

3
8
0
,0
0
0

3
8
0
,0
0
0

3
8
0
,0
0
0

3
8
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
3

8
0
 G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
 R
o
a
d
 C
a
re
 H
o
m
e

3
2
7
,1
8
8

3
2
7
,1
8
8

3
2
7
,1
8
8

3
2
7
,1
8
8

1
0
0

D
is
a
b
le
d
 A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 (
H
R
A
)

4
9
3
,9
9
5

4
9
3
,9
9
5

4
9
3
,9
9
5

4
9
3
,9
9
5

L
e
is
u
re
 &
 O
ly
m
p
ic
s

2
2
6
6

B
a
rk
in
g
 P
a
rk
 R
e
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 &
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

8
0
8
,6
1
6

8
0
8
,6
1
6

3
3
2
,4
9
3

6
3
,3
0
7

4
1
2
,8
1
6

8
0
8
,6
1
6

2
7
6
8

A
b
b
e
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 (
W
e
t 
S
id
e
 C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 A
re
a
s
)

8
,8
1
6

8
,8
1
6

8
,8
1
6

8
,8
1
6

2
6
0
3

B
e
c
o
n
tr
e
e
 H
e
a
th
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e

2
4
8
,8
9
0

2
4
8
,8
9
0

2
4
8
,8
9
0

2
4
8
,8
9
0

2
8
1
5

G
o
re
s
b
ro
o
k
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 O
ly
m
p
ic
 T
ra
in
in
g
 V
e
n
u
e

1
9
,7
1
3

1
9
,7
1
3

1
9
,7
1
3

1
9
,7
1
3

2
8
5
5

M
a
y
e
s
b
ro
o
k
 P
a
rk
 A
th
le
ti
c
s
 A
re
n
a

7
9
6
,0
8
0

7
9
6
,0
8
0

7
8
0
,5
0
0

1
5
,5
8
0

7
9
6
,0
8
0

2
8
7
0

B
a
rk
in
g
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 1
2
-1
4

2
,1
3
4
,6
7
9

5
,9
3
9
,0
0
0

4
,3
5
0
,0
0
0

1
7
0
,0
0
0

1
2
,5
9
3
,6
7
9

4
0
0
,0
0
0

1
2
,1
9
3
,6
7
9

1
2
,5
9
3
,6
7
9

T
o
ta
l 
F
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

6
,2
0
5
,3
9
1

5
,9
3
9
,0
0
0

4
,3
5
0
,0
0
0

1
7
0
,0
0
0

1
6
,6
6
4
,3
9
1

2
,4
6
8
,8
2
6

4
6
3
,3
0
7

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,4
3
8
,5
7
9

1
2
,1
9
3
,6
7
9

1
6
,6
6
4
,3
9
1

Page 39



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

2
5
5
5
.1

E
a
s
tb
u
ry

1
1
3
,2
1
8

1
1
3
,2
1
8

1
1
3
,2
1
8

1
1
3
,2
1
8

2
7
4
5

G
e
o
rg
e
 C
a
re
y
 C
E
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
(f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 B
a
rk
in
g
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
)

9
4
0
,2
6
8

9
4
0
,2
6
8

7
2
0
,2
6
8

2
2
0
,0
0
0

9
4
0
,2
6
8

2
7
3
6

R
o
d
in
g
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 
C
a
n
n
in
g
to
n
 R
o
a
d
 A
n
n
e
x

2
1
5
,9
0
0

2
1
5
,9
0
0

2
1
5
,9
0
0

2
1
5
,9
0
0

2
7
5
9

B
e
a
m
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

9
7
,6
7
4

9
7
,6
7
4

9
7
,6
7
4

9
7
,6
7
4

2
7
9
9

S
t 
J
o
s
e
p
h
's
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 -
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

3
5
6
,0
2
3

3
5
6
,0
2
3

3
5
6
,0
2
3

3
5
6
,0
2
3

2
8
0
0

S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 -
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

3
3
,8
6
9

3
3
,8
6
9

3
3
,8
6
9

3
3
,8
6
9

2
7
7
6

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
ie
w
 I
n
fa
n
ts
 -
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 T
G
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t

7
6
,0
7
1

7
6
,0
7
1

7
6
,0
7
1

7
6
,0
7
1

2
7
8
7

C
a
m
b
e
ll 
J
u
n
io
r 
- 
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 &
 R
e
fu
rb

3
1
,3
6
7

3
1
,3
6
7

3
1
,3
6
7

3
1
,3
6
7

2
7
8
6

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
ie
w
 J
u
n
io
rs
 -
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 &
 R
e
fu
rb

4
6
7
,9
5
3

4
6
7
,9
5
3

4
6
7
,9
5
3

4
6
7
,9
5
3

2
7
8
4

M
a
n
o
r 
L
o
n
g
b
ri
d
g
e
 (
F
o
rm

e
r 
U
E
L
 S
it
e
)

5
7
5
,9
3
4

5
7
5
,9
3
4

5
7
5
,9
3
4

5
7
5
,9
3
4

2
7
8
9

W
e
s
tb
u
ry
 -
 N
e
w
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
4
4
,2
1
0

1
4
4
,2
1
0

1
4
4
,2
1
0

1
4
4
,2
1
0

2
7
9
0

S
t 
G
e
o
rg
e
s
 -
 N
e
w
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
2
4
,7
8
8

1
2
4
,7
8
8

1
2
4
,7
8
8

1
2
4
,7
8
8

O
th
e
r 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s

U
A
C
1
2

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s

8
8
9
,3
0
2

8
8
9
,3
0
2

8
8
9
,3
0
2

8
8
9
,3
0
2

2
7
9
3

S
M
F
 -
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
M
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d

2
,4
0
7
,8
4
9

2
,4
0
7
,8
4
9

2
,4
0
7
,8
4
9

2
,4
0
7
,8
4
9

2
7
4
2

Y
o
u
th
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 C
a
rd

4
3
,1
6
8

4
3
,1
6
8

4
3
,1
6
8

4
3
,1
6
8

2
7
5
1

S
c
h
o
o
l's
 K
it
c
h
e
n
 E
x
te
n
s
io
n
/R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
1
0
/1
1

3
6
,4
1
0

3
6
,4
1
0

3
6
,4
1
0

3
6
,4
1
0

2
3
1
0

W
ill
ia
m
 B
e
lla
m
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
s
 C
e
n
tr
e

6
,4
5
8

6
,4
5
8

6
,4
5
8

6
,4
5
8

2
2
1
7

J
o
h
n
 P
e
rr
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
s

9
,6
1
9

9
,6
1
9

9
,6
1
9

9
,6
1
9

2
6
5
1

A
lib
o
n
 C
h
ild
re
n
s
 C
e
n
tr
e

(8
,8
1
2
)

(8
,8
1
2
)

(8
,8
1
2
)

(8
,8
1
2
)

2
7
3
9

G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e

(8
,0
5
1
)

(8
,0
5
1
)

(8
,0
5
1
)

(8
,0
5
1
)

2
8
2
6

5
1
2
a
 H
e
a
th
w
a
y
 -
 C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 t
o
 a
 F
a
m
ily
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e

8
4
,4
8
2

8
4
,4
8
2

8
4
,4
8
2

8
4
,4
8
2

2
8
7
8

5
1
2
a
 H
e
a
th
w
a
y
 (
p
h
a
s
e
 2
)-
 C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 t
o
 a
 F
a
m
ily
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
te
a
c
h
in
g
 a
p
a
c
e

1
4
7
,0
3
6

1
4
7
,0
3
6

1
4
7
,0
3
6

1
4
7
,0
3
6

9
9
9
9

D
e
v
o
lv
e
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
o
rm

u
la

2
,2
3
4
,7
2
6

2
,2
3
4
,7
2
6

2
,2
3
4
,7
2
6

2
,2
3
4
,7
2
6

2
8
1
8

S
y
d
n
e
y
 R
u
s
s
e
ll 
- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
o
r 
T
h
e
 F
u
tu
re

1
1
,3
8
2
,8
0
9

1
1
,3
8
2
,8
0
9

1
1
,3
8
2
,8
0
9

1
1
,3
8
2
,8
0
9

2
8
5
9

R
o
b
e
rt
 C
la
c
k
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

1
0
,8
9
0

1
0
,8
9
0

1
0
,8
9
0

1
0
,8
9
0

2
8
6
0

M
o
n
te
a
g
le
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 (
Q
u
a
d
ra
n
g
le
 I
n
fi
ll)

1
,7
9
6
,5
8
5

5
0
,0
0
0

1
,8
4
6
,5
8
5

1
,8
4
6
,5
8
5

1
,8
4
6
,5
8
5

2
8
6
1

E
a
s
tb
u
ry
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

7
5
0
,0
0
7

3
4
5
,0
0
0

1
,0
9
5
,0
0
7

1
,0
9
5
,0
0
7

1
,0
9
5
,0
0
7

2
8
6
3

P
a
rs
lo
e
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

1
,3
0
9
,9
8
9

5
0
,0
0
0

1
,3
5
9
,9
8
9

1
,3
5
9
,9
8
9

1
,3
5
9
,9
8
9

Page 40



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

2
8
6
4

G
o
d
w
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,1
5
0
,0
0
0

2
,2
5
0
,0
0
0

2
,2
5
0
,0
0
0

2
,2
5
0
,0
0
0

2
8
6
5

W
ill
ia
m
 B
e
lla
m
y
 I
n
fa
n
ts
/J
u
n
io
rs
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

7
4
9
,7
0
2

1
,6
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

2
,4
4
9
,7
0
2

2
,4
4
9
,7
0
2

2
,4
4
9
,7
0
2

2
8
6
6

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 V
ill
a
g
e
 R
e
c
to
ry
 R
o
a
d
 L
ib
ra
ry
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
8
6
7

S
o
u
th
w
o
o
d
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 (
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
)

1
,2
5
1
,2
0
7

5
0
,0
0
0

1
,3
0
1
,2
0
7

1
,3
0
1
,2
0
7

1
,3
0
1
,2
0
7

2
9
0
0

B
e
c
o
n
tr
e
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

3
8
5
,5
4
8

3
8
5
,5
4
8

3
8
5
,5
4
8

3
8
5
,5
4
8

2
6
0
1

R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
K
it
c
h
e
n
s
 2
0
0
9
/1
0

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
7
7

2
7
5
3

C
ro
s
s
-G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
C
o
-L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d

4
4

4
4

2
3
6
5

G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

2
9
1
8

R
o
d
in
g
 C
a
n
n
in
g
to
n

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
9

R
ic
h
a
rd
 A
lib
o
n
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

7
5
,0
0
0

7
5
,0
0
0

7
5
,0
0
0

7
5
,0
0
0

2
9
2
0

W
a
rr
e
n
/F
u
rz
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
2
1

M
a
n
o
r 
In
fa
n
t 
J
n
r 
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
2
2

V
a
le
n
c
e
 H
a
lb
u
tt
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

2
9
2
3

R
u
s
h
 G
re
e
n
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

1
5
,0
0
0

1
5
,0
0
0

1
5
,0
0
0

1
5
,0
0
0

2
9
2
4

S
t 
J
o
s
e
p
h
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 E
x
tn

1
,6
8
0
,0
0
0

1
,6
8
0
,0
0
0

1
,6
8
0
,0
0
0

1
,6
8
0
,0
0
0

2
9
2
9

S
M
F
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

7
8
4
,6
2
3

1
,1
2
5
,0
0
0

1
,9
0
9
,6
2
3

1
,9
0
9
,6
2
3

1
,9
0
9
,6
2
3

2
9
3
2

T
ri
n
it
y
 6
th
 F
o
rm

 P
ro
v
is
o
n

9
2
2
,2
5
0

9
2
2
,2
5
0

9
2
2
,2
5
0

9
2
2
,2
5
0

B
a
s
ic
 N
e
e
d
s

U
A
C
1

N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
la
c
e
s
 -
 P
ri
m
a
ry

5
0
3
,0
0
0

7
,3
9
5
,0
0
0

7
,8
9
8
,0
0
0

7
,8
9
8
,0
0
0

7
,8
9
8
,0
0
0

U
A
C
2

N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
la
c
e
s
 -
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
/N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
u
n
d
in
g
)

1
8
2
,6
3
5

1
8
2
,6
3
5

1
8
2
,6
3
5

1
8
2
,6
3
5

U
A
C
3

N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
la
c
e
s
 -
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
/N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

1
1
,8
0
0
,0
0
0

2
1
,7
2
5
,0
0
0

5
,3
0
5
,0
0
0

3
8
,8
3
0
,0
0
0

3
8
,8
3
0
,0
0
0

3
8
,8
3
0
,0
0
0

U
A
C
4

N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
la
c
e
s
 -
 V
a
ri
o
u
s
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

2
5
0
,0
0
0

3
1
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

3
1
,8
5
0
,0
0
0

3
1
,8
5
0
,0
0
0

3
1
,8
5
0
,0
0
0

U
A
C
5

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
N
e
w
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
s
 (
B
a
s
ic
 N
e
e
d
s
) 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
7
5
2
,3
0
4

7
5
2
,3
0
4

7
2
2
,3
0
4

3
0
,0
0
0

7
5
2
,3
0
4

2
7
2
4

B
a
s
ic
 N
e
e
d
s
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 (
 f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
s
)2
0
1
1
/1
2

6
2
,1
0
6

6
2
,1
0
6

6
2
,1
0
6

6
2
,1
0
6

2
9
0
6

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 S
E
N
 P
ro
je
c
ts

3
0
0
,0
0
0

7
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
0
9

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 M
in
o
r 
P
ro
jc
ts

3
5
0
,0
0
0

6
5
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

S
k
il
ls
, 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

2
7
2
3

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 S
k
ill
s
 C
e
n
tr
e

3
,3
4
3
,6
7
1

2
2
,5
8
5

3
,3
6
6
,2
5
6

3
,3
6
6
,2
5
6

3
,3
6
6
,2
5
6

3
7
,5
0
6
,7
9
9

5
6
,5
8
7
,5
8
5

2
1
,7
7
5
,0
0
0

5
,3
0
5
,0
0
0

1
2
1
,1
7
4
,3
8
4

1
1
6
,9
8
2
,1
9
4

8
2
5
,9
3
4

3
,3
6
6
,2
5
6

1
2
1
,1
7
4
,3
8
4

T
o
ta
l 
F
o
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

Page 41



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

M
is
c
e
ll
a
n
e
o
u
s

2
9
1
1

Q
u
a
k
e
r 
B
u
ri
a
l 
G
ro
u
n
d

7
,5
0
0

5
2
,5
0
0

6
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
2

B
a
rk
in
g
 P
a
rk
 T
e
n
n
is
 P
ro
je
c
t

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
3
0
,0
0
0

2
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

N
o
n
-H
R
A
 H
o
u
s
in
g

1
0
6

P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s

1
,0
5
4
,1
1
2

1
,0
5
4
,1
1
2

7
9
7
,1
1
2

2
5
7
,0
0
0

1
,0
5
4
,1
1
2

1
0
5

P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 (
1
0
5
)

2
3
0
,0
9
3

2
3
0
,0
9
3

2
3
0
,0
9
3

2
3
0
,0
9
3

2
5
7
0

H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

3
2
,0
9
9

3
2
,0
9
9

3
2
,0
9
9

3
2
,0
9
9

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t

2
2
8
8

L
a
n
d
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

1
9
,6
2
6

1
9
,6
2
6

1
9
,6
2
6

1
9
,6
2
6

2
7
6
4

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
t 
R
e
p
la
c
in
g

1
,1
8
5
,5
1
4

1
,1
8
5
,5
1
4

1
,1
8
5
,5
1
4

1
,1
8
5
,5
1
4

2
7
7
7

S
N
A
P
S

4
6
,6
4
5

4
6
,6
4
5

4
6
,6
4
5

4
6
,6
4
5

2
8
7
3

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

1
6
7
,6
7
0

1
6
7
,6
7
0

1
6
7
,6
7
0

1
6
7
,6
7
0

2
8
9
4

R
o
a
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 I
m
p
v
 S
c
h
 Y
e
a
r 
2
 (
T
F
L
)

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

2
8
8
7

F
ri
z
la
n
d
s
 W

k
s
h
p
 M
a
jo
r 
W
k
s

1
7
5
,0
1
1

1
7
5
,0
1
1

1
7
5
,0
1
1

1
7
5
,0
1
1

2
8
8
6

P
a
rk
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 I
m
p

8
,5
8
3

8
,5
8
3

8
,5
8
3

8
,5
8
3

2
9
0
7

L
e
y
s
 R
o
a
d
 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 1
2
-1
3

2
1
5
,0
0
0

2
1
5
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,9
3
1

1
1
4
,0
6
9

2
1
5
,0
0
0

2
9
0
8

B
ro
w
n
 W

h
e
e
le
d
 B
in
s
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g

1
,1
2
3
,2
3
7

1
,1
2
3
,2
3
7

1
,1
2
3
,2
3
7

1
,1
2
3
,2
3
7

2
9
4
8

A
b
b
e
y
 G
re
e
n
- 
C
h
u
rc
h
y
a
rd
 W

a
ll

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
0

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

P
G
S
S

2
4
2
1

S
ta
ff
 C
o
s
ts
 1
2
/1
4

3
8
,5
0
0

3
8
,5
0
0

7
7
,0
0
0

7
7
,0
0
0

7
7
,0
0
0

2
4
2
3

P
o
n
d
fi
e
ld
 P
a
rk

8
,3
2
1

8
,3
2
1

8
,3
2
1

8
,3
2
1

2
5
6
7

A
b
b
e
y
 G
re
e
n
 P
a
rk
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

2
2
,2
0
5

2
2
,2
0
5

2
2
,2
0
5

2
2
,2
0
5

2
6
0
4

V
a
le
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

1
5
,3
7
6

1
5
,3
7
6

1
5
,3
7
6

1
5
,3
7
6

2
3
2
6

B
T
C
 P
u
b
lic
 A
rt
 P
ro
je
c
t

5
,4
5
8

5
,4
5
8

5
,4
5
8

5
,4
5
8

2
8
1
7

M
a
y
e
s
b
ro
o
k
 P
a
rk
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
P
h
a
s
e
 1
)

1
0
0
,3
6
9

1
0
0
,3
6
9

1
0
0
,3
6
9

1
0
0
,3
6
9

2
8
7
9

B
a
rk
in
g
 P
a
rk
 L
ig
h
t 
R
a
ilw

a
y
 &
 R
o
w
in
g
 B
o
a
t 
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

2
4
,6
4
6

2
8
,0
9
7

5
2
,7
4
3

5
2
,7
4
3

5
2
,7
4
3

2
9
2
5

A
d
iz
o
n
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
1
2
-1
3

3
1
0
,0
0
0

3
1
0
,0
0
0

3
1
0
,0
0
0

3
1
0
,0
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
F
o
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

8
,1
3
5
,9
6
5

3
,1
1
9
,0
9
7

1
1
,2
5
5
,0
6
2

1
,3
5
3
,5
7
4

2
8
2
,2
9
0

4
2
4
,0
6
9

3
,1
9
5
,1
2
9

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
1
,2
5
5
,0
6
2

Page 42



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
s
s
e
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

U
A
C
6

L
o
c
a
l 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 (
L
IP
2
)

2
,1
3
0
,0
0
0

1
,8
9
2
,0
0
0

4
,0
2
2
,0
0
0

4
,0
2
2
,0
0
0

4
,0
2
2
,0
0
0

2
7
4
1

L
8
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
L
e
g
io
n
e
lla
 R
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
W
o
rk
s

2
5
0
,0
0
0

9
7
,8
9
8

3
4
7
,8
9
8

9
7
,8
9
8

4
7
,8
9
8

2
0
2
,1
0
2

3
4
7
,8
9
8

2
5
7
8

A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 (
P
u
b
lic
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
)

5
3
,9
9
3

5
3
,9
9
3

2
3
,9
9
3

3
0
,0
0
0

5
3
,9
9
3

2
7
7
1

A
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 M
e
te
r 
R
e
a
d
in
g
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

2
4
,9
8
2

7
0
,0
0
0

9
4
,9
8
2

9
4
,9
8
2

9
4
,9
8
2

2
5
4
2

B
a
c
k
lo
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

6
7
0
,0
0
0

3
9
1
,4
5
1

1
,0
6
1
,4
5
1

3
9
1
,4
5
1

6
7
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
6
1
,4
5
1

2
5
6
5

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

1
,0
0
1
,4
1
7

1
,0
0
1
,4
1
7

1
9
5
,0
0
0

8
0
6
,4
1
7

1
,0
0
1
,4
1
7

U
A
C
7

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

1
,5
5
9
,1
2
0

1
,5
5
9
,1
2
0

1
,5
5
9
,1
2
0

1
,5
5
9
,1
2
0

2
4
5
8

N
e
w
 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 L
ib
ra
ry
 &
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 S
h
o
p

8
9
,6
5
7

8
9
,6
5
7

8
9
,6
5
7

8
9
,6
5
7

2
5
8
7

E
n
e
ry
 E
ff
ie
c
ie
n
c
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

2
8
0
,0
0
0

2
8
0
,0
0
0

2
8
0
,0
0
0

2
8
0
,0
0
0

U
A
C
8

A
s
s
e
t 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
s
 (
A
ll 
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
)

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

IC
T 2
6
2
3

M
ic
ro
s
o
ft
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t

8
8
,7
9
4

8
8
,7
9
4

8
8
,7
9
4

8
8
,7
9
4

2
7
3
8

M
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n
 &
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
u
n
d

2
,5
2
4
,0
5
1

2
,5
2
4
,0
5
1

2
,5
2
4
,0
5
1

2
,5
2
4
,0
5
1

2
8
7
7

O
ra
c
le
 R
1
2
 J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

3
,4
9
3
,7
7
0

3
,4
9
3
,7
7
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,4
9
3
,7
7
0

3
,4
9
3
,7
7
0

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

2
5
9
6

L
e
g
i 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s

3
4
0
,9
3
3

2
3
4
,3
7
0

5
7
5
,3
0
3

5
1
2
,2
6
7

6
3
,0
3
6

5
7
5
,3
0
3

2
7
7
5

B
T
C
 P
u
b
lic
 R
e
a
lm
 -
 T
s
q
 &
 A
b
b
e
y

3
0
,1
8
6

3
0
,1
8
6

3
0
,1
8
6

3
0
,1
8
6

2
8
2
1

S
h
o
p
p
in
g
 P
a
ra
d
e
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

3
4
1
,9
0
4

3
4
1
,9
0
4

1
9
2
,0
0
0

2
9
,9
0
4

1
2
0
,0
0
0

3
4
1
,9
0
4

2
6
2
5

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
ie
w
 R
e
g
e
n
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

2
5
,2
4
7

2
5
,2
4
7

2
5
,2
4
7

2
5
,2
4
7

2
8
1
9

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
/N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
it
e
 A
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
s

8
9
6
,9
4
7

8
9
6
,9
4
7

8
9
6
,9
4
7

8
9
6
,9
4
7

2
8
3
1

B
a
rk
in
g
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 F
o
re
c
o
u
rt
 -
 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 (
T
F
L
 &
 S
1
0
6
)

2
4
0
,8
1
6

2
4
0
,8
1
6

5
5
,3
6
9

1
2
0
,0
0
0

6
5
,4
4
7

2
4
0
,8
1
6

2
8
4
0

C
a
r 
C
lu
b
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 (
T
F
L
)

5
,7
6
0

5
,7
6
0

5
,7
6
0

5
,7
6
0

2
8
4
1

B
ik
in
g
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 (
T
F
L
)

1
1
5
,2
0
0

1
1
5
,2
0
0

1
1
5
,2
0
0

1
1
5
,2
0
0

2
8
5
4

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
r 
o
f 
T
h
e
 M
a
ll,
 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 

H
e
a
th
w
a
y

1
7
3
,0
0
2

1
7
3
,0
0
2

8
3
,0
0
2

9
0
,0
0
0

1
7
3
,0
0
2

2
9
0
1

C
re
e
k
m
o
u
th
 A
rt
s
 &
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 T
ra
il

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0
0
0

2
9
0
2

S
h
o
rt
 B
lu
e
 P
la
c
e
 (
N
e
w
 M
a
rk
e
t 
S
q
u
a
re
 B
a
rk
in
 -
 P
h
a
s
e
 I
I)

1
,0
8
8
,4
9
7

1
,0
8
8
,4
9
7

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

7
0
,8
1
2

1
7
,6
8
5

1
,0
8
8
,4
9
7

2
8
9
0

P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
R
o
a
d
 R
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 (
T
F
L
)

4
7
3
,2
8
0

4
5
0
,0
0
0

9
2
3
,2
8
0

9
2
3
,2
8
0

9
2
3
,2
8
0

2
8
9
1

M
e
rr
y
 F
id
d
le
rs
 J
n
c
t 
Im
p
 Y
e
a
r 
2
 (
T
F
L
)

4
4
1
,6
0
0

4
4
1
,6
0
0

4
4
1
,6
0
0

4
4
1
,6
0
0

2
8
9
2

C
y
c
lin
g
 G
re
e
n
w
a
y
s
 Y
e
a
r 
2
 (
T
F
L
)

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

2
8
9
3

T
h
a
m
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 C
o
rr
id
o
r 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
T
F
L
)

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
8
9
5

C
h
a
d
w
e
ll 
H
e
a
th
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 I
m
p
v
 (
T
F
L
)

2
8
8
,0
0
0

2
8
8
,0
0
0

2
8
8
,0
0
0

2
8
8
,0
0
0

2
8
9
6

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 H
e
a
th
w
a
y
 &
 B
c
o
n
  
- 
L
o
w
 C
a
rb
o
n
 Z
o
n
e
  
(T
F
L
)

4
8
,0
0
0

4
8
,0
0
0

4
8
,0
0
0

4
8
,0
0
0

2
8
9
7

S
m
a
rt
e
r 
T
ra
v
e
l 
P
la
n
s
 (
T
F
L
)

2
0
1
,6
0
0

2
0
1
,6
0
0

2
0
1
,6
0
0

2
0
1
,6
0
0

2
8
9
8

L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
s
 (
T
F
L
)

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

9
6
,0
0
0

2
8
9
9

R
iv
e
r 
R
o
d
in
g
 C
y
c
le
 L
in
k
 (
T
F
L
)

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
4
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
0

B
a
rk
in
g
 S
tn
 P
a
ra
d
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

6
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
4

B
a
rk
in
g
 J
o
b
 S
h
o
p
 R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n

2
2
8
,8
6
3

2
2
8
,8
6
3

2
2
8
,8
6
3

2
2
8
,8
6
3

2
9
2
6

O
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 R
o
u
n
d
 2

2
9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
2
7

C
h
e
q
u
e
rs
/A
b
b
e
y
 R
o
a
d
 P
u
b
lic
 R
e
a
lm
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

4
3
0
,8
7
1

4
3
0
,8
7
1

4
3
0
,8
7
1

4
3
0
,8
7
1

2
9
2
8

C
a
p
ta
in
 C
o
o
k
 S
it
e
 A
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 R
e
a
lm
 W

o
rk
s
 (
A
b
b
e
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
)

8
1
9
,7
9
5

8
1
9
,7
9
5

8
9
,7
9
5

7
3
0
,0
0
0

8
1
9
,7
9
5

U
A
C
9

C
a
p
it
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s

3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
F
o
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

1
5
,7
3
9
,1
6
6

8
,9
3
2
,8
3
9

5
,8
9
2
,0
0
0

3
0
,5
6
4
,0
0
5

9
,6
5
6
,6
3
4

1
,5
0
0
,0
5
6

1
,2
7
8
,1
3
2

1
7
,2
2
7
,0
8
0

9
0
2
,1
0
2

3
0
,5
6
4
,0
0
5

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d

6
7
,5
8
7
,3
2
1

7
4
,5
7
8
,5
2
1

3
2
,0
1
7
,0
0
0

5
,4
7
5
,0
0
0

1
7
9
,6
5
7
,8
4
2

1
3
0
,4
6
1
,2
2
8

3
,0
7
1
,5
8
8

1
,8
0
2
,2
0
1

2
5
,2
2
7
,0
4
4

1
9
,0
9
5
,7
8
1

1
7
9
,6
5
7
,8
4
2

Page 43



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

H
R
A

U
A
C
1
1

H
R
A
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

4
,1
0
1
,6
3
5

3
6
,7
2
4
,2
7
2

7
4
,0
9
0
,0
0
0

4
5
,6
2
0
,0
0
0

1
6
0
,5
3
5
,9
0
7

U
A
C
1
0

B
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
 E
s
ta
te
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
- 
D
e
c
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
B
u
y
b
a
c
k

6
,6
7
0
,0
1
8

6
,6
7
0
,0
1
8

1
0
0

H
R
A
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s

6
0
0
,0
0
0

6
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
4

H
o
u
s
in
g
 F
u
tu
re
s

1
,4
6
9
,1
7
5

1
,4
6
9
,1
7
5

2
7
3
4

S
A
M
S
 f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 r
e
m
o
te
 c
o
n
c
ie
rg
e

7
0
,0
0
0

7
0
,0
0
0

2
6
3
7

D
H
 w
o
rk
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

5
,0
0
0

5
,0
0
0

2
6
4
0

M
A
J
O
R
 W

O
R
K
S
 (
E
N
T
E
R
P
R
IS
E
) 
P
R
O
J
.

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
6
4
1

H
e
a
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
s
 (
T
h
a
x
te
d
, 
M
a
x
e
y
 &
 H
u
m
p
h
ri
e
s
 H
o
u
s
e
s
)

6
5
,0
0
0

6
5
,0
0
0

2
6
4
5

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s

7
5
0
,0
0
0

1
,7
5
0
,0
0
0

2
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
7
2
7

C
H
P
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

2
4
,4
2
5

2
4
,4
2
5

2
7
2
8

E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
S
w
it
c
h
g
e
a
r 
P
ro
je
c
t

2
7
0
,5
4
6

2
7
0
,5
4
6

2
8
2
2

C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
S
w
it
c
h
g
e
a
r

5
1
0
,3
0
5

5
1
0
,3
0
5

2
7
2
6

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
n
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 W

o
rk

2
5
1
,2
4
4

2
5
1
,2
4
4

2
7
3
0

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 A
la
rm

s
 U
p
g
ra
d
e

1
0
,6
6
2

1
0
,6
6
2

2
7
3
1

C
o
ln
e
 &
 M
e
rs
e
a
 B
lo
c
k
s

1
,3
4
4
,2
1
5

1
,3
4
4
,2
1
5

2
8
1
1

C
a
p
it
a
lis
e
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
W
o
rk
s

1
4
7
,0
1
4

2
2
4
,0
0
0

3
7
1
,0
1
4

2
8
1
3

E
s
ta
te
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
je
c
t

9
0
0
,0
0
0

9
0
0
,0
0
0

2
8
2
0

B
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
 E
s
ta
te
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
- 
G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
 

D
e
c
a
n
ts

4
8
5
,0
0
0

4
8
5
,0
0
0

2
8
2
4

O
ld
m
e
a
d
 &
 B
a
rt
le
tt
 R
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
W
o
rk
s

1
0
3
,0
7
1

1
0
3
,0
7
1

2
8
2
8

B
o
ro
u
g
h
w
id
e
 E
s
ta
te
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
- 
L
e
y
s
 D
e
c
a
n
ts

2
5
5
,0
0
0

2
5
5
,0
0
0

2
8
2
9

G
o
re
s
b
ro
o
k
 V
ill
a
g
e
 D
e
c
a
n
ts

5
6
0
,0
0
0

5
6
0
,0
0
0

2
8
4
4

D
o
o
r 
E
n
tr
y
 P
ro
je
c
t 
1
1
/1
3

1
,5
3
3
,0
5
0

1
,5
3
3
,0
5
0

2
8
4
5

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
n
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 &
 F
ir
e
 p
ro
o
fi
n
g
 p
ro
je
c
t

2
,4
5
3
,7
0
5

2
,4
5
3
,7
0
5

2
8
4
6

D
e
fe
c
ti
v
e
 O
v
e
rf
lo
w
 W

o
rk
s

1
4
,8
9
4

1
4
,8
9
4

2
8
4
7

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
e
a
ti
n
g
 I
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
B
o
ile
r 
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t

1
,8
7
1
,1
7
3

1
,8
7
1
,1
7
3

2
8
4
8

K
it
c
h
e
n
 &
 B
a
th
ro
o
m
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
je
c
t

1
,6
7
5
,5
3
3

1
,6
7
5
,5
3
3

2
8
4
9

H
ig
h
 R
is
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
s

2
5
0
,0
0
0

7
4
6
,7
1
0

9
9
6
,7
1
0

2
8
5
0

C
a
p
it
a
lis
e
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 (
E
s
ta
te
s
)

2
5
0
,0
0
0

2
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
8
5
3

E
s
ta
te
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

6
8
4
,2
0
6

6
8
4
,2
0
6

2
8
5
2

A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 -
 H
o
u
s
in
g

1
2
8
,6
6
5

2
0
0
,0
0
0

3
2
8
,6
6
5

Page 44



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 E

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
.

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
2
/1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
3
/1
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

T
o
ta
l

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g

M
R
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
H
R
A
/G
R
F
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

&
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

T
o
ta
l

2
8
5
6

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 B
u
y
b
a
c
k
s
 (
a
ll)

8
,6
8
5
,1
5
1

8
,6
8
5
,1
5
1

2
8
5
7

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/M
a
s
te
rp
la
n
n
in
g
 (
a
ll)

7
1
3
,2
2
7

7
1
3
,2
2
7

2
8
5
8

D
e
m
o
lit
io
n
 (
a
ll)

1
,6
5
2
,7
3
0

1
,6
5
2
,7
3
0

2
8
8
0

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
e
a
ti
n
g
 I
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 P
h
a
s
e
 2

1
0
0
,5
2
9

1
0
0
,5
2
9

2
8
8
1

K
it
c
h
e
n
, 
B
a
th
ro
o
m
, 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
e
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
w
ir
e

1
,8
8
3
,5
6
4

1
,8
8
3
,5
6
4

2
8
8
2

E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
R
e
w
ir
in
g

3
2
5
,6
7
1

3
2
5
,6
7
1

2
9
3
3

V
o
id
s
 1
2
-1
4

1
0
0
,0
0
0

4
,9
0
0
,0
0
0

5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
7
7
2

K
in
g
 W

ill
ia
m
 S
t 
Q
tr

8
0
,0
0
0

8
0
,0
0
0

2
7
7
3

C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 T
h
a
m
e
s

1
,4
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,4
0
0
,0
0
0

2
7
5
7

C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 N
e
w
 B
u
ild
s

2
3
6
,6
1
2

2
3
6
,6
1
2

2
8
2
3

N
e
w
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
h
a
s
e
 3

1
,5
6
9
,0
0
0

1
,5
6
9
,0
0
0

2
9
3
1

L
e
y
s
 N
e
w
 B
u
ild
 D
e
v
 (
H
R
A
)

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
5

E
s
ta
te
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
A
lt
h
o
rn
e
 W

a
y

5
5
,0
0
0

5
5
,0
0
0

2
9
1
6

L
a
w
n
s
 &
 W

o
o
d
 L
a
n
e
 D
v
lp
m
n
t

3
0
0
,0
0
0

3
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
1
7

A
b
b
e
y
 R
o
a
d
 C
IQ

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
4

R
o
o
f 
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
je
c
t

2
6
0
,0
0
0

7
,7
4
0
,0
0
0

8
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
5

In
te
rn
a
l 
W
o
rk
s
 M
u
lt
ip
le
 E
lm
n
ts

1
0
0
,0
0
0

4
,9
0
0
,0
0
0

5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
6

R
e
w
ir
in
g
 (
in
c
l 
S
m
o
k
e
 A
la
rm

s
)

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
7

C
C
T
V
/S
A
M
S
 P
h
a
s
e
 2

1
5
,0
0
0

7
3
5
,0
0
0

7
5
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
8

F
ir
e
 S
a
fe
ty
 W

o
rk
s
 

1
5
0
,0
0
0

8
5
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
3
9

A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 -
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

1
0
0
,0
0
0

7
0
0
,0
0
0

8
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
0

E
s
ta
te
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
(A
m
e
n
it
y
 G
re
e
n
) 
1
2
/1
3

5
0
,0
0
0

9
5
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
1

R
e
n
e
w
a
b
le
s
 (
P
V
s
) 
&
 C
E
S
P
s
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
n
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 W

o
rk
s

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,9
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
2

T
ra
v
e
lle
rs
 S
it
e
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t

5
0
,0
0
0

1
4
0
,0
0
0

1
9
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
3

A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
(C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
A
re
a
s
 o
n
ly
)

3
0
,0
0
0

9
7
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
4

R
&
 M
 S
e
t 
u
p
 C
o
s
ts

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
6

O
ld
e
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 P
h
a
s
e
 I

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
7

P
a
in
ti
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 1
2
-1
4

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
5

S
tr
e
e
t 
P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 A
c
q
u
is
it
io
n

5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
4
9

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
n
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
n
c
l.
 W

a
lk
w
a
y
s
 P
h
a
s
e
 I
I

1
0
0
,0
0
0

4
,9
0
0
,0
0
0

5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
5
0

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
e
a
ti
n
g
 I
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 I
n
c
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
B
o
ile
r 
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
h
a
s
e
 I
I

6
0
,0
0
0

2
,9
4
0
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
5
1

E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
S
w
it
c
h
g
e
a
r 
in
c
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
&
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 P
h
a
s
e
 I
I

5
0
,0
0
0

9
5
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

H
R
A
:T
B
F
T
o
 B
e
 F
u
n
d
e
d
 B
y

5
8
,3
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
5
2
,7
1
0
,0
0
0

1
7
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,9
9
0
,0
0
0

2
4
6
,3
0
0
,0
0
0

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l 
H
R
A

4
3
,3
5
0
,0
0
0

8
3
,2
4
0
,0
0
0

7
4
,0
9
0
,0
0
0

4
5
,6
2
0
,0
0
0

2
4
6
,3
0
0
,0
0
0

5
8
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
1
0
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
5
2
,7
1
0
,0
0
0

1
7
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,9
9
0
,0
0
0

2
4
6
,3
0
0
,0
0
0

T
O
T
A
L
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E

1
1
0
,9
3
7
,3
2
1

1
5
7
,8
1
8
,5
2
1

1
0
6
,1
0
7
,0
0
0

5
1
,0
9
5
,0
0
0

4
2
5
,9
5
7
,8
4
2

1
8
8
,7
6
1
,2
2
8
1
0
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

3
,1
7
1
,5
8
8

1
5
4
,5
1
2
,2
0
1

4
2
,8
2
7
,0
4
4

2
6
,0
8
5
,7
8
1

4
2
5
,9
5
7
,8
4
2

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
 

   

 
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 –
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s

 
 C

o
n

ta
c

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r:

 P
a
u

l 
B

a
te

s
, 
G

M
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 

P
a

u
l.
b
a

te
s
@

lb
b
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

 

Page 47



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
 

  A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 X
X

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
 

 

1
. 

 G
e

n
e
ra

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

Is
s

u
e
s

 –
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

s
a

v
in

g
s

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

G
e

n
e
ri

c
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 b
y
 R

e
s

p
o

n
d

e
e
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
S

ta
ff

in
g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

t 
th

e
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
 

D
e
la

y
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

n
 r

e
n
e

w
a

l 
o
f 

C
P

Z
 

fo
rm

s
. 

 G
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

u
to

m
a

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

d
 

–
 t

h
e

 C
E

x
 h

a
s
 a

s
k
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

P
D

Q
 m

a
c
h

in
e

s
 b

e
 

u
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 O
n

e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 d
e

la
y
s
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
H

e
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
a

n
d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 

 
 

A
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

 a
re

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 
a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 h

e
a

ti
n

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 w
h

e
re

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 
n
e

e
d
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
t 

w
e

e
k
e
n

d
s
. 

 S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 h
e

a
ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

 l
a

rg
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 C
iv

ic
 a

re
 s

u
c
h

 t
h

a
t 
b

y
 t

u
rn

in
g
 t

h
e
m

 
d

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 u
p

 a
g
a

in
 a

s
 t
h

e
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
d
ic

ta
te

s
 

w
o

u
ld

 e
n

d
 u

p
 c

o
s
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
o
re

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 o

ld
e

r 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 e
a

s
y
 o

r 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
d

a
p

t 
to

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
a

th
e
r.

 
 W

h
e
re

 w
e

 c
a

n
 d

o
 t
h

is
 –

 w
e

 a
re

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 i
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
s
p

e
n
d

. 
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
C

h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
d
ri
v
e

-w
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 d
ro

p
p

e
d
 k

e
rb

s
 

N
o
t 

a
n
 o

p
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
c
h
a

rg
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

ti
m

e
. 

 

Page 48



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
 

 S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
U

s
e
 o

n
lin

e
 f

o
rm

s
 f

o
r 

re
n

e
w

in
g
 p

a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
a

t 
th

e
 m

o
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a

u
to

m
a

ti
n

g
 

th
is

 a
n
d

 d
ri
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 o
n

lin
e

. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
M

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 P

o
n

d
fi
e
ld

 H
o

u
s
e

 t
o

 f
re

e
 u

p
 

s
p

a
c
e

 a
t 

R
o
y
c
ra

ft
 H

o
u
s
e

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
t 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 

c
o

-l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

a
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 c

o
-l
o
c
a

te
 t
h

is
 t

e
a

m
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

W
e
 a

re
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
lo

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 r
e
s
p
e

c
t 
o
f 

a
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 w

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 o
u

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 
It

 w
ill

 b
e

 v
it
a

l 
th

a
t 

re
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 w

e
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
 t

im
e

ly
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
  

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
E

x
p

a
n

d
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
o

te
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

a
n
d

 h
o
t-

d
e

s
k
in

g
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 h
o

m
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

IT
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 d

o
e

s
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
h

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
it
ri
x
 r

e
m

o
te

 w
o

rk
in

g
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

a
llo

w
s
 m

o
s
t 

u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e

ir
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
, 

e
- m

a
ils

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 p

c
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

C
s
 a

t 

h
o

m
e

. 
T

h
e

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

llo
w

s
 

u
p

 t
o

 1
0

0
0
 u

s
e

rs
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
is

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
w

it
h

 t
h
o

s
e

 u
s
e

rs
 w

it
h

 l
a

p
to

p
s
 (

c
ir
c
a
 

Page 49



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

4
 

 

5
0

0
) 

a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 l
ic

e
n

s
e
d

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 u

p
g
ra

d
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 u

p
 t

o
 1

0
0

0
 

u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
n
n

e
c
t 

in
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 

h
o

m
e

.  

T
h
e

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
e

rs
’ 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
iv

e
rt

e
d

 t
o

 m
o
b

ile
s
 o

r 
h
o
m

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
is

. 
T

e
le

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h
 

u
n

d
e

ru
s
e

d
.  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 m
o
re

 h
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

th
e

 

H
R

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t
h

is
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e

le
g
a

te
 a

n
d

 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
w

o
rk

 d
o

n
e
 r

e
m

o
te

ly
. 

N
o
t 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

ir
 j
o

b
 r

o
le

s
, 

b
u

t 
th

o
s
e

 t
h
a

t 
c
a

n
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 

a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

IC
T

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 e
x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 h

o
m

e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
;  

- 
A

 d
e

s
k
to

p
 I
T

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 t
h

e
 

u
s
e

r 
to

 u
s
e

 a
n

 L
B

B
D

 ‘
d

e
s
k
to

p
’ 
o

n
 a

n
y
 

P
C

 a
n

y
w

h
e

re
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o
o

k
s
 e

x
a

c
tl
y
 l
ik

e
 

th
e

 d
e

s
k
to

p
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

(s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

);
 

Page 50



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

5
 

 

- 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

te
le

c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 p
h

o
n

e
s
 i
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 

ro
o

m
s
, 
w

it
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 

te
le

c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 c

a
p

a
b

ili
ty

 (
s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

);
 

- 
In

s
ta

n
t 
m

e
s
s
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

n
lin

e
 v

id
e

o
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

u
s
e

rs
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

; 
- 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 W

if
i 
in

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 f

le
x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 m
o
b

ile
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
d
e

v
ic

e
s
 (

s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

);
 

- 
B

Y
O

D
 (

B
ri
n

g
 y

o
u

r 
o
w

n
 d

e
v
ic

e
) 

s
o

lu
ti
o
n
 

e
n

a
b

lin
g
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
e
d

 o
n
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
ic

e
s
 (

i.
e

. 
S

m
a

rt
P

h
o
n

e
, 
ta

b
le

ts
, 

iP
a

d
s
, 

la
p

to
p

s
) 

–
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

p
o

lic
y
. 

 

S
ta

ff
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 

 -V
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 a
n

d
 

2
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
 a

 c
o

u
n

c
il-

w
id

e
 p

a
y
 c

u
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 o

f 
1

%
 

In
s
is

t 
s
o
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 g
o

 p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 a

n
d

/o
r 

3
 d

a
y
 w

e
e

k
. 

H
ig

h
ly

 u
n

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 g

e
t 

T
ra

d
e

 U
n

io
n

 o
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

c
h

 a
 m

e
a

s
u

re
, 
s
o

 w
o

u
ld

 
re

q
u

ir
e

 i
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
, 

w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u

ld
 d

a
m

a
g
e

 
in

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
a
 t

im
e

 w
h

e
n
 s

ta
ff

 m
o

ra
le

 
is

 k
e

y
 a

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
a

n
a

g
e

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

.  

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 3

 d
a

y
s
 u

n
p

a
id

 l
e

a
v
e

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
. 

S
ta

ff
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 
n

e
e
d

 t
h
e

m
 r

e
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 
h

a
v
e

 3
 d

a
y
s
 u

n
p

a
id

 l
e
a

v
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 p
la

c
e
 

Page 51



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

6
 

 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 a

 r
e
d
u

c
in

g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 t

e
a

m
s
 m

o
re

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

 
m

o
n
e

y
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
d

e
a

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t
o

 d
o

 
th

is
 –

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e
e

d
 t
h

e
 ‘
B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

’ 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 g

iv
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 (
a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
) 

th
e

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 f

e
e

d
 i
n
 

s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
m

 q
u

ic
k
ly

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 
to

 b
y
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
U

s
e
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
u

e
ls

 i
n
 o

u
r 

a
g
ri

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 (

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

e
d
 

d
ie

s
e

l)
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
in

g
 a

u
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
h
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 

th
is

 a
re

a
. 

 R
e
d

 d
ie

s
e

l 
is

 b
e

in
g
 u

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

2
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 s

a
v
e

 m
o

n
e

y
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
lly

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

 B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

w
h

it
e

 d
ie

s
e

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
£

1
.1

4
 

p
e

r 
lit

re
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
d

 d
ie

s
e

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
£
0

.6
6

 p
e

r 
lit

re
 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 o

n
 a

 y
e

a
rl
y
 u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

9
8
7

1
7
 l
it
re

s
 i
s
 

£
4

7
,3

8
5
.0

0
. 
W

it
h

 s
ix

th
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a
 

s
a

v
in

g
 o

f 
£
2

3
,6

9
3
 i
n
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
 

W
it
h

d
ra

w
 m

o
b

ile
 p

h
o
n
e

s
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rk
s
 e

tc
. 
a

n
d
 

re
v
e

rt
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 u

s
e

 o
f 

w
a

lk
ie

-t
a

lk
ie

s
. 

N
o
t 

d
e
e

m
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 n

o
r 

w
o

u
ld

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 (

th
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 s
a

v
in

g
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

p
h

o
n

e
 c

o
s
ts

 b
u

t 
c
o

s
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 
e

ls
e
w

h
e

re
).

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
 s

a
fe

ty
 k

it
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
 p

la
in

 o
v
e

ra
lls

 i
n

s
te

a
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 m

o
v
e

 w
h

ic
h
 c

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

’ 
h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
d

v
is

e
d

. 

Page 52



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

7
 

 

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
U

s
e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 t
o

 s
p

o
n

s
o

r 
p
a

rk
s
 s

o
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
. 

T
h
e

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

e
a

m
 a

re
 

s
h

o
rt

ly
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

 b
ra

n
d

 n
e

w
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
.  

W
h
ile

 s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h
ip

 o
f 

p
a

rk
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
a

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 a

 w
id

e
r 

in
c
o

m
e

 
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
p
o

n
s
o

rs
h
ip

 o
f 

o
u

r 
fl
e
e

t 
o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

la
m

p
-p

o
s
t 
b

a
n
n

e
rs

, 
b

u
s
 

s
h

e
lt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 l
a

rg
e

r 
p
o

s
te

r 
s
it
e

s
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

 
m

o
re

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 t
h

a
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 b

o
tt
o

m
 l
in

e
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
p

o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 c
h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 r
e
ta

in
. 

N
o
t 

b
e

in
g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
In

tr
o
d
u

c
e

 a
 n

o
m

in
a

l 
c
h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
re

q
u
e

s
ts

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 
g
ra

s
s
 a

n
d

 g
la

s
s
. 

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
P

ri
v
a

ti
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
s
t 

c
o
n

tr
o

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

N
o
t 

b
e

in
g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
R

e
m

o
v
e

 s
p
o

t-
lig

h
ts

 i
n
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
o

lv
in

g
 d

o
o

rs
 a

t 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
v
o

lv
in

g
 d

o
o

r 
s
p
a

c
e

 a
n
d

 f
lo

o
r 

a
re

a
 i
s
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
 s

a
fe

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

is
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

. 
A

s
s
e

t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

 w
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
b

o
u

t 
tu

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 o
ff

 u
n

le
s
s
 s

e
n

s
o

rs
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 

re
ta

in
e
d

 a
t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s
. 

 

 T
h
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
d
e

s
k
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 c

a
n

 b
e
 t

u
rn

e
d

 o
ff

 b
u

t 
it
 

w
ill

 r
e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 l
o

w
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 

in
 f

ro
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 d
e

s
k
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 t
h
e

 b
a

c
k
 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
re

s
t 

a
n

d
 h

e
n

c
e

 

m
a

k
e
 i
t 

le
s
s
 p

ro
m

in
e

n
t.

  

Page 53



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

8
 

 

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
R

e
m

o
v
e

 s
p
o

t-
lig

h
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
(B

a
rk

in
g
) 

re
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
. 
 

T
h
e

 r
e
a

s
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 o

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
re

e
n

 b
ri
d

g
e

 a
s
 o

p
p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e
 i
s
 d

u
e

 

to
 i
t 

b
e

in
g
 m

a
d

e
 o

f 
g
la

s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 l
ig

h
ts

 a
re

 f
ib

re
 

o
p

ti
c
s
. 

A
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e

lie
v
e

s
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 

d
e

g
ra

d
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
.  

A
 t

e
s
t 
w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 w

a
ll 

b
e

h
in

d
 t
h

e
 

re
c
e

p
ti
o
n

, 
tu

rn
in

g
 i
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 o
ff

 r
e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n
 a

 

v
e

ry
 d

a
rk

 a
re

a
. 

 T
h
e

 w
a

ll 
is

 l
it
 b

y
 T

5
 f

lu
o

re
s
c
e
n

t 

tu
b

e
s
, 

w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 f

a
ir
ly

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

b
u

t 
m

o
re

 t
u
b

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 o

u
t 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

th
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

lig
h

ti
n

g
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 p

le
a

s
e

 n
o
te

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 w

a
ll 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 u
s
e

 a
ll 

th
e
 

tu
b

e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 u
s
e
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 i
t 

w
ill

 c
a

u
s
e

 a
 p

a
tc

h
y
 e

ff
e

c
t 

a
n

d
 h

e
n

c
e

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

v
e

ry
 a

e
s
th

e
ti
c
a

lly
 p

le
a
s
in

g
. 

T
h
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
s
k
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 i
s
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
a

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

.  

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
W

h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 l
e

a
s
e

s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
?

 
W

h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 S

to
u

r 
R

o
a
d

?
 

T
h
e
 e

s
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 

th
e
  
fo

llo
w

in
g

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 –

 

B
ri
d
g
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 –

 l
e
a
s
e
 e

x
p

ir
e
s
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 

C
ro

w
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 –

 l
e
a
s
e
 e

x
p

ir
e
s
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4

 

M
a
ri
ti
m

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 –

 l
e
a
s
e

 e
x
p
ir

e
s
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5

 

Page 54



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

9
 

 

2
 S

to
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 –

 t
o
 b

e
 v

a
c
a
te

d
/ 

c
lo

s
e
d
 b

y
 0

4
/1

4
 

9
0
 S

to
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 –

 t
o
 b

e
 v

a
c
a
te

d
/c

lo
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

4
/1

4
 

A
t 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ti
m

e
 S

to
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 a

c
ts

 a
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

R
o
y
c
ra

ft
 H

o
u
s
e
 b

e
 i
n
 a

n
y
 w

a
y
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
S

to
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 w
a
y
 w

a
s
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
th

is
 m

o
n
th

 a
ft

e
r 

a
 f

lo
o
d
 

in
 R

o
y
c
ra

ft
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
, 
th

e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 d

o
e
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 a

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 s

it
e
.  

S
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 c
lo

s
e
 S

to
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 b

e
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
, 
th

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 v
e
n
u
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l.
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
P

re
v
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 c
h
a

rg
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
m

o
b

ile
 p

h
o

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
ic

e
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 d

e
s
k
s
 a

t 
w

o
rk

. 
M

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

h
o

n
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
o

b
ile

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 n
o

t 

c
h

a
rg

in
g
 a

 p
h

o
n

e
 t
h

e
 u

n
it
s
 u

s
e
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o

 0
w

. 
  

T
h
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

a
 m

o
b

ile
 f

ro
m

 a
 

s
o

c
k
e

t 
ra

n
g
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

ir
c
a
 3

0
0

m
A

 –
 

1
8

0
0

m
A

 m
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
b
o

u
t 
1

 a
m

p
. 

 I
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
p
o

w
e

r 
u
s
e

 1
 a

m
p

 e
q
u

a
te

s
 t

o
 c

ir
c
a
 2

3
0

 

W
a
tt
s
 s

o
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 a

 1
0
0

0
m

A
 p

h
o

n
e

 f
o

r 
1
 h

o
u

r 

w
o

u
ld

 u
s
e

 0
.2

3
k
W

h
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
. 

  

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

d
a

y
 t

a
ri
ff

 f
o

r 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 

H
a
ll 

is
 £

0
.0

5
9

7
6

 p
e

r 
k
W

h
 s

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

Page 55



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
0

 

 

c
h

a
rg

in
g
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
) 

o
n

e
 m

o
b

ile
 p

h
o
n

e
 f
o

r 
1

 

h
o

u
r 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
ir
c
a
 1

.4
p

. 
 O

f 
c
o
u

rs
e
 i
t 
d

o
e

s
 a

ll 

a
d

d
 u

p
 s

o
 1

0
0

 s
im

ila
r 

p
h

o
n

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 

fo
r 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 £

2
.8

0
 

a
n

d
 i
f 

th
is

 h
a

p
p

e
n

s
 f

o
r 

2
6

0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r 

it
 w

ill
 c

o
s
t 

u
s
 c

ir
c
a

 £
7

2
8

.0
0

 

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a

te
ly

, 
tr

y
in

g
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

m
o
b

ile
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
m

o
b

ile
s
 w

ill
 

p
ro

v
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
in

im
a
l 
s
o

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
d

e
a
 

a
re

 g
o

o
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t  

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
in

k
 

th
is

 i
s
 v

ia
b

le
 i
n
 t

h
is

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

C
o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d
 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 i
n

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 
c
ri
ti
q
u

e
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 
a

ll 
s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

re
 b

ri
e
fi
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 t

e
a

m
s
 a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 t

h
e

y
 m

ig
h

t.
 

   

A
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
B

ri
e
fi
n

g
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e

n
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 r
u
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

p
o

s
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 

fr
o
m

 H
R

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 m

o
re

 

w
id

e
ly

. 

A
 “

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 S

ta
ff

 i
n
 T

o
u

g
h

 T
im

e
s
” 

le
a
fl
e
t 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

re
-t

ra
in

in
g
, 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
h
e

lp
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

th
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 

v
a

ry
in

g
 s

ta
g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
a

t 
ri
s
k
’ 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

W
h
e
n
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 c

a
n

 w
e

 t
e

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

b
o

u
t 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

m
?

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 d
e

p
e
n

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 –

 

s
o

m
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 

Page 56



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
1

 

 F
o
ru

m
 1

 
e

a
rl
ie

r 
th

a
n

 o
th

e
rs

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 

u
n

d
u

e
 a

la
rm

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

e
s
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 –

 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 s
tr

e
s
s
e

d
 t
h

is
 p

o
in

t.
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

W
e
lc

o
m

e
d

 t
h
e

 ‘
B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

’ 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

u
c
h

 
b

e
tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r:

 b
u

t 
w

a
n

te
d
 t

o
 k

n
o

w
 h

o
w

 q
u

ic
k
ly

 i
d

e
a

s
 a

re
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

e
d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
.  

T
h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t@
lb

b
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 e

m
a

il 
is

 t
o
ta

lly
 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a

l 
(o

n
ly

 1
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 k

n
o

w
s
 w

h
o

 

s
e

n
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

s
 o

r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
).

 

A
n

y
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
, 

q
u

e
ri
e

s
 o

r 
a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 

s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

n
o
n

y
m

is
e
d

 a
n
d

 s
e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

r 
fo

r 
a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
 w

ill
 v

a
ry

 d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
.  

T
h

is
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 v
ia

 e
m

a
il 

o
r 

b
y
 p

h
o

n
e

 i
f 

th
e

 

s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
c
o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 e

m
a

il.
 P

h
o
n

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a

l.
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

W
h
y
 w

a
s
 a

 G
M

 p
o

s
t 
d
e

le
te

d
 i
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 f
ill

e
d

 
u

s
in

g
 a

n
 a

g
e
n

c
y
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 s

o
m

e
 t
im

e
 l
a

te
r?

 
T

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 e
n

d
e
a

v
o

u
re

d
 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 i
n

to
 

th
is

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r.
 

O
n

 o
c
c
a

s
io

n
, 
if
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 p

re
s
s
in

g
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e

d
, 

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
h

e
lp

 f
o

r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 
 

T
h

is
 o

n
ly

 h
a

p
p

e
n

s
 i
f 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 o

n
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

Page 57



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
2

 

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
k
ill

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
. 

T
h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
e

w
 Y

e
a

r 
in

 a
n

y
 

e
v
e

n
t.
 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

H
o
w

 m
u

c
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a
x
 i
s
 u

n
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o
u

ld
 w

e
 n

o
t 

re
d

u
c
e

 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
o
 s

a
v
e

 b
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
.  

H
is

to
ri
c
a

lly
 o

u
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 l
e

v
e

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

, 
b

u
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 o
n

 

a
 s

te
a

d
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

. 
 

F
o
r 

th
e

 l
a

s
t 
fu

ll 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h
 w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 r
a
te

s
 o

f 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
, 

9
4

%
 o

f 
C

T
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
. 

It
 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 m

o
re

 C
T

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
, 

th
e

 

b
e

tt
e

r 
o
u

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
. 

T
h
a

t’
s
 w

h
y
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 t

a
s
k
e

d
 E

le
v
a

te
 w

it
h

 m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

W
h
e
n
 d

o
e

s
 t
h

e
 ‘
B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h
a

lle
n

g
e

’ 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri
o

d
 e

n
d
?

 
T

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 o

u
r 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

fi
n
is

h
e

s
 o

n
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

3
0

th
. 

It
’s

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

to
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
a

t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 o

u
r 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 b

y
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 s

h
o
u

ld
 t
h

e
y
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t.

 T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 t
w

o
 d

is
ti
n
c
t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

Page 58



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
3

 

 S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
- 

v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 1

 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 s
ta

ff
 b

e
 t

o
ld

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 m

a
k
e

?
 

T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

O
n

c
e

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 r

e
a

c
h
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
, 
th

e
s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 k

e
y
 r

o
le

 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n

 

b
ri
e

fi
n

g
 t

e
a
m

s
 p

ro
p

e
rl
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

e
tt

in
g
 

th
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 d

o
 

th
is

.  

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 2

 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c
u

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 B

N
P

 s
y
m

p
a

th
ie

s
. 

T
h
e

 C
E

x
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 d
id

 n
o

t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 o
f 

p
a

rt
y
 p

o
lit

ic
s
, 

b
u
t 

a
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

c
u

ts
. 

S
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 2

 

T
h
e

 C
e

n
s
u

s
 s

h
o

w
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

a
p

id
ly

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

 a
re

 
w

e
 l
o

b
b

y
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 c

a
s
h

?
 

Y
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d
e

r 
lia

is
e
s
 w

it
h

 C
L

G
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
 (

a
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 o

n
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 s

h
o

w
s
).

 

A
 n

e
w

 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 E
ri
c
 P

ic
k
le

s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 w
/c

 

3
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
a
s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

C
e

n
s
u

s
 2

0
1
1
 d

a
ta

. 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
–

 v
ia

 C
E

x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 2

 

W
h
y
 n

o
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
?

 I
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 p

a
y
 

m
o

re
. 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
d
e

 a
 m

a
n

if
e

s
to

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t.

 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 C

T
 w

o
u

ld
 h

it
 t

h
e
 p

o
o

re
s
t 
m

o
re

 –
 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 C

T
 

b
e

in
g
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
t.

 

S
ta

ff
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
W

h
y
 s

h
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

 T
h

u
rr

o
c
k
?
 W

h
y
 n

o
t 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 

W
e
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 s

h
a

re
 a

 l
e
g
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
 C

E
x
, 

Page 59



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
4

 

 –
 v

ia
 C

E
x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 2

 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
?
 

s
o

 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 l
o
g
ic

 i
n
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

is
 f
u

rt
h
e

r.
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 i
n

 T
h
u

rr
o

c
k
 a

n
d

 L
B

B
D

.  

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 e
m

a
il 

 V
ia

 L
e
a

d
e

r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

. 
T

h
e

 L
e

a
d
e

r 
w

ro
te

 t
o

 t
h
e

 B
o
u

n
d
a

ry
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o

r 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

a
s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
L
B

B
D

 c
o

u
ld

 d
o

 t
h

is
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

lo
c
a

l 
d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
. 

 
 B

C
fE

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

 t
h

a
t 

B
&

D
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
o

v
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 
(i
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
s
t 
w

it
h

 L
B

 o
f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
h

e
re

 a
 

re
v
ie

w
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
o

s
e
d

 b
y
 B

C
fE

).
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 e
m

a
il  

R
e
d

u
c
e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 o
n

 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
s
p

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 m

a
rk

e
d

ly
 t

o
 j
u

s
t 
2

k
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

la
s
t 
fi
n
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 
 A

t 
th

e
 D

e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 T

im
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 

2
2

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 C
llr

. 
G

ill
 m

a
d

e
 c

le
a

r 
th

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 v

ie
w

 t
h

a
t  

n
e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

n
d

 c
o
u

ld
 l
e
a

rn
 E

n
g
lis

h
. 

N
o
t 

o
n

ly
 i
s
 t

h
is

 r
ig

h
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
h

e
s
io

n
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 

jo
b

 p
ro

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

d
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–
 

V
ia

 e
m

a
il 

O
n

e
 f
e

m
a

le
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
u

ts
 t
o

 
o

ld
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 s

w
im

m
in

g
. 

N
o
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 e

x
is

t 
–

 t
h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 s

e
e

 a
s
 a

 t
o
p

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 g
ro

u
p

s
 m

u
s
t 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 L
Q

T
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e

s
 t

o
 

Page 60



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
5

 

 v
ia

 e
m

a
il 

   A
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e

  

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 e

a
c
h

 o
th

e
r 

to
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
A

S
B

. 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

c
u

t-
b

a
c
k
s
 m

ig
h

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 a
n

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 A
S

B
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

o
. 

 

p
u

t 
h

e
r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 t
h

e
re

, 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 g
e

t 
a
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

. 
  C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h

 r
a
is

e
d

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 

ta
k
e

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 A

S
B

 –
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h

 
a

s
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p
la

c
e
d

 b
e

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e
. 

R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 F
a
c
e

b
o

o
k
 

B
a

n
 p

a
rk

in
g
 e

v
e

ry
w

h
e

re
! 

N
o
t 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 –

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 d
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 p
a
rk

 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 C

P
Z

s
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 e
m

a
il  

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 C
P

Z
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

c
o
m

e
, 
e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n

 C
h

a
d

w
e

ll 
H

e
a

th
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 c
a

r 
p
a

rk
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
te

rs
.  

 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 n
e

v
e

r 
in

tr
o
d
u

c
e

 C
P

Z
s
 a

s
 a

 
m

e
a
n

s
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e
. 

 
 P

a
rk

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
C

h
a

d
w

e
ll 

H
e
a

th
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
a
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r  

  A
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

S
c
ra

p
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

ts
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

’s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 C
E

x
 U

n
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 v
e

ry
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

y
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 c

a
n

 
a

n
d

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

e
a

d
-c

o
u

n
t.
 

 C
o
n

s
u

l t
a
n

t 
n
u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 v
e

ry
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

2
/3

 y
e

a
rs

 –
 C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 

th
a

t 
w

h
e

re
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 
n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 
o

c
c
a

s
io

n
a

lly
 b

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
, 
b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 m
u

c
h

 
a

n
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

. 
   

Page 61



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
6

 

 R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

 A
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
 f
o

r 
s
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
e

 C
E

x
 

L
B

B
D

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

s
a

la
ry

 o
f 

a
n

y
 C

E
x
 i
n

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
n
d

 i
n

d
e

e
d

, 
w

e
 a

re
 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 

th
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
th

a
t 

s
h

a
re

s
 a

 C
E

x
 w

it
h

 a
 n

o
n

-
L

o
n
d

o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 S

a
la

ri
e

s
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 f

ro
z
e
n

, 
w

h
ile

 t
h

e
ir
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
u

t.
 

 M
o

re
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 o

n
 c

u
tt
in

g
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
 w

ill
 

b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
b
e
fo

re
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
e

w
 Y

e
a

r,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
h

a
re

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
m

o
d

e
l 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

 A
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

A
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
e
a

d
c
o

u
n

t 
b

y
 c

4
0

0
 (

a
s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 ‘
B

&
D

 P
o

s
t’
) 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

it
 –

 a
s
 m

a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

d
o

.  
 W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

o
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n
c
e

 
m

u
s
t 
b

e
 s

tr
u
c
k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 c

a
n
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
in

g
 s

u
re

 
o

u
r 

fr
o
n
t -

lin
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 a

s
 g

o
o
d

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 T
h
e

 C
E

x
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 
h

e
 i
s
 k

e
e
n

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
ir
 ‘
tr

a
n

s
fe

ra
b

le
 s

k
ill

s
’ 
a

s
 a

 
m

e
a
n

s
 f
o

r 
p
o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 d

is
p
la

c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f

u
tu

re
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

s
p
e

c
ts

 –
 e

it
h
e

r 
in

s
id

e
 o

r 
o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 D
e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

o
t-

h
o

le
s
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
e
d

-b
u

m
p

s
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(C
llr

. 
M

c
C

a
rt

h
y
) 

h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d
 a

 h
ig

h
-p

ro
fi
le

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 c

a
lle

d
 ‘
S

a
v
e

 
O

u
r 

S
tr

e
e
ts

’ 
c
a

lli
n
g
 o

n
 c

e
n

tr
a
l 
G

o
v
t 

to
 i
n

v
e

s
t 

m
o

re
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 r

o
a

d
s
.  

 

Page 62



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
7

 

      

£
5

 m
ill

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 m

o
n

th
s
, 

b
u

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

, 
h

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 

w
h

ic
h
 C

llr
. 

M
c
C

a
rt

h
y
 a

n
d

 w
a

rd
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 
h

o
p
e

 t
o
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
a

r.
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 D

e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 D
e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 D
e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

W
h
y
 d

o
 w

e
 m

a
k
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

le
c
ti
o

n
 s

ta
ff

 (
e
.g

. 
th

e
 E

R
O

)?
 

T
h
e

 C
E

x
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

m
a

d
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

b
e
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

th
e

 g
o
o

d
 c

o
n

d
u
c
t 

o
f 

a
n

 e
le

c
ti
o
n

. 
 If

 t
h
e

re
 a

re
 e

rr
o

rs
, 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 r

is
k
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
b

u
t 

fa
lls

 u
p

o
n
 t

h
e

 E
R

O
 

p
e

rs
o
n
a

lly
. 

 
 T

h
e

 r
a
te

s
 a

re
 g

o
v
e

rn
e
d

 b
y
 e

le
c
to

ra
l 
la

w
. 

S
o

m
e

 
E

R
O

s
 t

a
k
e
 t

h
e

m
, 

o
th

e
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t.
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 D
e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

W
h
y
 d

o
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
o

 m
a

n
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
?

 L
e

t’
s
 c

lo
s
e

 t
h

e
 

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 s

a
v
e

 c
o

s
ts

. 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 i
t 

u
s
e

s
. 
S

ta
ff

 a
re

 b
e

in
g
 m

o
v
e

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
n

to
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 

A
s
 l
e

a
s
e

s
 e

x
p

ir
e

, 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
th

e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

Page 63



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
8

 

 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
s
 b

o
th

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 –

 
d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 t
a

k
e

 t
im

e
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 
v
ia

 L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
e

le
c
te

d
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 –
 w

h
y
 s

o
 m

a
n

y
?

 
S

e
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 T

h
e

 L
e

a
d
e

r 
h
a

s
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
u
n

d
a

ry
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

is
 m

a
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 
re

s
p

o
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 s

ta
ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
L

B
B

D
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 
to

o
 m

a
n

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

 T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
e

t 
lo

c
a

lly
 –

 
o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 m

a
y
 j
u

d
g
e

 t
h
is

 
m

a
tt
e

r.
 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

C
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
im

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
lo

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 B

&
D

, 
n

o
t 

ju
s
t 
fr

o
m

 i
m

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 o
v
e

rs
e
a

s
, 

b
u

t 
a

ls
o
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 r

e
-l
o
c
a

ti
n

g
 

th
e

ir
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

s
 i
n

to
 c

h
e

a
p
e

r 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l,
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 B

&
D

. 
 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

W
h
y
 c

a
n

’t
 w

e
 s

h
a

re
 m

o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 a

 c
o

u
n
c
il?

 
C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

h
a

re
d

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

w
it
h

 T
h

u
rr

o
c
k
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 o
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
h

a
ri
n

g
 a

 l
e
g
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 C

E
x
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 

O
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 T

e
a
m

 w
it
h

 L
B

 o
f 

H
a

v
e

ri
n

g
. 

 W
ill

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
s
h

a
ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

c
a

n
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
t i
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 A
d
u

lt
 C

o
lle

g
e

 M
u
s
ic

 C
e
n

tr
e
?

 –
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 a

 r
e
a

l 
s
h
a

m
e

 i
f 

th
is

 w
a

s
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e

.  
C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
u
s
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e

.  
 

Page 64



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

1
9

 

 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 h

e
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
ru

le
 o

u
t 
th

is
 b

e
in

g
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

t 
in

 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
, 

b
u

t 
h

e
 w

a
s
 c

le
a

r 
th

is
 

w
a

s
 a

 w
e

ll 
u

s
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

re
g
a

rd
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 R

iv
e

rs
id

e
 –

 w
h

a
t 

is
 h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 h

e
re

?
 

C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 d
e

la
y
s
 

s
te

m
m

in
g
 f

ro
m

 B
e

llw
a

y
’s

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

 s
lo

w
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 b
e

lie
v
e

s
 B

a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e

rs
id

e
 i
s
 a

 
g
re

a
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 a

re
a

. 
 H

e
 w

o
u

ld
 l
o
o

k
 i
n

to
 w

h
a

t 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
T

im
e
 

W
h
y
 i
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 s

o
 m

u
c
h

 d
e

b
t?

 W
h
a
t 

a
re

 o
u

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
?

 
W

h
y
 a

re
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

o
 m

u
c
h
 w

o
rs

e
 h

e
re

 t
h
a

n
 i
n
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 H

a
v
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 R
e
d

b
ri
d

g
e

?
 

C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 p
o

in
te

d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

in
 

d
e

b
t 
a

s
 m

a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 O
u

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 a

re
 £

1
4

-1
5

 m
ill

io
n

 –
 b

u
t 
th

e
s
e

 
c
a

n
’t
 j
u

s
t 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 o
n

e
 o

ff
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
s
e

s
 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 e

ro
d

e
d

. 
U

s
in

g
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 d
e
b

t 
is

 n
o

t 
w

is
e
. 

 B
&

D
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

it
 h

a
rd

e
r 

th
a

n
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
le

a
fy

’ 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 –

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

is
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 
p

o
lit

ic
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

. 

T
ra

d
e

 U
n

io
n

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
(U

N
IS

O
N

, 
U

n
it
e

, 
G

M
B

) 

T
h
e

 r
e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
d

e
 u

n
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 t

o
 G

ra
h

a
m

 
F

a
rr

a
n

t 
(l
e

tt
e

r 
d
a

te
d

 2
9
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r)

 o
u

tl
in

in
g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 r
e
g
a

rd
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

A
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
o

rm
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
E

x
 a

n
d

 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 E
J
C

C
. 

    

Page 65



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
0

 

  
P

a
rt

 T
w

o
 –

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
 o

n
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 (

s
e

n
t 

to
 ‘

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 o

n
ly

) 
 A

C
S

 S
A

V
 0

1
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s

io
n

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 

T
e
a

m
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

 &
  

C
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 v
ia

 c
o
m

m
e
n

t 
o
n

 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

rm
 f
o

r 
D

e
p

u
ty

 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 T

im
e

 

D
o
e

s
 n

o
t 

s
e
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
h

e
s
io

n
 

te
a
m

 –
 b

e
lie

v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
if
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
g
iv

e
n

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 d
o

 a
n
d

 j
o

b
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

 ‘
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 t

e
a

m
’  

S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d
 t

h
is

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 

 M
e

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 w

a
s
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
e

d
 i
f 

s
h

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

, 
b

u
t 
d

e
c
lin

e
d

 a
s
 s

h
e

 h
a
d

 
a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 D
L

Q
T

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
4

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

 t
o

 d
ru

g
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 

u
s
e

rs
 

N
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e
s

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 v
ia

 ‘
B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
’ 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
5

 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

 &
 

C
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

C
o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

if
 y

o
u

th
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

c
u

t,
 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 w

id
e

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
 f

o
rm

a
. 

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
jo

in
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 
H

a
v
e

ri
n

g
. 

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n
 L

B
B

D
 Y

O
S

 T
e

a
m

 
–

 a
n
d

 m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 t
h

e
 L

B
H

a
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
6

 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

e
s

ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 C
h

a
n

n
e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

a
tt
e

n
d

in
g
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

R
a
is

e
d

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 a

t 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 e
x
p

ir
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
 S

e
le

c
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
 f

o
rm

a
 (

i.
e
. 

re
ta

in
in

g
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

Page 66



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
1

 

   R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
 R

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
u

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

s
ts

 m
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 g
ra

n
t)

. 
 A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 v

ia
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 (

P
H

 g
ra

n
t)

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
7

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c

to
r 

G
ra

n
ts

 
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

 &
  

C
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

B
&

D
 C

V
S

 
- 

V
ia

 D
e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
T

 
      R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
–

 v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

    B
a

rk
in

g
 &

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 F

o
ru

m
 

     R
A

M
F

E
L

 –
 v

ia
 l
e
tt
e

r 
to

 
A

n
n

e
 B

ri
s
to

w
 o

n
 3

0
 

N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r  

 

B
&

D
 C

V
S

 l
o
b

b
ie

d
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 o
n

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

ia
 a

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

V
S

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

 C
E

x
 s

p
o

k
e

. 
 T

h
e

 C
E

O
 o

f 
B

&
D

 C
V

S
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e

d
 t
h

e
 

D
e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

to
 l
o
o

k
 a

g
a

in
 a

t 
th

is
 a

t 
th

e
 

D
e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

 T
im

e
. 

  R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
e
d

 c
u

tt
in

g
 a

ll 
g
ra

n
ts

 
to

 l
o

c
a

l 
o

r g
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

rg
u

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

m
o

n
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

. 
 

  L
e

tt
e

r 
s
e
n

t 
b

y
 e

m
a

il 
–

 t
h

e
 D

E
F

 i
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o

f 
it
s
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

w
ill

 r
e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 I
n

t ’
l 
D

a
y
 o

f 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 P

e
o
p

le
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
ta

lly
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 l
o

c
a

lly
.  

  R
A

M
F

E
L

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t(

s
) 

s
e

rv
in

g
 t

h
e

 B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

 R
A

M
F

E
L

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 L

B
B

D
 C

E
X

 

S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 £
1
2

0
k
 t
o

 £
1

1
0

k
. 

 D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

V
S

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 
s
h

a
p
e

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
    R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
s
ta

te
d

 s
h

e
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 S

a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
e
r 

S
e

le
c
t 

C
tt

e
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

rd
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e

s
 a

t 
th

is
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.  

   L
e

tt
e

r 
s
e
n

t 
b

y
 A

n
n
e

 B
ri
s
to

w
 o

n
 4

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 m
a

k
e

s
 c

le
a

r 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

b
y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
G

o
v
t 

s
p

e
n
d

in
g
 c

u
ts

. 
 P

la
c
e

s
 o

n
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 D

E
F

. 
  R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 b

e
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d
 b

y
 A

C
S

. 
   

Page 67



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
2

 

         B
&

D
 C

V
S

 –
 v

ia
 l
e
tt

e
r 

to
 C

llr
. 

G
ill

 o
n

 1
3

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
a
n

d
 

a
ls

o
 t

o
 A

n
n

e
 B

ri
s
to

w
 o

n
 3

0
 

N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r  

(c
o
p

ie
d

 t
o

 S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
) 

                  

s
k
e

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

b
y
 s

ta
ti
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
ly

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

it
iz

e
n

 A
d

v
ic

e
 

B
u

re
a
u

 a
n
d

 C
V

S
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g
. 

 
 R

A
M

F
E

L
 b

e
lie

v
e

s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 f

o
ra

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 c
o
h

e
s
io

n
. 

  A
rg

u
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
is

 b
e

in
g
 

u
n
fa

ir
ly

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 f
o

r 
c
u
ts

.  
 A

rg
u

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
c
ru

e
d

 f
ro

m
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 g
ra

n
ts

 w
e

re
 m

e
a
n

t 
to

 b
e

 r
in

g
-

fe
n

c
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
C

V
S

, 
b

u
t 

th
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
.  

 A
 s

tr
o
n

g
 C

V
S

 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
s
.  

 C
u
ts

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
C

V
S

 t
o

 
le

v
e

r 
in

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

u
ts

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

C
V

S
 c

a
n
 g

iv
e

 t
o

 l
o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

a
in

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 s

e
c
u

ri
n

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 e

ls
e
w

h
e

re
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 m

a
k
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 
‘h

e
a

rd
 t
o

 r
e
a

c
h

’ 
g
ro

u
p

s
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
.  

 

        R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 s
e
n

t 
(u

n
d

a
te

d
) 

fr
o
m

 C
llr

. 
G

ill
. 

 R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 n
o

te
s
 t
h

a
t 

B
&

D
 C

V
S

 h
a

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 L
B

B
D

’s
 

c
a

ll 
fo

r 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 G
ra

n
ts

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 t
h

is
 i
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

. 
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 n
o

te
s
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

 2
0
1

2
. 

 R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h

a
t 
A

C
S

/S
A

V
/0

7
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
b
e

 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
p
e

n
d

in
g
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b
e

 s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 o

w
in

g
 

to
 H

M
G

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
c
u
ts

. 
            

Page 68



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
3

 

     B
&

D
 F

a
it
h

 F
o

ru
m

 –
 v

ia
 

le
tt

e
r 

to
 A

n
n

e
 B

ri
s
to

w
 o

n
 3

0
 

N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

(s
e
n
t 

b
y
 P

a
u

la
 

W
a
ts

o
n

)  
  S

ic
k
le

 C
e

ll/
T

h
a

la
s
s
a

e
m

ia
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
 B

D
H

 (
s
e

n
t 

b
y
 M

s
. 

S
h

o
e

ta
n

, 
2

9
 

N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r)

 
  B

&
D

 C
it
iz

e
n

’s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 

B
u

re
a
u

 (
le

tt
e

r 
s
e

n
t 
o

n
 2

9
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
b
y
 D

e
n

n
is

 R
ile

y
, 

C
h
a

ir
 o

f 
B

&
D

C
A

B
).

 L
e

tt
e

r 
w

a
s
 s

e
n

t 
to

 C
llr

. 
M

u
lla

n
e

, 
a

s
 

C
h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 S

S
S

C
. 

          

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

u
ts

 m
a

k
e
 a

 t
in

y
 d

e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

la
rg

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t.

 
  R

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

s
u

g
g
e

s
ts

 a
 c

u
t 

in
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 F

o
ru

m
, 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 o

u
tr

ig
h

t 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o
f 

a
ll 

fu
n
d

in
g
. 

   C
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r.
 

   W
id

e
-r

a
n

g
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 o

n
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
g
ra

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
fr

o
m

 B
&

D
 C

A
B

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ile
 t

h
e

 c
u

ts
 t
o

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 m

o
d

e
s
t 
w

h
e

n
 

s
e

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 t

o
ta

lit
y
 o

f 
c
u

ts
, 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.

  
 T

h
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
a
rg

u
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 c

u
tt

in
g
 g

ra
n

ts
 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

t 
a

 t
im

e
 w

h
e

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

a
re

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 o

w
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 

w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 

le
g
a

l 
a

id
 r

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 d
e
fi
c
it
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
e

s
 –

 a
s
 a

 c
o

ro
lla

ry
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

e
e
d

. 

    R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 s
e
n

t 
o
n

 0
4

 D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 p
o

in
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
v
e

re
 

b
u

d
g
e

ta
ry

 c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

t 
fa

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n
d

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 B
&

D
 F

a
it
h

 F
o

ru
m

’s
 w

o
rk

. 
   R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 s
e
n

t 
o
n

 0
4

 D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 n

o
t 
m

a
k
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

y
 c

h
o

ic
e
. 

P
o

in
ts

 o
u

t 
th

a
t  
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
o

s
e

 w
it
h

 s
ic

k
le

 c
e

ll 
d

is
e

a
s
e

. 
  R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 s
e
n

t 
b

y
 C

llr
. 

M
u
lla

n
e

 o
n

 2
9

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 
 L

e
tt
e

r 
s
ta

te
s
: -

 
 T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

re
ta

in
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 w

e
 c

a
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

.  
T

h
is

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
m

e
a
n

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

w
e

 w
ill

 n
o

 l
o

n
g
e

r 
fu

n
d

 a
re

 n
o
t 

v
a

lu
e

d
. 
It

 i
s
 s

im
p

ly
 t

h
a

t 

w
e

 c
a

n
n

o
t 
a
ff

o
rd

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.  

F
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
a

s
o

n
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

o
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
, 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 

th
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 b

y
 m

o
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 

Page 69



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
4

 

                                 

                                

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
a
 G

e
n

e
ra

lis
t 

A
d

v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 

£
1

9
6

,5
0
0

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r.

  
It
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 b

e
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 t
o
 £

1
8

5
,0

0
0
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 H

a
te

 I
n

c
id

e
n

t/
C

ri
m

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
a

s
e

 

W
o
rk

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
p
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 h
a

te
 

in
c
id

e
n

t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n
d

 r
e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

lis
t 

a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

  /2
 

A
t 

th
e

 S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

a
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 i
n
v
e

s
t 

th
e

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

 i
n

 o
u

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 t
o
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

If
 a

g
re

e
d

 

a
t 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 1

9
th

 D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 i
t 

w
ill

 m
e

a
n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a

lu
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

£
1

9
5

,0
0
0

 f
o

r 
a
 G

e
n
e

ra
lis

t 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 H
a

te
 

In
c
id

e
n

t/
C

ri
m

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
a

s
e

 W
o
rk

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

g
a

in
 a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

a
n

d
 i
t 
s
e

e
m

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
o
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 b

e
 

g
a

in
e

d
 f

ro
m

 b
ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
in

to
 o

n
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
 

e
v
e

n
 w

id
e

r 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 W
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 L

e
g
a

l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 l
o

s
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
it
s
 f

u
n

d
in

g
, 
o

th
e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

th
is

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
o

u
ld

 e
n

a
b

le
 m

o
re

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 

a
 v

ia
b

le
, 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
n

 m
o

re
, 
s
m

a
lle

r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 o
ff

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 t
e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

r 
c
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 t
o

 

Page 70



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
5

 

     H
a
rm

o
n

y
 H

o
u

s
e
 –

 v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

fr
o
m

 M
a
ri
a
 K

e
a

rn
s
, 

C
E

x
 o

f 
H

H
 t

o
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(2

1
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r)
 

 

    L
e

tt
e

r 
a
c
c
e
p

ts
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

p
o

s
it
io

n
.  

 C
a
lls

 f
o

r 
a
 c

ro
s
s
-s

e
c
to

r 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 t
o

 b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
lo

c
a

lly
.  

 P
o

s
s
ib

le
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 

a
 t

ra
d

in
g
 a

rm
, 
p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
a

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 I

n
te

re
s
t 

C
o
m

p
a
n

y
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

it
h

in
 A

C
S

/S
A

V
/0

7
 w

ill
 l
e
a

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
S

ilv
e

rn
e

t 
(E

ld
e

rs
 F

o
ru

m
) 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 H

a
te

 C
ri
m

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 
o

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

S
c
ra

tt
o
n

s
 

F
a
rm

 e
s
ta

te
 (

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 o
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

a
ll 

fr
o

m
 L

B
B

D
).

 
 T

o
ta

l 
lo

s
s
 f

ro
m

 H
a

rm
o
n

y
 H

o
u

s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 8
7

k
 

a
n

d
 4

 p
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
le

te
d
. 

 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
. 
 

  

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
9

 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 C
h

a
n

n
e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 –

 v
ia

 n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

c
h

a
n
n

e
ls

 
- 

L
e

tt
e

r 

O
n

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 c

o
p

ie
d

 h
e

r 
(h

a
n
d

w
ri
tt

e
n

) 
le

tt
e

r 
to

 S
e

c
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 r

a
is

e
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 

C
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 
s
ta

ff
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 s
h

a
p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
. 

 

Page 71



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
6

 

 

- 
T

w
it
te

r 
- 

F
a
c
e

b
o
o

k
 

- 
D

e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

- 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

   S
ta

ff
 

- 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 
s
e

t 
o
u

t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

is
s
u
e

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 v

ia
 e

m
a

il 
to

 
b

u
d

g
e

t@
lb

b
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

- 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 s

ta
ff

 
a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 t
h

e
 C

E
x
 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 F

o
ru

m
s
 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 l
o

s
t.

 
P

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p

ra
is

e
 i
n

 o
n

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
re

: 
V

a
le

n
c
e

 
L

ib
ra

ry
 b

e
in

g
 ‘
fi
rs

t 
c
la

s
s
’.
 

 S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e

b
a
te

 a
t 

b
o

th
 D

L
Q

T
 a

n
d

 L
Q

T
. 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2

 i
n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
. 

 C
llr

. 
G

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 i
n

 b
o

th
 h

is
 D

e
p
u

ty
 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 T

im
e

 a
n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

w
it
te

r 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 (

#
B

D
B

u
d

g
e

tC
h

a
lle

n
g
e

) 
h

e
ld

 o
n

 
2

2
 N

o
v
.  

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 m
a

d
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
s
 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
h
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

e
e

n
 t

o
 s

e
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 
s
it
e

s
 c

lo
s
e

 o
n

ly
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
re

-o
p

e
n

in
g
 t
h

e
m

 i
f 

th
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 m

o
re

 f
a

v
o

u
ra

b
le

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 1
0

 
S

u
b

s
ti

tu
te

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 C
h

a
n

n
e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

O
n

ly
 o

n
e

 c
o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
a
m

e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
v
ia

 e
m

a
il.

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
b

e
lie

v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 w
it
h

 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 i
s
 r

e
a

d
y
 o

r 
w

e
ll 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
. 
W

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

ill
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

  
th

e
s
e

 p
e

o
p

le
  

if
 y

o
u

 
s
c
ra

p
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
m

, 
 a

s
 D

W
P

's
 c

o
n

c
e
n

tr
a
te

 
o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
o
 n

o
t 
o
ff

e
r 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

o
ff

e
re

d
  

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e
c

to
r 

re
s

p
o

n
d

e
d

 a
s
 f

o
ll

o
w

s
:-

 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
is

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 i
f 

w
e

 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 a

u
s
te

ri
ty

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
. 

 

W
h
e
n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

t 
H

A
S

S
C

, 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 

Page 72



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
7

 

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n
d

 r
e

-m
o

d
e

lle
d
. 

If
 t
h

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
th

e
n

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 J

o
b

 S
h

o
p

s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 1

5
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 o

th
e

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 r
u
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 S
h
a

w
 

T
ru

s
t 
fo

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
. 

 

D
A

B
D

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 £

3
0

0
,0

0
0
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

ff
e

r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 –

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
 u

s
e

r 
le

d
 o

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

s
o

c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

h
o

ic
e

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
0

 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 T

e
a

m
 

 

J
o

 R
ic

h
a

rd
s
o
n

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
  C

a
ro

le
 P

lu
c
k
ro

s
e

  
- 

v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

to
 C

llr
. 

M
u
lla

n
e

 
 S

ta
ff

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

O
S

 
 

W
id

e
s
p

re
a

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
A

R
C

 
T

h
e

a
tr

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 a
rt

s
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

. 
 A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 
  C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

w
o

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

O
S

 
a

rg
u

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 d
o

n
e

 b
y
 A

R
C

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 b

e
n

e
fi
c
ia

l 
fo

r 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

y
o

u
n

g
 g

ir
ls

 a
n

d
/o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 

T
h
e

 S
e

le
c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
a

s
 

s
e

t 
o
u

t.
 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
1

 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

v
e

n
ts

 T
e

a
m

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 3
2

 
S

u
m

m
e

r’
s
 S

o
rt

e
d

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
2

 
B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
 T

h
e

a
tr

e
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 
w

a
s

 w
it

h
d

ra
w

n
 f

o
r 

1
3

/1
4

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
3

 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
, 

Page 73



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
8

 

 

a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 S
e

le
c

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 d
id

 a
s

k
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
lf

-
fi

n
a
n

c
in

g
 m

o
d

e
l 

to
 b

e
 i

n
v
e

s
ti

g
a

te
d

. 
      

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
5

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 C
ri

m
e

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a

m
 

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
6

 
A

n
ti

-s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

te
a

m
 

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 2
7

 
C

C
T

V
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
F

a
c
e

b
o
o

k
 

- 
T

w
it
te

r 
- 

D
e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

Q
T

 
- 

E
m

a
il 

- 
L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

          S
ta

ff
 

- 
V

ia
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 e
m

a
il 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 A

S
B

/C
C

T
V

. 
 C

o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
c
ri
m

e
 w

o
u

ld
 s

p
re

a
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
b

e
in

g
 e

n
a

c
te

d
. 

 P
ra

is
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 t

e
a
m

 –
 i
n

c
. 
fr

o
m

 a
 f

e
m

a
le

 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
o

n
 F

a
c
e

b
o

o
k
 w

h
o

 c
o

m
p

lim
e

n
te

d
 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
a
s
s
is

ti
n
g
 h

e
r.

 
 R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
v
ia

 F
a
c
e

b
o
o

k
 a

s
k
in

g
 w

h
a

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 d

o
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

  V
a

ri
o

u
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 a
b

o
u

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 C
C

T
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

In
c
lu

d
e

s
:-

 

T
h
e

 S
e

le
c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s
k
e

d
 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
o

n
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

.  
 T

h
e

 S
e

le
c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
n

o
t 

to
 e

n
a

c
t 
th

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

u
ts

.  
           D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

re
s

p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
r:

- 
 T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 o

f 
£
1

5
3
,0

0
0

 a
re

 t
h
o

s
e

 b
u

d
g
e

ts
 

Page 74



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
9

 

 

 
- 

C
a
re

lI
n

e
 

- 
L

o
n
e

 W
o

rk
e

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 

- 
N

o
is

e
 N

u
is

a
n

c
e

 T
e

a
m

 
- 

O
u

t 
o
f 

H
o
u

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
- 

C
C

T
V

 i
n

 p
a

rk
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
- 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

- 
A

lle
g
e

d
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
b

ri
e
fi
n
g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

e
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
. 

 I
t 

is
 i
n
d
e

e
d

 r
ig

h
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

s
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

s
o
u

rc
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
P

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 f
u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 C
C

T
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
, 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
a
m

e
ra

s
 c

e
a

s
e

. 

A
t 

th
e

 s
a
m

e
 t

im
e

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 w

it
h

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

c
o

m
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
h

a
p

in
g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

, 
a

s
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
, 
th

e
s
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

t 
b

e
fo

re
 C

a
b

in
e

t.
  
 

It
 i
s
 u

n
fo

rt
u
n

a
te

 t
h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 f

e
e

l 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 

in
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

b
o

u
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
.  

  
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl
y
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 

m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 I
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

ic
h
 b

e
g
a

n
 o

n
 

T
h
u

rs
d
a

y
 1

5
th

 N
o
v
e

m
b
e

r.
 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 3
0

 
C

e
a

s
e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

s
 p

o
li
c

e
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 C
h

a
n

n
e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

B
&

D
 P

o
lic

e
 

- 
L

e
tt
e

r 
to

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

, 
C

llr
. 

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 

G
ra

h
a
m

 F
a

rr
a

n
t,

 w
it
h

 

S
e

ts
 o

u
t 
P

o
lic

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

ta
k
e

s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

h
a

rs
h
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

fi
n
d

s
 i
ts

e
lf
 a

n
d
 l
o

o
k
s
 t
o

 f
u
tu

re
 

    

Page 75



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
0

 

 

c
o

p
y
 t

o
 A

n
n

e
 B

ri
s
to

w
 

a
n

d
 H

e
le

n
 J

e
n

n
e

r 
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
. 

  W
h
y
 c

lo
s
e

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
e

n
 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

 
g
o

o
d

 j
o

b
 f
o

r 
o
u

r 
e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

a
rk

s
?

 

   C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d

e
d
 b

y
 a

s
k
in

g
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
in

 f
a

c
t 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

(s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
).

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
1

 a
n

d
 2

2
 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 –

 C
h

a
n

g
e
s

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 

fo
rm

a
t 

o
f 

p
h

a
s

e
 3

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

a
n

d
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 F

o
c
u

s
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

 s
o

 t
h

e
y
 b

e
c

o
m

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

 h
u

b
s

 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 C
h

a
n

n
e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 T

w
it
te

r 
T

w
o

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

s
k
e
d

 C
llr

. 
G

ill
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 i
n
 h

is
 

#
B

D
B

u
d

g
e

tC
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 Q
&

A
 o

n
lin

e
. 

 O
n

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 m

o
th

e
r 

a
s
k
e

d
 h

o
w

 s
h

e
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t 
to

 w
o

rk
 i
f 

s
h
e

 c
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 s
e

c
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 

C
llr

. 
G

ill
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 o
n

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
h

o
w

 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
.  

 T
a

k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

.  

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
2

 
IY

S
 –

 R
e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

ta
ff

 &
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
3

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c

e
s
h

ip
s

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
4

 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 -

 s
c

h
o

o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
  

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
5

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
E

s
ta

te
s

 T
e

a
m

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
6

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

0
0
k

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

in
c

lu
s

io
n

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 0
7

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 i

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
in

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
te

a
m

 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
1

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
s

o
c
ia

l 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

Page 76



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
1

 

 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 (

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
) 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
2

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 c

o
u

rt
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 n

e
e

d
s

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
3

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
5

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
e

s
ta

te
 m

g
t 

to
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 m

in
im

u
m

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
6

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 c

e
n

tr
a
l 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
7

 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 S

E
N

 
(f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
ri

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 D
S

G
 

c
o

m
p

le
x

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 
n

e
e
d

s
 p

o
t)

 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
8

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

–
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
S

E
N

, 
o

n
ly

 f
u

n
d

 f
ro

m
 D

S
G

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 1
9

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 1

4
-1

9
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 2
0

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 y

o
u

th
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

m
in

im
u

m
 

 

C
H

S
 S

A
V

 2
1

 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 &

 C
h

il
d

c
a

re
 –

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
o

 
s

ta
tu

to
ry

 m
in

im
u

m
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

 &
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

U
N

IS
O

N
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
(C

H
S

 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 i
s
 

S
u

e
 G

o
o
d

in
g
) 

W
id

e
-r

a
n

g
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n

 r
e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 m
in

im
u
m

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
c
e
p

t 
o
f 

u
ti
lis

in
g
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

 C
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
: -

 
 

- 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 (

Y
o

u
th

B
u

s
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
-p

ro
v
is

io
n

 b
y
 u

n
if
o

rm
e
d

 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r;
 

- 
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 M

A
L

T
s
 

- 
C

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
T

h
e

 V
ib

e
 

- 
H

a
rm

 t
o
 E

a
rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
(C

h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 P

ry
o

r)
 h

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 
d

is
c
u
s
s
 t

h
e

 s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 U
N

IS
O

N
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 T
U

 r
e
p

s
 i
n

 J
a

n
u
a

ry
 (

fo
llo

w
in

g
 1

9
th

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

).
 

Page 77



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
2

 

 

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 t

h
e

 
Y

o
u

th
 B

u
s
 f

o
r 

o
u

tr
e
a

c
h
 w

o
rk

  
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
S

tr
e
e

tb
a

s
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
o

v
e

rl
y
 c

o
s
t 

h
e

a
v
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

a
m

o
n

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

it
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

. 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
- 

V
ia

 e
m

a
il 

 S
e

le
c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 
    L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 T

im
e

 

C
o
n

c
e

rn
 o

v
e

r 
la

c
k
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
Y

o
u

n
g
e

r 
P

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
. 

 A
s
k
s
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

 B
A

D
 Y

o
u

th
 F

o
ru

m
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

. 
R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
n

o
ti
fi
e

s
 L

B
B

D
 t

h
a

t 
in

te
n

d
s
 t
o

 
ra

is
e

 t
h

is
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

t 
th

e
 L

Q
T

 
 R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

B
A

D
 Y

o
u

th
 F

o
ru

m
 a

s
k
e

d
 

w
h

y
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 e
v
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
e
d

 t
h

is
 

y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

?
 

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 d

id
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 

w
e

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
u

t 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
.  

 B
A

D
 Y

o
u

th
 F

o
ru

m
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

Q
T

 
o

n
 2

9
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

 
    C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d

e
d
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

le
c
t 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 w

e
re

 
e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 w
e

ll 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
B

A
D

 Y
o

u
th

 
F

o
ru

m
 –

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 –
 h

a
d
 l
o

t 
o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.  

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 w
a

rm
ly

 w
e

lc
o
m

e
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 B
A

D
 

Y
o

u
th

 F
o

ru
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

g
ra

tu
la

te
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
e
r 

w
h

o
 

h
a

d
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 t
h

e
 L

Q
T

. 
 C

llr
. 

S
m

it
h

 u
n

d
e

rt
o
o

k
 t
o

 a
tt
e

n
d

 a
 f

u
tu

re
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
A

D
 Y

o
u

th
 F

o
ru

m
 t

o
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

p
o

lic
y
. 

 

Page 78



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
3

 

 C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
1

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 s

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 s
u

p
p

li
e

s
/s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 

th
e

 C
E

x
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
- 

V
ia

 l
e
tt
e

r 
- 

V
ia

 L
e
a

d
e

r’
s
 Q

T
 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ro

te
 i
n

 t
o

 B
C

 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 a

n
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 c
o

s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

C
E

x
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t.
 

 R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
s
e

n
io

r 
s
a

la
ri
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
‘b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
’ 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
 b

e
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f
e

a
tu

re
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
h
a

re
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
.  

 L
B

B
D

 a
lr
e
a

d
y
 s

h
a

re
s
 a

 C
E

x
 a

n
d

 a
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e

g
a

l 
–

 
lo

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
p

lic
a

te
 t
h

is
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
2

 a
n

d
 1

0
 

R
e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 P

o
li
c

y
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
p

o
s
ts

/s
u

p
p

li
e
s

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

N
o

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
5

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

u
p

p
li
e

r 
c

o
s
ts

 i
n

 
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 &
 C

o
m

m
s

 a
n

d
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
 &

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 

N
o

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 1
1

 
C

e
a

s
e
 p

ro
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
‘T

h
e
 N

e
w

s
’ 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
- 

V
ia

 l
e
tt
e

r 
- 

V
ia

 D
e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 T
im

e
 

- 
V

ia
 l
e
tt
e

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 &

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 

P
o

s
t 

- 
V

ia
 L

Q
T

 
    

A
 m

ix
e

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 T
h
o

s
e

 i
n
 f

a
v
o

u
r 

a
rg

u
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 ‘
N

e
w

s
’ 
is

 
n

o
t 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 a

t 
c
o

s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
p

a
y
e

r 
w

h
e

n
 

o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
m

e
d

ia
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

ls
o
 t
o

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

m
a
tt
e

rs
 w

it
h

. 
 O

th
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 –

 m
a

in
ly

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 –

 
e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

 w
is

h
 f

o
r 

th
e

 ‘
N

e
w

s
’ 
to

 b
e

 
re

ta
in

e
d

 a
s
 i
t 
is

 t
h
e

 o
n
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 v
e

ry
 f

e
w

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
ti
ll 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r.

 O
n

ly
 

1
3

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 d
o

 s
o

. 
T

h
e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 h

a
s
 

m
a

d
e

 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
h
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

rs
 4

 o
r 

le
s
s
 t
im

e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 h

e
 h

a
s
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
h

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
in

g
 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n

t 
s
o
o

n
 t
o

 p
ro

h
ib

it
 t
h

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

fo
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 o

r 
w

e
e

k
ly

 p
a

p
e

rs
. 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
, 

e
v
e

n
 i
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r,

 i
t 

is
 o

n
e
 w

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 r
e
tu

rn
 t
o
 i
n

 t
h
e

 v
e

ry
 n

e
a

r 
fu

tu
re

. 

T
h
e

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 ‘
T

h
e

 N
e

w
s
’ 
is

 a
b

o
u
t 

£
6
0

,0
0
0

, 

Page 79



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
4

 

                              S
ta

ff
 

- 
C

o
u

n
te

r 
p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 

c
h

a
n
n

e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 g

o
e

s
 t

o
 a

ll 
d

o
o

rs
 a

n
d
 w

h
ile

 
o

n
lin

e
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 a
re

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 r
e
p

la
c
in

g
 

p
ri
n

t,
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

/r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 e
-

a
c
c
e

s
s
.  

 O
n

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
w

ro
te

 a
s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

in
 f

re
q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
p
e

r,
 p

e
rh

a
p

s
 t
a

k
in

g
 i
t 

m
o

n
th

ly
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 
fo

rt
n

ig
h

tl
y
.  

               

o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ile

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 t

h
e

 

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r 

b
ri
n
g
s
 i
n

. 
S

h
o

u
ld

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
 t
o

 e
n

d
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
, 
e

v
e

n
 m

o
re

 e
ff

o
rt

 w
o

u
ld

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 u

p
 c

o
v
e

ra
g
e

 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 P
o

s
t.

 W
e
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 m

a
k
e

 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

F
a
c
e

b
o
o

k
 

a
n

d
 T

w
it
te

r 
p
a

g
e

s
. 
O

f 
c
o

u
rs

e
, 
n

o
t 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 e

it
h

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 h
e

re
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
b

u
t 

ra
p

id
ly

 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 d

o
 s

o
. 

M
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

th
a

t 
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
e
d
 i
n

 ‘
T

h
e
 N

e
w

s
’ 
is

 

a
ls

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 –

 b
u

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

o
le

 i
n

 e
x
p

la
in

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 c

o
n

s
ti
tu

e
n
ts

 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 h
a

p
p

e
n

in
g
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

In
 h

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
t 

L
Q

T
, 

C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 a
rg

u
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 

ju
s
ti
fi
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 ‘
fr

o
n

t 
lin

e
’ 
jo

b
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
re

a
t 

ri
g
h

t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

  

A
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

e
d

it
io

n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

lly
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
rs

 w
o

u
ld

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 i
n
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

n
o

ti
c
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 4

 p
o

s
ts

 –
 a

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
u

th
o

re
d
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

Page 80



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
5

 

a
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
rm

a
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

n
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
 

s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 t

h
e

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ri
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 s
ti
ll 

e
x
is

t 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
fr

e
q
u

e
n

c
y
.  

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
, 

a
n

y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f

re
q
u

e
n

c
y
 s

tr
ip

s
 t

h
e
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

it
s
 r

ig
h

t 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
o

ti
c
e
s
 i
n

 a
n

y
 

e
v
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 t
h

u
s
 m

a
k
e

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
ig

h
e

r.
 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
6

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

 i
n

 
L

e
g

a
l 

&
 D

e
m

o
c

ra
ti

c
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 

(a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 P

A
A

S
C

 r
e

je
c

te
d

 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)
. 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 1
2

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

s
a

v
in

g
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
h

a
re

d
 l
e

g
a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
it

h
 T

h
u

rr
o

c
k

 
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 i
n

to
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
9

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 &
 s

a
fe

ty
 t

e
a

m
 

 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
e
e

  
&

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

S
ta

ff
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
O

n
e

 s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
ra

is
e

d
 a

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 H
&

S
.  

 S
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
ra

is
e
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 H
&

S
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
e
d

 h
o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

ls
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 t

ra
in

in
g
.  

 T
h
is

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
c
o

u
rs

e
 c

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 h
o
u

s
e

 b
u

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 o
u

r 
c
o
s
ti
n

g
 m

o
d
e

l 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o

re
 e

x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 w

h
e

n
 

ta
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n

ti
n

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 I
t 

a
ls

o
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
w

a
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

le
g
a

l 

a
n

d
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 S

o
 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

c
o

u
rs

e
 i
t 
m

u
s
t:
 

 
B

e
 r

u
n
 f

o
r 

½
 d

a
y
  

 
B

e
 5

0
%

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
 

 
In

c
lu

d
e

 b
o
th

 a
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a

n
d

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

Page 81



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
6

 

 
H

a
v
e

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
e

le
g
a

te
s
  

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 c

o
s
t 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
a

s
 s

u
c
h

 u
s
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

w
h

o
 r

u
n

s
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
 f
o

r 
a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ie
s
 o

f 

s
c
a

le
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

’t
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
u
n

n
in

g
 i
t 

in
h

o
u

s
e

. 

T
h
e

 b
o

o
k
le

ts
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

re
 

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e
.  

 A
s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h
e

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 b
u

lk
 o

rd
e

r,
 a

n
d

 i
t 
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ri
c
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
u

rs
e
. 

  
  

T
h
e

 v
e

n
u

e
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

v
e

n
u

e
s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 f
o
u

n
d
 i
t 
m

a
k
e
s
 s

e
n

s
e
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 v

e
n

u
e

 a
s
 i
t 

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t,

 a
n

d
 i
s
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

c
o

u
rs

e
. 

 F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 s
h

o
w

s
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 v

e
n

u
e

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 l
o
c
a

ti
o
n

. 
  

T
h

is
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

, 
a

n
d
 w

e
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e
 a

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 m
o
d
e

l 
th

ro
u
g
h

 o
b

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
it
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
W

e
 a

re
 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
 d

o
e

s
 t
h

is
, 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ts
 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
. 

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 t
ri
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

 t
im

e
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

H
&

S
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

d
e

liv
e

r 
d
ir
e
c
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 
m

a
k
e

s
 s

e
n

s
e

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 

B
u

y
in

g
 i
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 a

 m
o

re
 e

x
p

e
n
s
iv

e
 

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 i
t 
d

o
e

s
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

 o
n
 o

th
e

r 
k
e
y
 

Page 82



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
7

 

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 c

a
n

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a
n

 a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

 W
e
 d

o
 

w
o

rk
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 r

a
te

 c
h
a

rg
e

d
 b

y
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
tr

a
in

e
rs

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

c
o

u
ld

n
’t
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 a

 m
o

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 w

a
y
 s

u
c
h

 

a
s
 e

-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 o

r 
b

le
n
d

e
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
. 

  
  

 

C
E

X
 S

A
V

 0
8

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
it

h
 T

h
u

rr
o

c
k
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 (

th
is

 
w

il
l 

b
e
 s

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

c
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

e
m

e
rg

e
) 

F
IN

 R
E

S
 S

A
V

 0
6

 -
 1

9
 

V
a

ri
o

u
s

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
, 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
, 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 

ri
s

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
e

tc
. 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 

(a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 P

A
A

S
C

 d
id

 m
a

k
e
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
) 

C
O

R
P

 S
A

V
 0

1
 

In
c

re
a
s

e
 f

e
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

  
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
2

  
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 i

n
 p

o
s

ts
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

g
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
3

 
O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y
 a

n
d

 S
e

n
s
o

ry
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

S
ta

ff
 

- 
V

ia
 C

E
x
 F

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

F
o
ru

m
 

C
o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
O

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
ff

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 b

ri
e

fe
d

 o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
.  

 C
o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
O

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 

a
g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

m
e

t 
v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

e
fo

re
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
s
ta

ff
. 

S
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 O

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ri
e
fe

d
 b

o
th

 f
a

c
e

-t
o

-
fa

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 i
n

 a
 

w
ri
tt

e
n

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r.
 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 0
4

 
S

h
e
lt

e
re

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 l
e
tt
e

r 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

w
a

s
 w

id
e

-r
a
n

g
in

g
. 

C
llr

 R
e

a
s
o

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d
 d

e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 t
o

 H
A

A
S

C
. 

 

Page 83



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
8

 

 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
- 

V
ia

 D
e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
T

 
- 

V
ia

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

a
t 

H
A

A
S

C
 

 A
 v

e
ry

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 H

A
A

S
C

. 
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 d

id
 w

ri
te

 i
n

 w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

th
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 n

e
e
d

s
.  

A
 l
e

tt
e

r 
h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 

to
 a

ll 
s
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l,
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
o

re
 

d
e

p
th

 a
n

d
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

t 
a

 f
u

tu
re

 
d

a
te

. 
 C

llr
. 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a

d
e

r’
s
 Q

T
 a

n
d

 m
a
d

e
 

c
le

a
r 

th
e
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

’s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
(n

a
m

e
ly

, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r)

. 
 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 1
0

 
S

u
b

s
ti

tu
te

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
(T

o
 H

A
A

S
C

) 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

 &
 

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

O
n

ly
 o

n
e

 c
o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
a
m

e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 

re
s
id

e
n

t.
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
b

e
lie

v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 w
it
h

 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 i
s
 r

e
a

d
y
 o

r 
w

e
ll 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
. 
W

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

ill
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

  
th

e
s
e

 p
e

o
p

le
  

if
 y

o
u

 
s
c
ra

p
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
m

, 
a

s
 D

W
P

's
 c

o
n

c
e
n

tr
a
te

 o
n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o
t 

o
ff

e
r 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e
c

to
r 

re
s

p
o

n
d

e
d

 a
s
 f

o
ll

o
w

s
:-

 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
is

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 i
f 

w
e

 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 a

u
s
te

ri
ty

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
. 

 

W
h
e
n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

t 
H

A
S

S
C

, 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n
d

 r
e

-m
o

d
e

lle
d
. 

If
 t
h

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
th

e
n

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 J

o
b

 S
h

o
p

s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 1

5
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 o

th
e

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 r
u
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 S
h
a

w
 

Page 84



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

3
9

 

 

T
ru

s
t 
fo

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
. 

 

D
A

B
D

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 £

3
0

0
,0

0
0
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

ff
e

r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 –

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
 u

s
e

r 
le

d
 o

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
s
o

c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

h
o

ic
e

. 

A
C

S
 S

A
V

 1
1

 –
 1

9
 a

n
d

 2
8

, 
2

9
 

V
a

ri
o

u
s

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 –

 i
n

c
. 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 p

a
c

k
a

g
e
s

, 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e
s
s

 p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

, 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
re

d
u

c
e

 a
d

v
o

c
a

c
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
n

ly
. 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

H
&

E
 S

A
V

 0
1

 a
 

C
a
te

ri
n

g
 I

n
c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 P
a

rk
s

 
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

H
&

E
 S

A
V

 0
1

 c
 

P
a

rk
s

 R
a

n
g

e
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e
 

&
 c

h
a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
- 

V
ia

 D
e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r’
s
 

Q
T

 
- 

V
ia

 l
e
tt
e

r 
- 

L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

        

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 i
n

 
c
o

n
g
ra

tu
la

ti
n
g
 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

s
 R

a
n

g
e

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 d
o

n
e

 w
it
h

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 

L
B

B
D

 h
a

s
 s

u
c
h

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t,
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g
 

p
a

rk
s
.  

 C
a
lls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 r

e
ta

in
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

r 
fa

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

a
rk

s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 n

o
-g

o
 a

re
a

s
 

a
g
a

in
. 

 C
a
lls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

s
 

R
a
n

g
e

rs
 o

r 
th

e
 p

a
rk

s
 w

ill
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 
u

n
k
e
m

p
t 
a

n
d

 b
e

 v
a

n
d

a
lis

e
d

. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 h
a

s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
-p

ro
v
id

e
d

 v
ia

 o
th

e
r 

m
e

a
n

s
. 

 W
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e

re
 i
s
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

th
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

         

Page 85



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

4
0

 

      S
ta

ff
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
in

to
 

b
u

d
g
e

t@
lb

b
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

- 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
’s

 
F

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 F

o
ru

m
 1

 

     P
a

rk
s
 r

a
n

g
e

rs
 s

ta
ff

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 

o
v
e

r 
la

c
k
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 b
ri
e
fi
n

g
 

 S
ta

ff
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 b

o
th

 C
E

x
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 F

o
ru

m
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 
G

ra
h

a
m

 F
a

rr
a

n
t 

     A
n

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

s
 R

a
n

g
e

rs
 a

n
d
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r.
 

H
&

E
 S

A
V

 0
2

 -
 1

8
 

V
a

ri
o

u
s

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 a
c

ro
s
s

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

t,
 

d
e
p

o
t 

c
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

, 
P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 o

n
 s

tr
e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 w
it

h
 

c
a

m
e

ra
s

 a
n

d
 a

u
to

-t
ic

k
e

ti
n

g
  

te
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

e
tc

. 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

H
&

E
 S

A
V

 1
9

 
E

n
d

 s
e

p
a
ra

te
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

g
re

e
n

 w
a
s

te
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

s
/A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

ia
 e

m
a

il 
in

to
 

b
u

d
g
e

t@
lb

b
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

- 
V

ia
 l
e

tt
e

r 
- 

V
ia

 F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 

- 
V

ia
 T

w
it
te

r 
- 

V
ia

 D
e
p

 L
d

r 
Q

T
 

- 
V

ia
 L

e
a

d
e

r’
s
 Q

T
 

W
id

e
s
p

re
a

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
e

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

re
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 
b

a
c
k
w

a
rd

s
 s

te
p

.  
 O

ld
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 f

in
d

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e

fu
l.
 

 O
n

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 a

 
“g

o
d

s
e

n
d

” 
th

a
t 
h

a
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 

lo
o

k
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
l 
a
n

d
 h

e
lp

e
d

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 e
y
e

s
o

re
 

g
a

rd
e

n
s
. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 r

e
s
c
in

d
 i
t 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 o
r 

in
 f

u
ll 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 
C

a
b

in
e

t.
 

 T
h

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
a

s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

e
s
 

e
a

rl
y
 o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 C
llr

. 
S

m
it
h

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 a

t 
L

Q
T

 t
h
a

t 
h
e

 f
e

lt
 s

u
re

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
ta

in
e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 f

re
s
h

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
.  

Page 86



F
o

r 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

: 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

4
1

 

 H
&

E
 S

A
V

 2
1

 
C

h
a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
b

u
lk

y
 w

a
s

te
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
e

  
&

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

/A
c

ti
o

n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
D

e
p

u
ty

 L
e

a
d

e
r’
s
 Q

T
 

- 
L

e
tt
e

r 
 

O
n

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
a

s
k
e
d

 a
b
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n

t 
fe

lt
 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 a

d
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

u
n

s
ig

h
tl
y
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 s

tr
e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 
w

o
u

ld
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
. 

 O
n

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
w

ro
te

 i
n

 v
ia

 l
e
tt

e
r 

th
a

t 
s
h

e
 f

e
lt
 

th
a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 c

re
a

te
 m

o
re

 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
ro

a
d

-s
w

e
e

p
e

rs
 (

w
h

o
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 

w
e

re
 h

a
m

p
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 t

o
 u

s
e

 
m

e
c
h
a

n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e

p
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
e

 f
e

lt
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
).

 
 A

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
a

ls
o

 c
ri
ti
c
is

e
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

m
e

c
h
a

n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e

p
e

rs
. 

 

C
llr

. 
G

ill
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 c

h
a

rg
e

 w
a

s
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

s
ts

 i
n
c
u

rr
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 o
ld

 w
h

it
e

 g
o

o
d

s
. 

F
IN

 R
E

S
 S

A
V

 0
1

 ,
 1

7
, 
1

8
, 

2
0

, 
2

1
 a

n
d

 2
2

 
V

a
ri

o
u

s
 m

e
a
s

u
re

s
 i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

 
th

e
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

e
a

m
, 
in

c
re

a
s

e
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t

im
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

R
A

, 
in

c
re

a
s

e
 L

o
c

a
l 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
le

te
 

o
n

e
 p

o
s
t,

 d
e
le

te
 o

n
e

 p
o

s
t 

in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

. 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 l

o
g

g
e
d

 w
it

h
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
. 

 T
h

e
s

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 w
e

re
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 L

iv
in

g
 &

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 S
e

le
c

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

. 
 T

h
e
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 d

id
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
 s

o
m

e
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 s

p
e
c

if
ic

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 (

e
.g

. 
le

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 C
h

a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
) 

 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2013/14 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Open Report 
 

For Decision 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  David Dickinson, Group 
Manager Pensions and 
Treasury 

 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 3497 
E-mail: david.dickinson@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director of Finance 
 

Accountable Corporate Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
This report deals with the Treasury Management Annual Investment Strategy Statement, 
Treasury and Prudential Indicators, Annual Investment Strategy and borrowing limits, in 
compliance under section 15 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003. 
 
The production and approval of a Treasury Management Annual Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy are requirements of the Council under Section 15(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003.  It is also a requirement of the Act to set an authorised 
borrowing limit for the forthcoming financial year. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 also requires the Council to have regard to the 
Prudential Code, and to set prudential indicators which take into account the Council’s 
capital investment plans for the next three years. 
 
The Cabinet consider this report at its meeting on 12 February 2013 and endorsed the 
recommendations below. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to approve the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2013/14 attached at Appendix 1 to the report, and in doing so: 
 
(i) the current treasury position for 2012/13 and prospects for interest rates, as 

referred to in sections 6 and 7 of Appendix 1; 
 

(ii) the revised Authorised Borrowing Limit (General Fund and HRA) of £502m for 
2012/13, which includes an estimated £15m borrowing to finance the 2012/13 
Capital Programme;  

 
(iii) the Council’s Borrowing Strategy, Debt Rescheduling Strategy and Policy on 

borrowing in advance of need for 2013/14, including the effects on treasury 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 89



management of Housing Revenue Account reform, as referred to in sections 9 - 12 
of Appendix 1; 

 
(iv) The Minimum Revenue Policy Statement for 2013/14 setting out the Council’s 

policy on repayment of debt as set out in Appendix 1C; 
 
(v) The Authorised Borrowing Limit (General Fund and HRA) of £499m for 2013/14, 

representing the statutory limit determined by the Council pursuant to section 3(1) 
of the Local Government Act 2003, as set out in Appendix 1B; 

 
(vi) The Treasury Management Indicators and Prudential Indicators for 2013/14, as set 

out in Appendix 1B; and 
 
(vii) The Annual Investment Strategy and Creditworthiness Policy for 2013/14 outlining 

the investments that the Council may use for the prudent management of its 
investment balances, as set out in Appendix 1D. 

 

Reason(s) 
 
To enable the Council to accord with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 
 

1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 This report provides a brief explanation of the key elements of the Council’s 

Treasury Management Strategy, its MRP Strategy and the Annual Investment 
Strategy for 2013/14, which are set out in detail in Appendix 1 to this report. The 
Council is statutorily required to approve the Treasury Management Strategy prior 
to the new financial year. 

 
1.2 The key elements of the Strategy relate to the following: 

 

• Investment Strategy – relating to the management of the Council’s cash 
balances; 

• Borrowing Strategy – relating to the financing of the Council’s capital 
programme; 

• Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy – a council has a duty to charge to its 
general fund an amount of MRP which it considers to be “prudent”. 
 

1.3 The report also summarises proposed changes to strategy from last year. 
 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
2.1 Cash Management 
 
2.1.1 The Council has cash balances arising from its operational activities, i.e. sources of 

income such as grants and Council Tax are received during the year and this is 
offset by daily expenditure to run services.  Due to the timing of these cash inflows 
and outflows, a surplus of cash is available at any point in time for investing.  This is 
because, in general, significant sources of income for the year such as grants are 
receipted in advance of expenditure, plus the Council also holds specific reserves 
for future expenditure plans.   

Page 90



 
2.1.2 Cash balances are also affected by “working capital”, which relates to amounts of 

outstanding payments to be made to suppliers (accounts payable) offset by 
amounts owed to the Council (accounts receivable).  Cash balances are higher 
when the level of accounts payable is greater than accounts receivable, because 
the Council has incurred net expenditure in accounting terms which has not been 
paid for in cash terms. 
 

2.1.3 The Council’s historical cash balances as at the year end (31 March) since 2009 
are provided below.  
 
2011/12 - £100m 
2010/11 - £94m 
2009/10 - £116m 
2008/09 - £125m 
 

 The forecast for 2012/13 is for the Council to have a cash balance of £125m, which 
is significantly higher than the cash balance for 2011/12.  

 
2.1.4 These balances are made up of the following sources of cash: 
 

• Capital grants and Section 106 funds received in advance of expenditure; 

• General Fund and HRA Fund balances; 

• Earmarked Reserves; 

• Capital Receipts; 

• Provisions; 

• Loans from Public Works Loan Board and banks to fund capital expenditure but 
not yet spent; 

• Working Capital. 
 
2.1.5 At the end of December 2012, the Council’s cash balances totalled £135m and 

were invested as follows: 
 

Bank / Counterparty £m 

Internally Managed: 

Lloyds TSB Group 46.0 

Royal Bank of Scotland 30.0 

Santander Group 0.1 

Barclays 15.0 

   

Money Market Funds 

Federated Prime Rate 4.7 

Goldman Sachs 0.1 

  

External Fund Managers: 

Investec Asset Management 39.1 

    

Total 135.0 

 
 
 

Page 91



2.2 Investment Strategy 
 
2.2.1 The Council’s investments are managed on the following principles, in order of 

priority: 
 

- Security – minimising the risk of losing cash arising from a bank failure and 
consequent default (as occurred with Icelandic Banks in 2008). 

- Liquidity – ensuring the Council will have access to cash as required to meet 
daily expenditure obligations. 

- Yield – after ensuring the above are met, the Council will aim to maximise 
interest earnings on cash invested. 

 
2.2.2 As financial markets are still being affected by the Eurozone crisis, with increasing 

credit risk for banks in the Eurozone area and a number of bank and country rating 
downgrades, it is proposed to continue the policy of limiting investments to UK 
banks until there is a satisfactory resolution to the crisis.  The TMS does allow for 
the use of AAA rated foreign banks and these will continue to be monitored. 

 
2.2.3 Following a number of credit rating downgrades in 2012, the number of 

counterparties that the Council can invest in has decreased further. At the same 
time the amount of cash held by the Council has increased from £100m as at 31 
March 2012, to £135m as at 31 December 2012.  As a result of the reduction in 
counterparties, in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement Mid-year Review 
Report, Members agreed to increase the counterparty investment for Lloyds TSB 
from £30m to 40% of the current cash balance.  It is proposed that this increase in 
limit is maintained throughout 2013/14. 

 
2.2.4 In the past the Council has set a minimum short term rating and long term credit 

rating restriction for investment.  While this is a reasonable approach, the 
Counterparties the Council invests in are exposed to a greater range of factors that 
should be considered when monitoring their counterparty risk.  It is therefore 
recommended that the Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by its 
advisor, Sector, which employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit 
ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 
and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the 
following overlays:  

 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

 
2.2.5 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks 

in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS 
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate 
the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the 
Council to determine the suggested duration for investments and are outlined in 
detail in Appendix 1 section 16.  

 

Page 92



2.2.6 The use of derivative financial products will continue to be excluded from the 
strategy due to potential losses arising from instability in the financial markets at this 
time.   

 
2.3 Borrowing Strategy 
 
2.3.1 The Council is allowed to borrow funds from the capital markets for two purposes: 
 

(i) Short term temporary borrowing for day to day cash flow purposes to ensure 
liquidity.  This is likeliest to occur towards the end of the financial year when 
the Council’s cash balances are lowest and Council’s own cash may be tied up 
in longer term investments. 

 
(ii) Long term borrowing to finance the capital programme where the Council can 

demonstrate the borrowing is affordable.  The Council receives external 
funding (e.g. grants, TfL contributions etc) to meet a large proportion of its 
capital expenditure but some projects do not attract specific funding.  These 
projects have to be funded by the Council from sources such as capital 
receipts from the sale of property.  However in recent years the Council has 
not had these funds available and therefore has had to borrow. 

 
2.3.2 The Council’s borrowing as at 31 December 2012 was made up of four elements: 
 

a) External loans from Public Works Loan Board and private banks - £60m; 

b) HRA PWLB Loans - £266m; 

c) PFI/finance lease liabilities - £58m; and 

d) “Internal” borrowing - £99m. 
 
2.3.3 Internal borrowing represents the use of surplus available cash balances to pay for 

capital spend, rather than undertaking new external loans.  The Council will use 
internal cash balances by reducing investments when deposit rates on investments 
are lower than interest rates on new loans.  This is because the lost interest 
earnings on reduced cash balances are cheaper than increased interest payable on 
a new external loan.  An additional advantage of maintaining a lower cash holding 
amount is that it ensure that the Council’s investment risk exposure is lower.  

 
2.3.4 In 2013/14 a continuation of low short term interest rates compared to the medium 

and longer term rates is expected.  This indicates that it is likely that there will be an 
on-going “cost of carry” for holding cash through borrowing in advance of capital 
expenditure being incurred.  Therefore it is recommended that the Council 
continues the strategy of keeping cash balances low and utilising internal borrowing 
to finance capital expenditure. 

 
2.4 Repayment of Borrowing 
 
2.4.1 The Council’s external borrowings are all loans where the principal is repaid at 

maturity.  A loan of £10m is scheduled to be repaid in 2013/14 and it is proposed to 
fund the principal repayment from revenue or generating capital receipts. 

 

Page 93



2.3.7 Internal borrowing can be also be reduced by generating capital receipts, which will 
replenish cash balances and in accounting terms be used for financing historic 
spend rather than for new capital projects. 

 
3. Financial Implications  
 
3.1 The financial implications have been discussed in detail in earlier sections of this 

report. 
 
4. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by: Eldred Taylor-Camara, Legal Group Manager 
 

4.1 The Local Government Act 2003 (the “Act”) requires the Council to set out its 
treasury strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy which 
sets out the Council’s policies for managing its investments and for giving priority to 
the security and liquidity of those investments.  

 
4.2 The Council also has to ‘have regard to’ the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 

Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities when carrying out its functions under the Act. 

 
4.3  This report sets out the Council's strategies in accordance with the Act. 
 
5. Other Implications 
 
5.1 Risk Management - This report has risk management issues for the Council, 

primarily that a counterparty could cease trading or risk that interest rates would fall 
adversely.  The mitigation of these is contained in this report. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Local Government Act 2003 

• CIPFA – Revised Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 

• CIPFA – Revised Treasury Management in the Public Services 

• Budget Framework Report 2013/14 

• HRA Business Plan v7 (16 Jan 2012) 

• Cabinet Report, 12 February 2013: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
2013/14 

 
List of appendices: 
 
Appendix 1    – Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 
Appendix 1A – Interest Rate Forecasts 2013 – 2016 
Appendix 1B – Prudential Indicators 2013/14 – 2015/16 
Appendix 1C – Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 
Appendix 1D – Annual Investment Strategy 
Appendix 1E – Approved countries for investments 
Appendix 1F – Treasury management scheme of delegation and Section 151 officer 

responsibilities 
Appendix 1G – Economic Background 

Page 94



APPENDIX 1 
 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY, MRP STRATEGY AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2013/14 

 
 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, with cash raised during the 

year sufficient to meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation 
is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when 
it is needed.   

 
1.2 Surplus monies are invested in counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 

Council’s risk appetite, providing adequate security and liquidity initially, before 
considering investment return. 

 
1.3 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  

 
1.4 This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term 

loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion any debt previously 
drawn may be restructured to meet the Council’s risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury 

management as: 
 
 “The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.” 

 
1.6 The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions, activity and risk appetite. The 

successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are integral elements of 
treasury management, including credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market 
risk, interest risk, refinancing risk and legal and regulatory risk.  

 
1.7 The Treasury Management Strategy takes into account the impact of the Council’s 

proposed Revenue Budget and Capital Programme on the Balance Sheet position, 
the current and projected Treasury position, the Prudential Indicators and the outlook 
for interest rates. In addition the current market conditions are factored into any 
decision making process. 

 
1.8 As the Council is responsible for housing, Prudential Indicators relating to Capital 

Expenditure, financing costs and the Capital Financing Requirement will be split 
between the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the General Fund. The impact of 
any new capital investment decisions on housing rents will also need to be 
considered. 

 

Page 95



 
 
2. Reporting Requirements 
 

2.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main treasury 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. 
These reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by Committee before being 
recommended to the Council.   

 
2.2 Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) –  
 The first and most important report and covers: 

 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 
 

• a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure 
is charged to revenue over time); 
 

• the Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are 
to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  
 

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
2.3 An annual treasury report that provides details of a selection of actual prudential 

and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates 
within the strategy. 

 
2.4 A mid-year treasury management report to update Councillors on the progress of 

the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and whether the 
treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or whether any policies require revision or 
amendment.   

 
3. Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 
 
3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the Council to 

‘have regard to’ the CIPF Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice to set Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the next three years 
and to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable. 

 
3.2 The Act requires local authorities to set out their treasury strategy for borrowing and 

to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by investment Guidance 
issued subsequent to the Act). This sets out the Council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. 

 
3.3 The Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) has issued revised 

investment guidance that came into effect from 1 April 2010, and the Council has 
adopted the recommendations of the guidance.  

 
3.4 The strategy for 2013/14 covers two main areas: 
 
 Capital Issues 
 

Page 96



• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; and 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) strategy. 

 
 

 Treasury Management Issues 
 

• the current portfolio position;  

• macroeconomic outlook and prospects for interest rates; 

• the General Fund and HRA borrowing requirement and strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling and repayment; 

• the use of the Council’s resources and expected investment balances; 

• the Annual Investment Strategy and Investment Policies; 

• Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria 

• creditworthiness policy; 

• use of additional information other than credit rating; 

• policy on use of external service providers; and 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council. 

 
3.5 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 

CIFPA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and the CLG Investment Guidance. 

 
4. Treasury Management Consultants 
 
4.1 The Council uses Sector as its external treasury management advisors. The Council 

recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our 
external service providers.  

 
4.2 It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The 
Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their 
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review.  

 
4.3 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 

reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.   

 
5. Member and Officer Training 
 
5.1 The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer, the Chief Finance Officer, to 

ensure that Councillors with responsibility for treasury management receive adequate 
training in treasury management.  

 

5.2 Training will be arranged for Councillors as required. The training needs of treasury 
management officers are periodically reviewed. 

Page 97



 
6. Current Portfolio Position 
 
6.1 Table 1 below shows the Council’s investments and borrowing balances as at 31 

December 2012, including the average life and the Rate of Return.  
 
 Table 1: Council‘s treasury position at 31 December 2012 

 Principal 
Outstanding 
31/12/2012 
£’000s 

Average Rate 
of Return 
31/12/2012 

% 

Average  
Life as at 
31/12/2012 

(yrs) 

Fixed Rate Funding: 
   

  PWLB 285,912 3.55 38.96 

Variable Rate Funding: 
   

  PWLB 0 0 0 

  Market 40,000 4.02 55.89 

Total Debt 325,912 3.61 41.04 

    
Investments 

   
  In-House 95,708 1.79 

 
  External Managers: 

   
  Investec 39,050 1.03 

 
Total Investments 134,758 1.57 

 
 
6.2 The sum invested broadly represents the reserves, provisions and balances that the 

Council holds together with the impact of any difference between the collection of 
income and expenditure (working capital). Included in the Council managed cash 
balances is £6m relating to the Pension fund. 

 
7. Macroeconomic Outlook and Prospects for Interest Rates 
 
7.1 The economic recovery in the UK since 2008 has been the worst and slowest 

recovery in recent history, although the economy returned to positive growth in the 
third quarter of 2012. Growth prospects are weak and consumer spending, the usual 
driving force of recovery, is likely to remain under pressure due to consumers 
focusing on repayment of personal debt, inflation eroding disposable income, general 
malaise about the economy and employment fears. 

 
7.2 The primary drivers of the UK economy are likely to remain external. 40% of UK 

exports go to the Eurozone so the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to 
hinder UK growth.  The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt problems to 
the UK, but urgently needs to resolve the fiscal cliff now that the Presidential 
elections are out of the way.  The resulting US fiscal tightening and continuing 
Eurozone problems will depress UK growth and is likely to see the UK deficit 
reduction plans slip.  

 

Page 98



7.3 This challenging and uncertain economic outlook has several key treasury 
management implications: 

 

• The Eurozone sovereign debt difficulties provide a clear indication of high 
counterparty risk. This continues to suggest the use of higher quality 
counterparties for shorter time periods; 
 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2013/14 and beyond; 
 

• Borrowing interest rates continue to be attractive and may remain relatively low 
for some time.  The timing of any borrowing will need to be monitored carefully; 
and 
 

• There will remain a cost of carry – any borrowing undertaken that results in an 
increase in investments will incur a revenue loss between borrowing costs and 
investment returns. 

  
7.4 The Council has appointed Sector as its treasury advisor and part of their service is 

to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. From 1 November 2012, 
the Government reduced by 20 basis points the interest rates on loans from PWLB 
(the Certainty Rate) to local authorities who provide the required information on their 
plans for long-term borrowing and associated capital spending. Interest rate forecasts 
have been adjusted to reflect this lower borrowing rate available to the Council. Table 
2 and Chart 1 provide Sector’s central view on interest rates. 

% 
 

Table 2: Sector Bank Rate and PWLB borrowing rate forecast 

  PWLB Borrowing Rates 

(including certainty rate adjustment) 

As at Date Bank Rate 
% 

5 year 
% 

25 year 
% 

50 year 
% 

Jun-13 0.5 1.5 3.8 4.0 

Sep-13 0.5 1.6 3.8 4.0 

Dec-13 0.5 1.6 3.8 4.0 

Mar-14 0.5 1.7 3.9 4.1 

Jun-14 0.5 1.7 3.9 4.1 

Sep-14 0.5 1.8 4.0 4.2 

Dec-14 0.5 2.0 4.1 4.3 

Mar-15 0.75 2.2 4.3 4.5 

Jun-15 1.0 2.3 4.4 4.6 

Sep-15 1.25 2.5 4.6 4.8 

Dec-15 1.5 2.7 4.8 5.0 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 99



Chart 1: Sector Bank Rate and PWLB borrowing rate forecast

 
7.5 Appendix 1A draws together a number of current City forecasts for short term (Bank 

Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.
 
7.6 As interest rate forecast shows that the UK base

until 2015, this would mean that short term rates are likely to remain significantly 
lower than long term rates throughout 2013/14 and beyond. 

 
8. The Capital Expenditure Plans 
 

8.1 The Council’s Housing and General Fund 
Balances and Reserves, are the 
estimates for Capital expenditure
Revenue Budget and Capital Progra
which are designed to assist 
plans. The Prudential Indicators are included in 

 
8.2 Table 3 below shows 

financial years. It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that capital 
expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the 
impact on Council Tax and, in the ca
 

  

Sector Bank Rate and PWLB borrowing rate forecast

draws together a number of current City forecasts for short term (Bank 
Rate) and longer fixed interest rates. 

As interest rate forecast shows that the UK base rate is forecast to remain at 0.5% 
, this would mean that short term rates are likely to remain significantly 

lower than long term rates throughout 2013/14 and beyond.  

Expenditure Plans 2013/14 – 2015/16 

Housing and General Fund capital expenditure plans
Balances and Reserves, are the key drivers of treasury management activity. The 
estimates for Capital expenditure, and its funding based on current proposed 
Revenue Budget and Capital Programmes, are reflected in prudential indicators

designed to assist Councillors overview and confirm capital expenditure 
The Prudential Indicators are included in Appendix 1B of this report.

below shows the proposed capital expenditure over the coming three 
financial years. It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that capital 
expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the 
impact on Council Tax and, in the case of the HRA, housing rent levels. 

Sector Bank Rate and PWLB borrowing rate forecast 

 

draws together a number of current City forecasts for short term (Bank 

rate is forecast to remain at 0.5% 
, this would mean that short term rates are likely to remain significantly 

capital expenditure plans, together with 
of treasury management activity. The 

and its funding based on current proposed 
are reflected in prudential indicators, 

overview and confirm capital expenditure 
of this report. 

the proposed capital expenditure over the coming three 
financial years. It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that capital 
expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the 

se of the HRA, housing rent levels.  

Page 100



Table 3: Proposed Capital Expenditure 2013 to 2016 

Capital expenditure 
£’000s 

2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

General Fund 
97,178 67,587 74,579 32,017 5,475 

HRA 
30,968 43,350 83,240 74,090 45,620 

HRA Settlement 
265,912 - - - - 

Total 
394,058 110,937 157,819 106,107 51,095 

Financed by:      

Capital Receipts 
- 6,037 12,429 5,700 1,920 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

79,728 54,161 96,990 33,557 7,225 

Revenue contributions 
1,440 607 - - - 

Capital Reserves 
- 1,195 - - - 

HRA Resources 
7,638 33,850 42,260 45,250 41,950 

Net financing need for 
the year 

305,252 15,087 6,140 21,600 - 

 
8.3 The estimated financing need for the year in Table 3 represents a shortfall of 

resources resulting in a requirement to borrow. This underlying need to borrow is 
known as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR is simply the total 
historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either 
revenue or capital resources. Any capital expenditure above, which has not 
immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR. 

 
8.4 Other long term liabilities. The above financing need excludes other long term 

liabilities, such as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include borrowing 
instruments.  

 
8.5 Sufficient headroom has been provided within the Authorised Limit on external 

borrowing to ensure that any major capital investment projects where finance has yet 
to be finalised, are not restricted by this statutory limit. The limit covers any short 
term borrowing for cash flow purposes as well as long term borrowing for capital 
projects, finance leases PFI initiatives as well as any unforeseen incidences where 
expected capital receipts are not forthcoming due to unexpected economic factors. 

 
8.6 Table 3 includes £266m borrowed in March 2012 to finance the HRA reform. 
 
 

9. The Council’s Borrowing Strategy and Borrowing Requirement 
 

9.1 The decision to borrow is a treasury management decision and is taken by the Chief 
Finance Officer under delegated powers of the Council’s constitution. The key 

Page 101



objective of the Council’s borrowing strategy is to secure long term funding for capital 
projects at borrowing rates that are as low as possible. This can result in a trade off 
of short term returns on deposits to obtain the best possible rate on long term 
borrowings. 

 
9.2 Treasury management, and borrowing strategies in particular, continues to be 

influenced by the absolute level of borrowing rates and also the relationship between 
short and long term interest rates. Rate forecasts indicate that interest rates will 
remain low until 2015 which creates a “cost of carry” between what is paid on the 
borrowing and what is earned on the investment for any new longer term borrowing. 
This is because borrowing requirements are generally over a long term period of up 
to 25 years, while cash is currently being invested for a maximum of a year.  

 
9.3 As a result the Council will seek to maintain an under-borrowed position throughout 

2013/14. This means that the CFR will not be fully funded with loan debt during the 
year as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow will be used 
as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as it reduces the “cost of carry” 
while investment returns remain low, as well as reduces the Council’s counterparty 
risk, which continues to be high and is likely to will continue throughout 2013/14. 

 
9.4 As circumstances can change during the year, the Chief Finance Officer will monitor 

interest rates in financial markets and adopt a flexible  approach to any changes:  
 

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 
term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession 
or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential 
rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be considered. 

 

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and 
short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a greater than 
expected increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation 
risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely action that 
fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still relatively cheap.  

 
9.5 The Council’s borrowing strategy will give consideration to the following when 

deciding to take-up new loans: 
 

• Use internal cash balances while the current rate of interest on investments 
remains at an all-time low. However consideration will also be given to weighing 
the short term advantage of internal borrowing against potential long term costs if 
long term borrowing rates begin to increase more than forecast; 

 

• Using long term fixed rate market loans where rates are significantly less than 
PWLB rates for the equivalent maturity period; 
 

• Using Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) short term variable rate loans; 
 

• Maintain an appropriate balance between PWLB and market debt in the debt 
portfolio; 
 

• Use short dated PWLB fixed rate loans where rates are expected to be 
significantly lower than rates for longer period; 

Page 102



 

• Ensure that new borrowings are drawn at periods when rates are expected to be 
low; and 

 

• Consider the issue of stocks and bonds if appropriate. 
 

9.6 The Council has £40m of loans which are Lender’s Options Borrower’s Option 
(LOBO) and all of them will be in their call period during 2013/14. A LOBO is called 
when the Lender exercises its right to amend the interest rate on the loan at which 
point the Borrower (the Council) can accept the revised terms or reject them and 
repay the loan. LOBO loans present a potential refinancing risk to the Council since 
the decision to call a LOBO is entirely at the Lender’s discretion.  

 
9.7 As LOBOs currently make up 12.3% of the total external debt portfolio, this is not a 

significant risk. Any LOBO called will have the default position of repayment of the 
LOBO without penalty, i.e. the revised terms will not be accepted.  

 
10. Self Financing 
  
10.1 HRA Debt 
 
 Central Government completed the reform of the HRA subsidy system on 28 March 

2012. The Council is required to recharge interest expenditure and income 
attributable to the HRA in accordance with Determination issued by the CLG. 

 
 The Determinations do not set out a methodology for calculating the interest rate to 

use in each instance. The Council is therefore required to adopt a policy that will set 
out how interest charges attributable to the HRA will be determined. The CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice recommends that authorities present this 
policy in the annual TMSS. 

 
 On 1 April 2012, for treasury management of the General fund and HRA debt, the 

Council adopted a two loans pool approach for long term debt. 
 

• The full £265.9m of PWLB long term debt from the HRA reform settlement is 
allocated to the HRA, with the remaining £60.0m of debt allocated to the General 
Fund (GF); and 
 

• All future long term loans are allocated into either the HRA or GF pool. 
  

A breakdown of the HRA borrowing is provided in table 4 below: 
 
Table 4: HRA borrowing: 

Loan Type Loan Amount Maturity profile Interest Rate 

 £’000s Yrs % 

PWLB 50,000 29 3.51 

PWLB 50,000 39 3.52 

PWLB 50,000 47 3.49 

PWLB 50,000 48 3.48 

PWLB 65,910 49 3.48 

Total 265,910 
 

          

Page 103



 A debt cap of £277m has been set for the HRA. The CLG have confirmed that the 
debt cap, now set, cannot be breached. Good treasury management is required 
under self-financing to support the achievement of business objectives and to 
conform to the requirements of the debt cap as should the cap be breached the 
Section 151 officer and the Council as a whole would be in breach of the law. 

 
10.2 HRA Investments 
 
 Cash balances held by the HRA will be invested as part of the Council’s overall 

treasury strategy. Cash balances will generally earn the average rate of the Council’s 
investments, which will be calculated at the financial year end. 

 
 Where there is agreement between the Chief Finance Officer and the Corporate 

Director of Housing & Environment, individual investments can be ring-fenced for the 
HRA, with the allocations made within the Council’s overall treasury strategy 
requirements. 

 
 For further details please refer to the HRA Business Plan.  
 
11. Policy on borrowing in advance of need  
 
11.1 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 

profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved CFR estimates, and will be considered 
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council 
can ensure the security of such funds.  
 

11.2 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  
 

11.3 Current forecasts indicate that it is unlikely that the Council will seek to borrow in 
advance in 2013/14. 

 
12. Debt rescheduling and repayment 
 
12.1 As short term borrowing rates are usually cheaper than longer term fixed interest 

rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from 
long term debt to short term debt. However, any savings will need to be based on the 
current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums 
incurred).  

 
12.2 The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

 
• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; and 
 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile). 
 

Page 104



12.3 Consideration will be given to identify any residual potential to make savings by 
running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term rates on 
investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.  

 
12.4 Any rescheduling will be reported to the Council at the earliest meeting. 
 
12.5 In April 2013 a £10m PWLB loan, borrowed at 4.07%, matures. Given the high level 

of cash currently held, the loan is expected to be repaid and will not immediately be 
replaced. This will reduce the General Fund borrowing to £50m. 

 
13. Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 

 
13.1 In accordance with Statutory Instrument 2008 number 414 and new guidance issued 

by the Government under section 21 (1A) of the Local Government Act 2003 a 
statement on the Council’s policy for its annual MRP needs to be approved before 
the start of the financial year.  

 
13.2 The Council are asked to approve the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement set 

out in Appendix 1C. 
 
14. The use of the Council’s Resources and expected investment balances  
 
14.1 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 

expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an on-
going impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from 
new sources (asset sales etc.). Detailed below are estimates of the year end 
balances for each resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

 

 Year End Resources 
£’000s 

2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Fund balances / 
reserves 

160,000 180,000 154,000 146,000 136,000 

Capital receipts 7,000 15,000 6,000 4,000 5,000 

Provisions 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 

Total core funds 177,000 206,000 171,000 161,000 152,000 

Working capital* 77,000 88,000 88,000 88,000 88,000 

External borrowing 336,000 326,000 350,000 364,000 364,000 

Capital financing 
requirement  

-485,000 -496,000 -500,000 -503,000 -493,000 

Expected 
investments 

104,000 125,000 109,000 110,000 111,000 

 *Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be higher mid-
year. 

 

Page 105



15. Annual Investment Strategy and Investment Policies 
 
15.1 Investment policy 

 

 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).   

 
15.2 These guidelines do not apply to either trust funds or pension funds, which operate 

under a different regulatory regime. The key intention of the guidance is to maintain 
the current requirement for councils to invest prudently. The Council’s investment 
priorities are: 

 

• security of the investment capital; 

• liquidity of the investment capital; and 

• an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. 

 
15.3 In accordance with the above, and in order to minimise the risk to investments, the 

Council has below clearly stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality of 
counterparties for inclusion on the lending list. The creditworthiness methodology 
used to create the counterparty list fully accounts for the ratings and watches 
published by all three ratings agencies with a full understanding of what the ratings 
reflect in the eyes of each agency. Using the Sector ratings service, banks’ ratings 
are monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any changes notified 
electronically as the agencies notify modifications. 

 
15.4 Further, the Council’s officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole 

determinant of the quality of an institution and that it is important to continually 
assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in 
relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions operate.  

 
15.5 The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the 

markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor 
on market pricing such as “Credit Default Swaps” and overlay that information on top 
of the credit ratings. This is encapsulated within the credit methodology provided by 
the advisors, Sector. 

 
15.6 Other information sources used will include the financial press and other such 

information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust 
scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.  

 
15.7 The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties 

which will also enable diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 
 
15.8 The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation of 

risk. 
 
 
 

Page 106



16.  Security of Capital - the Creditworthiness Policy 
 
16.1 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Sector. This service 

employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three 
main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. The credit 
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from the most creditworthy countries. 
 
16.2 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks 

in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS 
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate 
the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the 
Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.  

 
16.3 The Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years (this is for AAA rated Government debt or its equivalent) 

• Purple  2 years 

• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 

• Orange 1 year 

• Red  6 months 

• Green  3 months  

• No colour not to be used  
 
16.4 The Sector creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 

primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue 
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 

  
16.5 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council will use is the short term 

rating (Fitch or equivalents) of short term rating F1, long term rating A-, viability rating 
of A-, and a support rating of 1. There may be occasions when the counterparty 
ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may still 
be used. In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings 
available, or other topical market information, to support their use. 

  
16.6 All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings 

of all three agencies through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service.  
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will 
be withdrawn immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information 
in movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Page 107



16.7 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on government 
support for banks and the credit ratings of that supporting government. 

 
17. Use of additional information other than credit ratings.  
 
17.1 Additional requirements under the Code require the Council to supplement credit 

rating information. Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit 
ratings to provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional 
operational market information will be applied before making any specific investment 
decision from the agreed pool of counterparties. This additional market information 
(for example Credit Default Swaps, negative rating watches/outlooks) will be applied 
to compare the relative security of differing investment counterparties. 

 
18. Time and monetary limits applying to investments.  
 
18.1 The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are set 

out in appendix 1D (these will cover both specified and non-specified investments). 
 
18.2 The time limits and monetary limits set out in appendix 1D are the operational criteria 

in normal times. At times of heightened volatility, risk and concern in financial 
markets, this strategy may be amended by temporary operational criteria further 
limiting investments to counterparties of a higher creditworthiness and / or restricted 
time limits. 

 
19.  Use of other Local Authorities 
 
19.1 Where the investment is a straightforward cash loan the Local Government Act 2003 

s13 suggests that the credit risk attached to English and Welsh local authorities is an 
acceptable one. The Council will limit its lending to local authorities in England and 
Wales. 

 
20.  Use of Multilateral Development Banks 
 
20.2 S15 of the Local Government Act 2003 SI 2004 no. 534 amended provides 

regulations to clarify that investments in multilateral development banks were not to 
be treated as being capital expenditure. Should the Council invest in such institutions 
then only such institutions with AAA credit rating and government backing would be 
invested in consultation with the Council’s treasury adviser and the S151 Officer. 

 
21.  Use of Brokers 
 
21.1 The Council deals with many of its counterparties directly through its daily dealings. 

From time to time the Council will use the services of brokers to act as agents 
between the Council and its counterparties when lending or borrowing. However no 
one broker will be favoured by the Council. The Council will ensure that sufficient 
quotes are obtained before investment or borrowing decisions are made via brokers. 

 
 
 

Page 108



22. Country limits and Use of Foreign Banks 
 
22.1 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 

countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA (excluding the United 
Kingdom) from Fitch. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should 
ratings change in accordance with this policy. This will ensure that the Council’s 
investments are not concentrated in too few counterparties or countries. 

 
22.2 Given the strength of some foreign banks the Council will invest in strong non UK 

foreign banks, whose soverign and individual ratings meet its minimum criteria of 
AAA. 

 
22.3 During 2013/14 it is possible that the United Kingdom’s sovereign rating could be 

downgraded by one or more ratings agencies. The TMSS will therefore not set a 
minimum sovereign rating of AAA for the United Kingdom so as to ensure continuity 
of being able to invest in UK banks if such a downgrade were to occur 
 

23. Investment strategy 
 
23.1 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 

cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months).    

 
23.2 Investment returns expectations. Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 

0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 1 of 2015. Bank Rate forecasts for financial 
year ends (March) are:  

 

• 2012/13  0.50% 

• 2013/14  0.50% 

• 2014/15  0.75% 

• 2015/16  1.75% 
 
23.3 There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate is 

delayed even further) if economic growth remains weaker for longer than expected. 
However, should the pace of growth pick up more sharply than expected there could 
be upside risk, particularly if Bank of England inflation forecasts for two years ahead  
exceed the Bank of England’s 2% target rate. 

 
23.4 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Appendix 

1D under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty 
limits will be as set through the Council’s Treasury Management Practices – 
Schedules. 

 
23.5 Alternative financial instruments such as derivatives will not currently be considered 

but future use will remain under review.  
 
24. Provisions for Credit-related losses  
 
24.1 If any of the Council’s investments appeared at risk of loss due to default, (i.e. a 

credit-related loss and not one resulting from a fall in price due to movements in 

Page 109



interest rates) the Council will make revenue provision of an appropriate amount. 
Where there is a loss of the principal amount borrowed due to the collapse of the 
institution, the Council will seek legal and investment advice. 

 
25. End of year investment report 
 
25.1 At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 

part of its Annual Treasury Report.  
 

26. External fund managers 
 
26.1 It is the Council’s policy to use external fund managers for part of its investment 

portfolio. The fund managers will use both specified and non-specified investment 
categories, and are contractually committed to keep the Council’s investment 
strategy. The level of external balances is under constant review as the level of 
capital receipts and available cash flow diminishes. The performance of each 
manager is reviewed quarterly by the Chief Finance Officer or delegated officers and 
the Council’s treasury advisers. 

 
26.2 The Council currently uses Investec as a fund manager with £39m of the Council’s 

funds managed on a segregated mandate basis. In selecting the institutions to 
include in their counterparty listing, it is the external manager’s policy to maintain a 
list of counterparties and assets based on the Council’s set minimum criteria. This list 
is approved by their specialist credit team who independently research all potential 
counterparties before inclusion and regularly monitor and update to ensure that any 
change in credit worthiness and valuation is captured. 

 
26.3 The fund manager provides the Council with a periodic outlook on fund returns. For 

2012/13, the return achieved for nine months to 31 December 2011 is 1.0%, 
compared to a best case scenario of 2.0%. This scenario is based on the recent 
trend of the MPC rate which has continuously remained at 0.5% with predictions for a 
rate change now not until late 2013. 

 
26.4 Investec will continue to use instruments including Floating Rate Notes and 

supranational bonds, in addition to gilts in order to increase returns of the portfolio. 
However they expect to see higher yield before establishing a position. 

 
27. Pension Fund Cash 
 
27.1 London Borough of Barking and Dagenham manages its Pension Fund’s in-house 

cash under a Service Level Agreement, with its share of interest earnings credited to 
the Pension Fund.  

 
27.2 From October 2013 the Pension Fund will have a separate bank account for 

investment purposes, Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. 

Page 110



 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

A
 

S
e
c
t
o
r'
s
 I
n
t
e
re
s
t
 R
a
t
e
 V
ie
w

N
o
w

D
e
c-
12

M
ar
-1
3

Ju
n
-1
3

S
e
p
-1
3

D
e
c-
13

M
ar
-1
4

Ju
n
-1
4

S
e
p
-1
4

D
e
c-
14

M
ar
-1
5

Ju
n
-1
5

S
e
p
-1
5

D
e
c-
15

M
ar
-1
6

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
B
an
k 
R
at
e
 V
ie
w

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.7
5
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.2
5
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.7
5
%

3
 M
o
n
th
 L
IB
ID

0
.4
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.6
0
%

0
.6
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.8
0
%

1
.1
0
%

1
.4
0
%

1
.7
0
%

1
.9
0
%

6
 M
o
n
th
 L
IB
ID

0
.5
6
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.7
0
%

0
.8
0
%

0
.9
0
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.1
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.6
0
%

1
.9
0
%

2
.2
0
%

12
 M
o
n
th
 L
IB
ID

0
.9
2
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.1
0
%

1
.1
0
%

1
.2
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.8
0
%

2
.1
0
%

2
.4
0
%

5
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

1
.6
6
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.6
0
%

1
.6
0
%

1
.7
0
%

1
.7
0
%

1
.8
0
%

2
.0
0
%

2
.2
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.9
0
%

10
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

2
.6
4
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.6
0
%

2
.6
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.8
0
%

3
.0
0
%

3
.2
0
%

3
.3
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.7
0
%

3
.9
0
%

2
5
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

3
.8
8
%

3
.7
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.9
0
%

3
.9
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.4
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.8
0
%

5
.0
0
%

5
0
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

4
.0
4
%

3
.9
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.2
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.8
0
%

5
.0
0
%

5
.2
0
%

B
an
k 
R
at
e

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
V
ie
w

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.7
5
%

1
.0
0
%

1
.2
5
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.7
5
%

U
B
S

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

C
ap
it
al
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
s

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

0
.5
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

5
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
V
ie
w

1
.6
6
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.6
0
%

1
.6
0
%

1
.7
0
%

1
.7
0
%

1
.8
0
%

2
.0
0
%

2
.2
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.9
0
%

U
B
S

1
.6
6
%

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

C
ap
it
al
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
s

1
.6
6
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.3
0
%

1
.5
0
%

1
.6
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

10
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
V
ie
w

2
.6
4
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.5
0
%

2
.6
0
%

2
.6
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.7
0
%

2
.8
0
%

3
.0
0
%

3
.2
0
%

3
.3
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.7
0
%

3
.9
0
%

U
B
S

2
.6
4
%

2
.8
0
%

3
.0
0
%

3
.1
0
%

3
.2
0
%

3
.4
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.6
0
%

3
.7
0
%

3
.8
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

C
ap
it
al
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
s

2
.6
4
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

2
.3
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

2
5
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
V
ie
w

3
.8
8
%

3
.7
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.9
0
%

3
.9
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.4
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.8
0
%

5
.0
0
%

U
B
S

3
.8
8
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.2
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.4
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.5
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

C
ap
it
al
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
s

3
.8
8
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

3
.5
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

5
0
y
r 
P
W
LB
 R
at
e

S
e
ct
o
r'
s 
V
ie
w

4
.0
4
%

3
.9
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.2
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.8
0
%

5
.0
0
%

5
.2
0
%

U
B
S

4
.0
4
%

4
.1
0
%

4
.3
0
%

4
.4
0
%

4
.5
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.6
0
%

4
.6
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

C
ap
it
al
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
s

4
.0
4
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

3
.8
0
%

-
-

-
-

-

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

A
: 

In
te

r
e

s
t 

R
a

te
 F

o
r
e

c
a

s
ts

 2
0
1

3
 –

 2
0
1

6
 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1B  
 
Prudential Indicators 2013/14 – 2015/16 
 
1. The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 

activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist Councillors overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. 

 

1.1 Capital expenditure: This is the first prudential indicator, set out in table 1 below, 

and is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both those agreed 
previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.   

 
Councillors are asked to approve the capital expenditure forecasts: 

 
 Table 1: Capital Expenditure Forecast 2013 to 2016 

Capital expenditure 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
£’000s Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Adult & Community Service 12,757  6,205  5,939  4,350  170  

Children’s Services 61,842  37,452  51,168  21,775  5,305  

Environment & Housing 
General Fund 

4,239   8,136  3,119                -                 -   

Resources 15,830  15,739   5,933  2,892               -   

Capitalisation directive 2,510  3,000   3,000  3,000                -   

General Fund 97,178  70,532  69,159  32,017  5,475  

HRA 30,968 43,350 83,240 74,090 45,620 

HRA Settlement 265,912 - - - - 

HRA Total 296,880 43,350 83,240 74,090 45,620 

Total 394,058 110,937 157,819 106,107 51,095 

 
The above table excludes other long term liabilities, such as PFI and leasing 
arrangement which already include borrowing instruments. 
 
Table 2 summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans will 
be financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding borrowing need. 

Page 113



Table 2: Capital Expenditure Financing Plans 2013 to 2016 

Capital expenditure 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

£’000s Actual  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  

General Fund 97,178 67,587 74,579 32,017 5,475 

HRA 30,968 43,350 83,240 74,090 45,620 

HRA Settlement 265,912 - - - - 

Total 
394,058 

 
110,937 

 
157,819 

 
106,107 

 
51,095 

 

Financed by: 
     

Capital Receipts - 6,037 12,429 5,700 1,920 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

79,728 54,161 96,990 33,557 7,225 

Revenue 
contributions 

1,440 607 - - - 

Capital Reserves - 1,195 - - - 

HRA Resources 7,638 33,850 42,260 45,250 41,950 

Net financing need 
for the year 

305,252 15,087 6,140 21,600 - 

 
1.2 The Council’s borrowing requirement (CFR) 

 
The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which 
has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially 
a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure 
above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.   
 
The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) 
is a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in 
line with each assets life. 
 
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council 
is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.   
 
Table 3 sets out the CFR until 2015/16. The Council is asked to approve the CFR 
projections. 
 

  

Page 114



Table 3: Council’s CFR 2012/13 to 2015/16 

£’000s 2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing 225,316 232,312 229,121 222,447 211,986 

CFR – housing 260,122 260,122 260,122 277,649 277,649 

Total CFR 485,438 492,434 489,243 500,096 489,635 

Movement in CFR 333,384 6,996 -3,191 10,853 -10,461 

 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

340,324 15,087 6,140 21,527 - 

Less MRP and other 
financing movements 

-6,940 -8,091 -9,331 -10,674 -10,461 

Movement in CFR 333,384 6,996 -3,191 10,853 -10,461 

 
2. Affordability prudential indicators 

 
The previous section covered the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to 
assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an 
indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall 
finances. The Council is asked to approve the following indicators: 
 

2.1 Actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 
 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long 
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in 
this budget report. 

 

% 2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

General Fund 6.56 6.90 9.78 11.29 10.81 

HRA (inclusive of 
settlement) 

-0.43 8.06 8.19 7.98 7.88 

 
2.2 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on 

council tax (Band D) 
 
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the 
three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared to the 
Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans. The assumptions are 

Page 115



based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, such as the level of 
Government support, which are not published over a three year period. 

 

£ 2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Council tax - band D 0.01 (0.03) (0.01) (0.01) 0.00 

. 

2.3 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing 
rent levels 

 
Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, expressed 
as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.   

 
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent levels 

 

£ 2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Weekly housing rent 
levels 

(0.01) (0.03) 0.00 0.03 0.00 

 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, although 
any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.   

 
3. Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

 
There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to 
restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing 
risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, 
if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce 
costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 
 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum 
limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of 
investments; 

 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous 
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; and 

 

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and 
are required for upper and lower limits.   

 
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 

 

Page 116



 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Interest rate exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest rates 
based on net debt 
 

100% 100% 100% 

Limits on variable interest rates 
based on net debt 
 

70% 70% 70% 

Limits on fixed interest rates: 
• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 

100% 
80% 

 

100% 
80% 

 

100% 
80% 

Limits on variable interest rates 
• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 

70% 
80% 

 

70% 
80% 

 

70% 
80% 

 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2013/14 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 40% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 70% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 70% 

10 years and above 0% 100% 

 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2013/14 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 40% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 40% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 70% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 70% 

10 years and above 0% 80% 

 
4. Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 
 
4.1  The Operational Boundary 
 
 This is the limit beyond which external borrowing is not normally expected to exceed. 

In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher 
depending on the levels of actual borrowing. 

 

Operational boundary  
£’000s 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Borrowing 326,000  372,000  394,000  394,000  

Long term liabilities 58,000  57,000  55,000  53,000  

Total 384,000  429,000  449,000  447,000  

 
 

Page 117



4.2  The Authorised Limit for external borrowing 
 
 A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of 

borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external borrowing is prohibited, and 
this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council. It reflects the level of external 
borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term. 
 
1)  This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the 
total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has 
not yet been exercised. 

 
2)  The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit: 

 

Authorised Limit  
£’000s 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Borrowing     434,000      432,000      445,000      436,000  

Long term liabilities       68,000        67,000        65,000        63,000  

Total     502,000      499,000      510,000      499,000  

 
4.3  HRA CFR Limit 
 
 Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA self 

financing regime. This limit is currently: 
HRA D 

HRA Debt Limit 
£’000s 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

Total 277,649 277,649 277,649 277,649 

14/15 
5.  Investment treasury indicator and limit 
 
 Total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days. These limits are set with 

regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of 
an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end.  

 
 The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

Maximum principal sums 
invested > 364 days 
£’000s 

2012/13 
 

2013/14 
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 
 

Principal sums invested > 
364 days 

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 

Page 118



Appendix 1C 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 
 
1.1 The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund 

capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the Minimum 
Revenue Provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional 
voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   
 

1.2 CLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve a 
MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to 
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended 
to approve the following MRP Statement: 
 

1.2.1 For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

 
• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former 
CLG regulations (option 1). 

 
 These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 

(CFR) each year. 
 
1.2.2 From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 

leases) the MRP policy will be: 
 

• Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the 
assets, in accordance with the proposed regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) 
(option 3). 
 

1.3 These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately 
the asset’s life.  
 

1.4 There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but 
there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although there 
are transitional arrangements in place). 
 

1.7 Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP.  
 
1.8 The MRP methodologies provided above are currently being reviewed by 

officers. Any change to the MRP methodology will be brought for agreement by 
Councillors later in the year.  

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1D  
 

Annual Investment Strategy 
 
1. Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 

Management 
 
 The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of the 

Council’s policy below. These guidelines do not apply to either trust funds or 
pension funds which operate under a different regulatory regime. The key intention 
of the Guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest 
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield.  In order to 
facilitate this objective the guidance requires this Council to have regard to the 
CIPFA publication Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 
and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.  In accordance with the Code, the Divisional 
Director of Finance has produced its treasury management practices (TMPs). This 
part, TMP 1(5), covering investment counterparty policy requires approval each 
year. 

 
1.1 Annual Investment Strategy  
 
 The key requirements of both the Code and investment guidance are to set an 

annual investment strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following 
year, covering the identification and approval of following: 

 

• The strategy guidelines for choosing and placing investments, particularly non 
specified investments. 

• The principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for investing 
funds; 

•  Specified investments that the Council will use. These are high security (i.e. 
high credit rating, although this is defined by the Council, and no guidelines 
are given), and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no 
more than a year. 

• Non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying 
the general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall 
amount of various categories that can be held at any time.  

 
1.2 Strategy Guidelines  
 
 The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the treasury strategy 

statement. 
 
1.3 Specified Investments  
 

These investments are sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity, or 
those which could be for a longer period but where the Council has the right to be 

Page 121



repaid within 12 months if it wishes. These are considered low risk assets where 
the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small. These would 
include sterling investments which would not be defined as capital expenditure 
with: 

 
1) The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account Deposit 

Facility, UK Treasury Bills or a Gilt with less than one year to maturity). 
 

2) Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration. 
 

3) A local authority, parish council or community council. 
 

4) Pooled investment vehicles with a high credit rating. This covers pooled 
investment vehicles, such as money market funds, rated AAA by the rating 
agencies 

 

5) A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank or building 
society.  

 

For category 5 this covers bodies with a minimum short term rating of F1 (or the 
equivalent) as rated by the three rating agencies  

 
1.6 Non-Specified Investments  
 

Non-specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
Specified above). The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these 
other investments and the maximum limits to be applied are set out below. Non 
specified investments would include any sterling investments with: 

 

Non Specified Investment Category 

a.  Supranational Bonds greater than 1 year to maturity 
 

  (a) Multilateral development bank bonds  
These are bonds defined as an international financial institution having as 
one of its objects economic development, either generally or in any region of 
the world (e.g. European Investment Bank etc.). 
 

  (b) A financial institution that is guaranteed by the UK Government 
   (e.g. The Guaranteed Export Finance Company {GEFCO}) 

The security of interest and principal on maturity is on a par with the 
Government and so very secure. These bonds usually provide returns above 
equivalent gilt edged securities. However the value of the bond may rise or 
fall before maturity and losses may accrue if the bond is sold before 
maturity. 
 

Page 122



b.  Gilt edged securities with a maturity of greater than one year. These are 
Government bonds and so provide the highest security of interest and the 
repayment of principal on maturity. Similar to category (a) above, the value 
of the bond may rise or fall before maturity and losses may accrue if the 
bond is sold before maturity. 
 

c.  The Council’s own bank if it fails to meet the basic credit criteria. In this 
instance balances will be minimised as far as is possible. The Council’s 
current bankers are Lloyds TSB which currently is supported by the UK 
government. 
 

d.  Any bank or building society that has a minimum long term credit rating of 
AA- or equivalent, for deposits with a maturity of greater than one year 
(including forward deals in excess of one year from inception to repayment). 
  

e.  Share capital or loan capital in a body corporate – The use of these 
instruments will be deemed to be capital expenditure, and as such will be an 
application (spending) of capital resources. Revenue resources will not be 
invested in corporate bodies. There is a higher risk of loss with these types 
of instruments. This area is currently under consultation by the CLG and 
loan capital may not be deemed capital expenditure from 1 April 2012. 
 

f.  Pooled property or bond funds – The use of these instruments will 
normally be deemed to be capital expenditure, and as such will be an 
application (spending) of capital resources. Revenue resources will not be 
invested in corporate bodies. 
 

 
Within categories c and d, and in accordance with the Code, the Council has 
developed additional criteria to set the overall amount of monies which will be 
invested in these bodies. This criteria is set out in section 11.3 in the body of the 
report.  
 
In respect of categories e and f, these will only be considered after obtaining 
external advice and subsequent Member approval. 

 
1.7 The Monitoring of Investment Counterparties 

 
The credit rating of counterparties will be monitored regularly. The Council 
receives credit rating information (changes, rating watches and rating outlooks) 
from Sector as and when ratings change, and counterparties are checked 
promptly On occasion ratings may be downgraded when an investment has 
already been made. The criteria used are such that a minor downgrading should 
not affect the full receipt of the principal and interest. Any counterparty failing to 
meet the criteria will be removed from the list immediately by the Divisional 
Director of Finance, and if required new counterparties which meet the criteria 
will be added to the list. 
 

Page 123



1.8 Use of External Fund Manager(s) 
 
It is the Council’s policy to use external fund manager(s) for part of its investment 
portfolio. The fund managers will use both specified and non-specified 
investment categories, and are contractually committed to keep to the Council’s 
investment strategy. The terms of the fund managers’ investment policies are 
detailed in the investment mandate agreement. The performance of each 
manager is reviewed at least quarterly by the Divisional Director of Finance and 
the managers are contractually required to comply with the annual investment 
strategy  

 
1.9 Credit Quality Criteria and Allowable Financial Instruments 
 

The table on the following page sets out the credit quality criteria for 
counterparties and allowable financial instruments for Council investments: 

  

Page 124



Specified Investments: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, 
meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to 
institutions or investment vehicles are: 
 

Counterparty / Financial Instrument 
  

Minimum Credit 
Rating Criteria / 
Colour Band 

 Other Investment Criteria Use 

Maximum 
Duration 

Counterparty 
Limit £m 

In 
House 

Fund 
Manager 

Government Supported UK Bank Lloyds 
TSB: SIBA (Call) Accounts Term Deposits, 
CDs, Structured Deposits, Corporate 
Bonds 

Blue Up to 1 year 
Lower of £40m or 
40% of total 

investable cash  
Y Y 

Government Supported UK Bank - RBS 
SIBA (Call) Accounts Term Deposits, CDs, 
Structured Deposits, Corporate Bonds 

Blue Up to 1 year £30m Y Y 

Other UK Banks & Building Societies * 
SIBA (Call) Accounts Term Deposits, CDs, 
Structured Deposits, Corporate Bond 

Orange Up to 1 year 

£20m Y Y 
Red Up to 6 Months 

Green Up to 3 months 

No Colour Not for use 

Multilateral Development Banks 
Corporate Bonds 

AAA 12 months £10m Y Y 

Local Authorities: Term Deposits 
High Security - not 

credit rated 
12 months £15m per authority Y Y 

UK Government 

UK Sovereign 
Rating 

N/A N/A 

    

Treasury Bills Y Y 

Gilts N Y 

DMADF Y Y 

Money Market Funds AAA T+1 £15m per Manager Y Y 

Managed Funds Long Term rating for 
Fitch (AA), Moody's 
(Aa2),  S&P (AA) 

T+3 £15m 

    

Gilt Funds/Bond Funds N Y 

Collective Investment Schemes Y Y 

P
age 125



Non-Specified Investments: These are any investments which do not meet the specified investment criteria and are held 
for longer that 365 days.  A maximum of 40% will be held in aggregate in non-specified investment 
 

 

Minimum Credit Rating – Based 
on Fitch and S&P’s Ranking Used By 

Support 
Rating 

Maximum 
Maturity 
Period 

Maximum 
% of Total 
Council 

Investment Short-Term Long-Term Viability 

Term Deposits – Local Authorities 
(with maturity in excess of 1 year) 

High Security – although not credit 
rated 

In House  2 years 25% 

Term deposits – Banks & 
Building Societies (with maturity 
in excess of 1 year, incl. structured 
products) 

F1 or 
Equivalent 

AA- or 
Equivalent 

 
 In-house 1 2 years 25% 

Certificates of deposit issued by 
banks and building societies  

F1 or 
Equivalent 

AA- or 
Equivalent 

 
 

Fund 
Managers 

1 2 years 40% 

UK Government Gilts with 
maturities in excess of 1 year  

AAA  
Fund 

Managers 
 3 years 40% 

Pooled Funds (Various)  F1 AAA  
Fund 

Managers 
  40% 

Structured Deposits with variable 
rates and maturities (Callable & 
Flappable Deposits, range trades 
& snowballs)  

F1 AAA B In-house 1 2 years 25% 

Bonds issued by: 
Financial Institutions with explicit 
UK government guarantee 
Multilateral Development Banks 

AAA  
In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

 3 years 40% 

Sovereign Bond Issues (other 
than UK Government) 

AAA  
Fund 

Managers 
   

Bond Funds  AAA  
Fund 

Managers 
   

P
age 126



Non-Specified Investments with Maturities of Any Period: From time to time in periods of volatile interest rates, the 
Council may invest in non-specified investments with variable rates and variable maturities: 
 

Organisation 
Minimum 
Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Maximum 
Maturity 
Period & 
Limit 

Local Authority mortgage guarantee 
scheme 

AAA 
Fund Manager 
In-house 

5 years 
25% 

 
Key 
Short Term Ratings  F1   – Indicates the strongest capacity for timely repayment 
 
Long Term Ratings  A     – Capacity for payment of commitments considered strong 

AA   – Very strong capacity for payment of commitments 
AAA – Exceptionally strong capacity for payment of commitments 
 

Individual Rating  B     – Strong organisation, no major concerns. 
C     – Adequate organisation, some concerns regarding its profitability and Balance Sheet. 
 

Support Rating 1      – There is an extremely high probability of external support. 
2      – High probability of external support 

 3      – Moderate probability of support 

P
age 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1E 

Approved countries for investments 

 

Credit Rating as at 31 January 2013 - AAA 

 

Australia 

Canada 

Denmark 

Finland 

Germany 

Luxembourg 

Netherlands 

Norway 

Singapore 

Sweden 

Switzerland 

U.K. 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1F 
 

Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation and  
Section 151 Officer Responsibilities 

 
Treasury management scheme of delegation 
 
(i) Full board/council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and 

activities; 

• approval of annual strategy. 

 
(ii) Boards/committees/council/responsible body 

• approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

• budget consideration and approval; 

• approval of the division of responsibilities; 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations; 

• approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 

appointment. 

 
(iii) Body/person(s) with responsibility for scrutiny 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 

recommendations to the responsible body. 

The treasury management role of the section 151 officer 

The S151 (responsible) officer 

• recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

• submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

• submitting budgets and budget variations; 

• receiving and reviewing management information reports; 

• reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; and 

• recommending the appointment of external service providers. 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1G 
 

Economic Background 
 
The Global economy 
 
The Eurozone debt crisis has continued to cast a pall over the world economy and has 
depressed growth in most countries.  This has impacted the UK economy which is 
unlikely to grow significantly in 2012 and is creating a major headwind for recovery in 
2013. Quarter 2 of 2012 was the third quarter of contraction in the economy; this 
recession is the worst and slowest recovery of any of the five recessions since 1930.  A 
return to growth @ 1% in quarter 3 in unlikely to prove anything more than a washing 
out of the dip in the previous quarter before a return to weak, or even negative, growth 
in quarter 4.  
  
The Eurozone sovereign debt crisis has abated somewhat following the ECB’s 
pledge to buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for a bailout.  The 
immediate target for this statement was Spain which continues to prevaricate on making 
such a request (for a national bailout) and so surrendering its national sovereignty to 
IMF supervision.  However, the situation in Greece is heading towards a crunch point as 
the Eurozone imminently faces up to having to relax the time frame for Greece reducing 
its total debt level below 120% of GDP and providing yet more financial support to 
enable it to do that.  Many commentators still view a Greek exit from the Euro as 
inevitable as total debt now looks likely to reach 190% of GDP i.e. unsustainably high, 
unless the Eurozone were to accept a major write down of Greek debt. The possibility of 
a write down has now been raised by the German Chancellor, but not until 2014-15, and 
provided the Greek annual budget is in balance.    
 
Sentiment in financial markets has improved considerably since this ECB action and 
recent Eurozone renewed commitment to support Greece and to keep the Eurozone 
intact.  However, the foundations to this “solution” to the Eurozone debt crisis are still 
weak and events could easily conspire to put this into reverse. 
 
The US economy has only been able to manage weak growth in 2012 despite huge 
efforts by the Federal Reserve to stimulate the economy by liberal amounts of 
quantitative easing (QE) combined with a commitment to a continuation of ultra low 
interest rates into 2015.   Unemployment levels have been slowly reducing but against a 
background of a fall in the numbers of those available for work. The fiscal cliff facing the 
President at the start of 2013 has been a major dampener discouraging business from 
spending on investment and increasing employment more significantly in case there is a 
sharp contraction in the economy in the pipeline.  However, the housing market does 
look as if it has, at long last, reached the bottom and house prices are now on the up.   
 
Hopes for a broad based recovery have, therefore, focused on the emerging markets. 
However, there are increasing concerns over flashing warning signs in various parts of 

Page 133



the Chinese economy that indicate it could be in risk of heading for a hard landing rather 
than a gradual slow down.   
 
The UK economy 
 
The Government’s austerity measures, aimed at getting the public sector deficit into 
order, have now had to be extended in the autumn statement over a longer period than 
the original four years. Achieving this new extended time frame will still be dependent 
on the UK economy returning to a reasonable pace of growth towards the end of this 
period.  It was important for the Government to retain investor confidence in UK gilts so 
there was little room for it to change course other than to move back the timeframe.   
 
Currently, the UK is enjoying a major financial benefit from some of the lowest 
sovereign borrowing costs in the world as the UK is seen as a safe haven from 
Eurozone debt.  There is, though, little evidence that consumer confidence levels are 
recovering nor that the manufacturing sector is picking up.  On the positive side, growth 
in the services sector rebounded in Q3 and banks have made huge progress since 
2008 in shrinking their balance sheets to more manageable levels and also in reducing 
their dependency on wholesale funding.  However, availability of credit remains tight in 
the economy and the Funding for Lending scheme, which started in August 2012, has 
not yet had time to make a significant impact. Finally, the housing market remains tepid 
and the outlook is for house prices to be little changed for a prolonged period.  
 
Economic Growth. Economic growth has basically flat lined since the election of 2010 
and, worryingly, the economic forecasts for 2012 and beyond were revised substantially 
lower in the Bank of England Inflation quarterly report for August 2012 and were then 
further lowered in the November Report. Quantitative Easing (QE) was increased again 
by £50bn in July 2012 to a total of £375bn.  Many forecasters are expecting the MPC to 
vote for a further round of QE to stimulate economic activity regardless of any near-term 
optimism. The announcement in November 2012 that £35bn will be transferred from the 
Bank of England’s Asset Purchase Facility to the Treasury (representing coupon 
payments to the Bank by the Treasury on gilts held by the Bank) is also effectively a 
further addition of QE. 
 
Unemployment. The Government’s austerity strategy has resulted in a substantial 
reduction in employment in the public sector.  Despite this, total employment has 
increased to the highest level for four years as over one million jobs have been created 
in the private sector in the last two years.   
 
Inflation and Bank Rate.  Inflation has fallen sharply during 2012 from a peak of 5.2% 
in September 2011 to 2.2% in September 2012. However, inflation increased back to 
2.7% in October though it is expected to fall back to reach the 2% target level within the 
two year horizon. 
 
AAA rating. The UK continues to enjoy an AAA sovereign rating.  However, the credit 
rating agencies will be carefully monitoring the rate of growth in the economy as a 

Page 134



disappointing performance in that area could lead to a major derailment of the plans to 
contain the growth in the total amount of Government debt over the next few years.  
   
Sector’s forward view  
 
Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on the 
UK. There does, however, appear to be consensus among analysts that the economy 
remains relatively fragile and whilst there is still a broad range of views as to potential 
performance, expectations have all been downgraded during 2012. Key areas of 
uncertainty include: 

• the potential for the Eurozone to withdraw support for Greece at some point if the 
Greek government was unable to eliminate the annual budget deficit and the 
costs of further support were to be viewed as being prohibitive, so causing a 
worsening of the Eurozone debt crisis and heightened risk of the breakdown of 
the bloc or even of the currency itself;  

• inter government agreement on how to deal with the overall Eurozone debt crisis 
could fragment; the impact of the Eurozone crisis on financial markets and the 
banking sector;  

• the impact of the Government’s austerity plan on confidence and growth and the 
need to rebalance the economy from services to manufactured goods;  

• the under-performance of the UK economy which could undermine the 
Government’s policies that have been based upon levels of growth that are 
unlikely to be achieved;  

• the risk  of the UK’s main trading partners, in particular the EU and US, falling 
into recession ;  

• stimulus packages failing to stimulate growth;  

• elections due in Germany in 2013;  

• potential for protectionism i.e. an escalation of the currency war / trade dispute 
between the US and China.  

• the potential for action to curtail the Iranian nuclear programme 

• the situation in Syria deteriorating and impacting other countries in the Middle 
East 

 
The focus of so many consumers, corporates and banks on reducing their borrowings, 
rather than spending, will continue to act as a major headwind to a return to robust 
growth in western economies.   
 
Given the weak outlook for economic growth, Sector sees the prospects for any 
changes in Bank Rate before 2015 as very limited.  There is potential for the start of 
Bank Rate increases to be even further delayed if growth disappoints. 
 

Page 135



Sector believes that the longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise due to 
the high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in 
other major western countries. The interest rate forecast in this report represents a 
balance of downside and upside risks.  The downside risks have already been 
commented on.  However, there are specific identifiable upside risks as follows to 
PWLB rates and gilt yields, and especially to longer term rates and yields: - 
 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US causing an 
increase in the inflation premium in gilt yields 

• Reversal of QE; this could initially be allowing gilts held by the Bank to mature 
without reinvesting in new purchases,  followed later by outright sale of gilts 
currently held 

• Reversal of Sterling’s safe haven status on an improvement in financial stresses 
in the Eurozone 

• Investors reverse de-risking by moving money from government bonds into 
shares in anticipation of a return to worldwide economic growth 

• The possibility of a UK credit rating downgrade (Moody’s has stated that it will 
review the UK’s AAA rating at the start of 2013). 

Page 136



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Pay Policy Statement 2013/14 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Services and Human Resources 
 

Open Report For Decision 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  Martin Rayson, Divisional Director 
Human Resources and 
Organisational Development 

 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 3113 
E-mail: martin.rayson@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Martin Rayson, Divisional Director Human Resources 
and Organisational Development 

 

Accountable Corporate Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
Under the terms of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must agree before the start of the 
new financial year a pay policy statement covering chief officer posts and above.  The Act 
sets out matters which must be covered under the policy.   
 
In addition in November 2011, the Council’s Cabinet agreed that no member of staff in a 
substantive post should be paid less than the London Living Wage (LLW).  The Mayor of 
London announced in November 2012 that the LLW would increase to £8.55 per hour 
(from £8.30).  At its meeting on 12 February 2013 Cabinet agreed that as of 1 January 
2013, no permanent member of the Council’s staff or agency staff working on Council 
assignments should be paid less than £9 per hour (excluding those on apprenticeship 
schemes).  This supports the Council’s ambition to raise average household incomes 
 
The draft Pay Policy Statement for 2013/14 is included at Appendix A. 
 
The Cabinet considered the draft Policy at its meeting on 12 February 2013 and has 
recommended its adoption to the Assembly  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to approve the Pay Policy Statement for the London 
Borough of Barking and Dagenham for 2013/14, for publication with effect from 1 April 
2013, as attached at Appendix A to the report. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
Under the terms of the Localism Act 2011 the Assembly must agree a pay policy 
statement in advance of the start of each financial year. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 137



1. Introduction and Proposal 
 
1.1 Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh local authorities 

to produce a pay policy statement for senior staff (chief officers) to be agreed by all 
Councillors at an Assembly meeting, before the beginning of each financial year.  
This policy is timetabled to go to Assembly on 25 February 2013. 

 
1.2 The Council produced its first pay policy statement for the 2012/13 financial year 

and this document follows the same format.  The definition of “chief officers” covers 
the Chief Executive, Corporate Directors and Divisional Directors.  The matters that 
must be included in the pay policy statement are a council’s policy on: 

 

• The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer. 
 

• The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees (together with its definition of 
“lowest-paid employees” and its reasons for adopting that definition). 

 

• The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and other officers. 
 

• Other specific aspects of chief officers’ remuneration: remuneration on 
recruitment, increases and additions to remuneration, use of performance-
related pay and bonuses, termination payments, and transparency. 

 
1.3 The Localism Act defines remuneration widely, to include not just pay but also 

charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in/enhancements of pension 
entitlements, and termination payments. 

 
1.4 The pay policy statement: 
 

• Must be approved formally by the Council (Assembly) meeting itself 

• Must be approved by the end of March each year, starting with 2012 

• Can be amended in-year 

• Must be published on the Council’s website (and in any other way the 
Council chooses) 

• Must be complied with when the Council sets the terms and conditions for a 
chief officer. 

 

1.5 The statement has been updated to take account of changes during the course of 
the year, notably: 
 

• The sharing of the Chief Executive post with Thurrock Borough Council 

• The decision to keep the post of Corporate Director – Finance and Resources 
vacant 

• The deletion of the post of Divisional Director – Adult Commissioning 

• The appointment to the Director post following the transfer of the public health 
function (see Section 6) 

• The appointment of the new Head of Legal and Democratic Services, a shared 
post with Thurrock Council 

 
1.6 The Chief Executive will continue to review senior management levels during 2013 

and, in particular, will explore opportunities to share posts with Thurrock Borough 
Council.  The JNC Pay Panel is meeting on 6 March 2013 to review levels of pay for 

Page 138



senior staff.   Any changes agreed following consultation with those staff affected, 
would be reflected in a revised pay policy statement brought to Assembly at a later 
date. 

 
2. Pay Rates of Lowest Paid Staff 
 
2.1 In Section 12 of the Pay Policy Statement, reference is made to “fairness” and the 

decision of the Council in November of 2011 that no member of staff at LBBD (i.e. 
excluding apprentices) would receive less than the LLW, which at the time was 
£8.30 per hour.  As of 1 January 2012, therefore relevant pay scales were uplifted. 
In the spring of 2012 the Council agreed that no agency staff working for the 
Council should be paid less than the LLW.  An appropriate clause was therefore 
added to the new contract for agency staff with Adecco, which had a start date of 
June 2012. 

 
2.2 At the beginning of November 2012 the Mayor of London announced that the 

London Living Wage (LLW) would increase to £8.55 per hour.  No specific date was 
given for its implementation.  In reviewing the position of the Council consideration 
has been given as to the extent to which an increase for the Council lowest paid 
staff to £8.55 is sufficient to ensure “fairness” in pay and supports the Council’s 
ambition to increase average household incomes.  

 
2.3 Councillors have made clear their intention that lowest-paid staff should receive 

help in these tough times – over and above the level recommended by the Mayor of 
London.  This takes account of the uniquely challenging settlement for local 
government and the impact this has on lower paid staff.  It is recommended, 
therefore, that the Council increases the rate of pay of its lowest paid permanent 
staff to the equivalent of at least £9 per hour (and annual salary of £16,425).  It is 
further proposed that this increase be backdated to 1 January 2013. 

 
2.4 This decision would benefit over 1,500 staff.  The annual cost to the Council of 

increasing the pay of permanent staff is £314,000.  The cost of paying £9 an hour to 
staff on agency contracts with the Council is estimated to be up to £100,000 
annually.  Implementation of the decision from 1 January 2013 adds an additional 
pressure to 2012/13 budgets of approximately £78,500, which services believe they 
can absorb. 

 
3. Financial Issues 
 
 Implications completed by: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director, Finance 
 
3.1 The annual cost to the Council of increasing pay rates to at least £9 per hour, based 

on the Council’s current staffing structure, is set out in the table below: 

 

No. 
Staff 

Add Cost of 
£9/hr 

Add Cost of 
£9/hr (inc 
on-costs) 

Chief Executive 1 £38 £48 
Adult & Community Services 
Dept 25 £5,555 £6,946 

Children & Young People 1,179 £105,749 £132,215 

Page 139



Finance And Resources 319 £140,057 £175,005 

Housing & Environment 1 £134 £168 

Total 1,525 £251,533 £314,382 

  

3.2  An additional £1m has been included in the budget to cover the potential cost of a 
1% pay award, which may be agreed as part of the national negotiations on pay.  
There is not currently, however, any specific provision in the 2013/14 budget for the 
extra cost to service budgets of raising the minimum hourly rate to £9, but the wider 
economic and social benefits associated with increasing pay rates at the bottom of 
the Council’s pay scales is believed to outweigh the cost.   
 

3.3 The options to fund the estimated £314,000 pressure are: 
 

• To reduce the headroom in the agreed 2013/14 budget thereby increasing 

the overall budget gap for 2013/14 to 2014/15; or 

• To fund from corporate contingency thereby reducing the available funds in 

2013/14 to absorb any unforeseen pressures or invest in new corporate 

priorities and initiatives. 

The additional pressure caused by implementing this increase during the 2012/13 
budget year can be absorbed within existing budgets. 

 
3.4 Where the staff impacted by this increase in pay work in services that are traded to 

schools or other bodies, the fee structure for those services will need to be 
considered as it currently operates on the principle of full cost recovery.  There is a 
potential risk to those income budgets if the additional costs make the services 
uncompetitive on price and lead to a reduction in the value for money offered.  

 
3.5 There are no additional budget pressures caused by the agreement of the Pay 

Policy Statement, as this reflects the current position on pay. 
 
 Legal Issues 
 

Implications completed by: Fiona Taylor, Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
4.1 This report outlines our obligations with regards to senior officer pay and in 

particular in relation to the information to be provided pursuant to section 38 of the 
Localism Act.  Legal comments are included in this report. 

  
5. Other Implications 
 
5.1 Risk Management – There are no risks attached to this statement as attached as it 

describes the current position. 
 
5.2 Contractual Issues – This statement makes no changes to employees’ contractual 

position. 
 
5.3 Staffing Issues – The staffing issues are fully explored within the main body of the 

report. 
 
 

Page 140



Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Localism Act 2011 

• Cabinet Report, 14 February 2012: Pay Policy Statement 2013/14 
 

List of appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Pay Policy Statement 2013/14 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX A 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING AND DAGENHAM 

 

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2013/14 

 
 
1. Introduction – Requirement for Council Pay Policy Statement 
 
1.1 Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh local 

authorities to produce a pay policy statement to be agreed by members before the 
beginning of each financial year.  The Act does not apply to local authority 
schools.  This document meets the requirements of the Act for the London 
Borough of Barking and Dagenham.  The Council agreed its first Pay Policy in 
March 2012 and this is the second, to cover the 2013/14 financial year. 

 
1.2 The provisions of the “Act” require that councils are more open about their own 

local policies and how their local decisions are made.  The Code of 
Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency enshrines the 
principles of transparency and asks councils to follow three principles when 
publishing data they hold: responding to public demand; releasing data in open 
formats available for re-use, and, releasing data in a timely way.  This includes 
data on senior salaries and the structure of the workforce. 

 
2. Pay and Reward Principles 
 
2.1 The Council recognises that to achieve its objectives for the communities it serves, 

it needs to be able to attract and retain talented people at all levels of the 
organisation.  The Council’s People Strategy sets out a range of actions the 
Council will take to ensure that we have 

 
 “the right people, with the right skills in the right places, with the right 

kinds of management and leadership, motivated to perform well” 
 
2.2 Whatever their role, the Council seeks to ensure that every member of staff is 

valued and remunerated on a fair and just basis.  Our approach to pay is designed 
to ensure: 
 

• Pay levels are affordable for the Council, at a time when we are 
making some very difficult decisions about spending on services to the 
community; 
 

• We can demonstrate fairness and equity in what we pay people at 
different levels and in different parts of the Council; and 
 

• Pay is set at levels which enable us to recruit and retain the quality of 
staff we need to help us achieve our objectives at a time of financial 
hardship. 

 

Page 143



2.3 The Council remains committed to being part of the local government national pay 
negotiation structure (overseen by the National Joint Council).  The Council has 
also committed to pay all its employees in substantive posts an annual salary, 
which is at least the equivalent of the London Living Wage. 

 
2.4 Pay levels are determined through a job evaluation system.  For staff at PO6 and 

below we generally use the Greater London Provincial Council job evaluation 
system.  For posts at PO7 and above in most cases we use the HAY job 
evaluation system.  Pay point 49 (£43,368) is at the top of PO6 and bottom of 
PO7. Each system assesses the relative “size” of the role against a range of 
criteria, relating to its complexity, the number of resources managed and the 
knowledge required to undertake the role.  

 
2.5 Pay rates are generally set against the national pay spine agreed by the National 

Joint Council (although there are a few exceptions).  
 
3. Defining “Chief Officers” 
  
3.1 The implementation of savings plans has seen a reduction in the number of “chief 

officer” posts year on year.  At the start of the 2013/14 financial year, the Council 
will employ the following number of Chief Officers: 

 
Chief Executive  - 0.5 (shared with Thurrock Council) 
 
Corporate Directors - 3 
 
Divisional Directors - 13.5 (one post shared with Thurrock Council)  

 
 Where posts are shared with another council, this Council (LBBD) makes a regular 

payment to that council for the services provided 
 
4. Accountability for Chief Officers Pay 
 
4.1 The pay arrangements for chief officers are overseen by a Panel (called the JNC 

Salaries and Conditions Panel) appointed by the Council’s Assembly. 
 
4.2 The Council’s constitution sets out the responsibilities and composition of the 

Panel and states: 
 
 JNC Salaries and Conditions Panel - consisting of the Leader and Deputy 

Leader of the Council (as Chair and Deputy Chair respectively), the relevant 
Portfolio Holder(s), the Cabinet Member for Finance, Revenues and Benefits, plus 
at least two other councillors to consider and make final decisions in relation to 
salaries and conditions for JNC officers (including the Chief Executive) and the 
grading of any new JNC posts in line with Council policy. 

 
5.  Current Pay Policy and Base Pay Rates 
 
5.1 Setting Salary Levels 
 
5.1.1  All chief officer roles are evaluated using the HAY job evaluation system.  Spot 

salary levels were set for chief officer roles in 2008.  There is a commitment to 

Page 144



review salary levels every three years.  In undertaking reviews, account is taken of 
the market, particularly the market in London.  

 
5.1.2 In 2008 salaries were set at the top of the third quartile in comparison with 

equivalent roles in London at that time.  This reflected the fact that whilst the 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham is one of the smaller boroughs in 
terms of population, it is a community that faces significant challenges and 
therefore the view was taken that we needed to attract a good choice of senior 
staff with the appropriate skills and experience. 

 
5.1.3  All Divisional Director salaries were reviewed in December 2010, following 

structural changes made in preparation for the 2011/12 financial year.  Corporate 
Director salaries have not been reviewed since 2008.  A recent review suggests 
that in most cases the salary levels for Directors and Divisional Directors are 
around the median level for posts around London and it is appropriate to pay at 
that level (rather than at the top of the third quartile as they were in 2008), given 
the state of the employment market and the pressure on LBBD budgets. 

 
5.4  Chief Executive 
 
  The current Chief Executive was appointed on an interim basis in July 2012.  The 

post is shared with Thurrock Council and the salary paid by Thurrock to the post 
holder is £185,000.  The cost to this Council is therefore £92,500 annually.  The 
previous Chief Executive was on a salary of £150,000 and the Council is therefore 
making a saving of around £75,000 when on-costs are taken into account. 

 
5.5  Corporate Directors  
 
  The three remaining Corporate Directors are on the following salary points: 
 

 Adult and 
Community 
Services 

 Chief 
Officers.CH
IEFO.0  131,757.00 

 
 Children's 

Services  
 

 Chief 
Officers.CH
IEFO.0  131,757.00 

 
 Housing & 

Environment  
 

 Chief 
Officers.CH
IEFO.0  131,757.00 

 

  The post of Corporate Director Finance and Resources, which became vacant 
when the previous post holder left in September 2012, has not been filled.  The 
salary paid to that individual was £145,000.    

  
5.6 Divisional Directors 
 
  There are four spot salary levels for these posts: 

 
    CO1 - £70,332  0 posts 

   CO2 - £78,740  1 post 

Page 145



      CO3 - £89,763   8.5 posts 
     CO4 - £108,661 3 posts 

  
 It is appropriate for there to be some differentiation in pay levels at Divisional 

Director level because of the differing amounts of risk and responsibility being 
carried at that level.  The 0.5 post is shared with Thurrock Council who reimburse 
this Council for 50% of the cost. 

 
6. Director of Public Health 
 
6.1 Following the transfer of responsibility for public health to local authorities, we 

have from 1st April 2013, established a Director of Public Health post. The post 
holder will transfer across from the NHS on current pay (£90,000) and terms and 
conditions, under TUPE. 

 
7. Contingent Pay 
 
7.1 The Council pays its Chief Officers a spot salary.  There is no element of 

performance pay, nor are any bonuses paid.  No overtime is paid to Chief Officers. 
There are no lease car arrangements. 

 
7.2 There are three additional historic payments made to senior staff over and above 

basic salary: 
 
 Divisional Director of Finance - £3,237 per annum (market supplement) 
 
 Divisional Director of Complex Needs and Social Care - £10,000 per annum 

(market supplement) 
 
 Divisional Director of Housing Strategy - £257.52 per annum (experience and 

length of service payment) 
 
8. Pensions 
 
8.1 All Council employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.   

The Council does not enhance pensionable service for its employees either at the 
recruitment stage or on leaving the service, except in certain cases of retirement 
on grounds of permanent ill-health where the strict guidelines specified within the 
pension regulations are followed. 

 
9. Other Terms and Conditions 
 
9.1 Employment conditions and any subsequent amendments are incorporated into 

employees’ contracts of employment.  Chief Officer contracts state: 
 
 “Where adopted by the Council for your employment group and unless otherwise 

indicated in this statement, your terms and conditions of employment are as set 
out in the NJC (National Joint Council) for Local Government Services otherwise 
called the “Green Book”.  These terms and conditions may be supplemented by 
agreements reached collectively at the Greater London Provincial Council and at 
the Council’s Employee Joint Consultative Committee.” 

 

Page 146



9.2 The Council’s employment policies and procedures and terms and conditions are 
reviewed on a regular basis in the light of service delivery needs and any changes 
in legislation. 

 
10. Election Expenses 
 
10.1 The fees paid to Council employees for undertaking election duties vary according 

to the type of election they participate in and the nature of the duties they 
undertake.  All election fees paid are additional to Council salary and are subject 
to normal deductions for tax.  

 
10.2 Returning Officer duties (and those of the Deputy Returning Officer) are 

contractual requirements but fees paid to them for national elections / referendums 
are paid in accordance with the appropriate Statutory Fees and Charges Order.  

 
11. Termination / Severance Payments 
 
11.1 Employees who leave the Council, including the Chief Executive and Chief 

Officers, are not entitled to receive any payments from the Council, except in the 
case of redundancy or retirement as indicated below.   

 
11.2 Retirement 
 
11.2.1 Employees who contribute to the Local Government Pension Scheme who elect to 

retire at age 60 or over are entitled to receive immediate payment of their pension 
benefits in accordance with the Scheme.   Early retirement, with immediate 
payment of pension benefits, is also possible under the Pension Scheme with the 
permission of the Council in specified circumstances from age 55 onwards and on 
grounds of permanent ill-health at any age. 

 
11.2.2 The Council will consider applications for flexible retirement from employees aged 

55 or over on their individual merits and in the light of service delivery needs.   
 
11.3 Redundancy 
 
11.3.1 Employees who are made redundant are entitled to receive statutory redundancy 

pay as set out in legislation calculated on their actual salary.  The standard 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham redundancy scheme applies to Chief 
Officers. The scheme was amended in November 2011 and a maximum of 45 
weeks of actual pay is payable depending on length of service.  This scheme may 
be amended from time to time in accordance with the Council’s Constitution  

 
11.4 Compromise Agreements 
 
11.4.1 Where an employee leaves the Council’s service in circumstances which are, or 

would be likely to, give rise to an action seeking redress through the Courts from 
the Council about the nature of the employee’s departure from the Council’s 
employment, the Council may settle such claims by way of compromise 
agreement where it is in the Council’s interests to do so.  The amount to be paid in 
any such instance may include an amount of compensation, which is appropriate 
in all the circumstances of the individual case.  Should such a matter involve the 

Page 147



departure of a Director or the Chief Executive it will only be agreed following 
external legal advice that it would be lawful and reasonable to pay it. 

 
12. Fairness 
 
12.1 In November 2011, the Council’s Cabinet agreed that no member of staff in a 

substantive post should be paid less than the London Living Wage.  In November 
2012 the Mayor of London announced that the London Living Wage would 
increase to £8.55 per hour (from £8.30).  Cabinet have agreed that as of 1 January 
2013, no permanent member of the Council’s staff should be paid less than £9 per 
hour (excluding those on apprenticeship schemes).  This supports the Council’s 
ambition to raise average household incomes and believes this to be an important 
statement in terms of pay fairness.  The Council has also agreed that this should 
apply to all agency staff working on Council assignments. 

 
12.2 The equivalent annual salary to £9 per hour is £16,425.  Based on this figure, the 

Council’s pay multiple - the ratio between the highest paid employee and lowest 
paid employee - is now 1:8 (previously 1:10), if we consider the Council’s highest 
paid employees to be the Corporate Directors on salaries of £131,757 per annum.  
However if we take the Chief Executive’s full salary as the comparator, the ratio 
has increased to 1:11.26. 

 
12.3 The ratio between the taxable earnings for the Corporate Directors’ salaries and 

the median earnings figure for all employees in the Council is 1:6.5 (1:9.15 when 
compared to the Chief Executive’s full salary).  The median earnings figure is for 
all employees as at December 2012 was £20,205 pa. 

 
12.4 The table below gives a comparison of the ratio of highest to median salary in 

other London Boroughs, where information is available: 
 

Ratio Number 

1:10 and above 
 

5 

Between 1:7 and 1:10 
 

7 

Between 1:5 and 1:7 
 

12 

 
13.  Any Additional Reward Arrangements 
 
13.1 There are none in place. 
 
 
 
If there are any enquiries about these arrangements please apply to Martin Rayson, 
Divisional Director, Human Resources and Organisational Development 
(martin.rayson@lbbd.gov.uk) 

Page 148



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Constitutional Arrangements for the Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Health 
 

Open Report  
 

For Decision 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author: Mark Tyson, Group Manager, 
Service Support & Improvement 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2875 
E-mail: mark.tyson@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Glynis Rogers, Divisional Director, Community Safety 
& Public Protection 

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director of Adult & Community Services 
 

Summary:  
 
The Health & Social Care Act 2012 introduced a statutory requirement for the Council to 
form a Health & Wellbeing Board, which will be an executive committee of the Council.   
Regulations have been published that further specify elements of the Board’s operation.  
The Board has been operating in shadow form since November 2010, during which time 
the future statutory status of the Board has been discussed on a number of occasions, 
both at the Board and in other forums.  The resulting proposed entries to the constitution 
therefore take account of the views of partners as well as the statutory requirements. 
 
This report proposes the main entries to the Constitution (attached at Appendices A & B) 
to cover the operation of the Health & Wellbeing Board in order that the Council can meet 
its statutory obligations.   
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to agree: 
 
(i) Inclusion of the sections into the Constitution as set out in appendices A and B.  
(ii) To receive a further report of any subsequent amendments required as part of the 

report to Annual Assembly in May 2013. 
(iii) Note the expectation that the Health & Wellbeing Board will be subject to the 

scrutiny process, principally by the Health & Adult Services Select Committee. 
(iv) To delegate to the Council’s Monitoring Officer to make any necessary 

consequential amendments to other areas of the Constitution, such as the Scheme 
of Delegation. 

 

Reason(s) 
 
The constitutional amendments have been drafted so as to give effect to the statutory 
requirement placed on the Council to create a Health & Wellbeing Board.  Approval at 
February’s meeting of the Assembly will meet the statutory timescale of 1 April 2013 for 
introducing a Health & Wellbeing Board.  

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 149



 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Barking & Dagenham’s Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board was established in 

November 2010.  The ‘shadow’ designation indicated that it was an interim 
arrangement pending Royal Assent for the Health & Social Care Act 2012, and 
publication of final regulations on the running of the Board. 

 
1.2 The form of the future operation of the Health & Wellbeing Board has been shaped 

following a number of discussions at the Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board, as well 
as directly with partners.  This also takes account of statutory requirements laid 
down in the Health & Social Care Act 2012 and in the regulations that followed it.  

 
1.3 The Health & Wellbeing Board will be an important new structure, within which the 

Council and its partners can work jointly on improving local health and social care 
services, and on improving the health and wellbeing of the local population.  It is 
part of a series of reforms laid out in the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which 
together provide the Council with a central role in co-ordinating local health and 
social care activity.  As a mechanism for democratic leadership of health and 
wellbeing locally, the new Board sits alongside the commissioning of patient 
involvement and advocacy services (principally the new ‘Healthwatch’ service), the 
Council’s new responsibilities for leadership of public health, and the long-standing 
powers of health scrutiny. 

 
1.4 The establishment of the Health & Wellbeing Board is governed by sections 194-

197 of the Act, which specify that the Council must have a Health & Wellbeing 
Board.  The Health & Wellbeing Board will be a committee of the local authority, as 
though under Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972.  Subsequent 
regulations (The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013) clarify specific elements of this enactment, 
disapplying those provisions of the Local Government Act not deemed appropriate 
to the particular circumstances of Health & Wellbeing Boards.  In particular, the 
regulations remove the necessity of ensuring political balance on the Health & 
Wellbeing Board; remove disqualifications for non-Elected Members from 
participating in the Board (except on grounds of bankruptcy or serious criminal 
conviction); provide an option around non-Elected Members being voting members; 
and permit the delegation of functions to sub-committees.  

 
 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
 The functions of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
2.1 The constitutional amendments at appendices A and B set out a proposed role for 

the Board which adopts the statutory requirements and adds selected further 
responsibilities.  

 
2.2 In terms of function, the Health & Social Care Act expects of the Health & Wellbeing 

Board that it: 
 

• Must encourage all those who arrange the provision of health and social care 
services to work together in an integrated manner; 

Page 150



 

• Must provide advice, assistance, support and encouragement to 
organisations making joint commissioning/provision arrangements through 
Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006; 

 

• May encourage those who arrange provision of health-related services to 
work closely with the Health & Wellbeing Board (‘health-related services’ are 
those, such as housing, which are not health services in themselves, but 
which have a significant impact on health); 

 

• Must discharge the duty on the Council and Clinical Commissioning Group 
jointly to prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and a 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy (these are, in many respects, the Board’s most 
immediately visible functions); 

 

• Can request appropriate information from the local authority, or from any 
person represented on the Board, and they must provide it. 

 
2.3 In addition, the Act allows that the Board may take on any of the functions that are 

exercised by the local authority, should the local authority wish.  Locally, it has been 
proposed that the Health & Wellbeing Board discharge the Council’s responsibilities 
for: 

 

• the tender process for the provision of local Healthwatch, and subsequent 
decisions as to its performance; 

 

• approving a Local Account for Adult Social Care, and similar annual reports 
to the local community on social care performance. 

 
2.4 In addition, the functions of the Board are proposed as including the final 

authorisation of joint commissioning contracts with local NHS organisations (under 
Section 75 and 256 of the NHS Act 2006) on behalf of the Council.  Further, it is 
proposed that the Health & Wellbeing Board exercise the functions currently allotted 
to Cabinet for the approval of contracts where the funding source is principally the 
Public Health Grant or social care budgets.  This would only be permissible where 
the resources had already been allocated within the Council’s budget for the 
purposes described in the agreement.  Where there are matters of doubt over the 
appropriate route for a contract approval, the terms of reference propose that this 
should be determined by the relevant Corporate Director in consultation with the 
relevant Cabinet Member(s) and the Chair of the Board. 

 
 Reporting Lines for the Board and relationship to other committees 
 
2.5 The Act requires that the Board will be a part of the structure of Council 

governance, whereas until now it has been seen a partnership board, reporting 
through the Local Strategic Partnership.  This is a different position to other 
statutory committees such as the Community Safety Partnership. 

 
2.6 As a Section 102 Committee, the relationship of the Health & Wellbeing Board to 

Cabinet and to Assembly is indicated in the following diagram: 
 
 

Page 151



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.7 This means that the Health & Wellbeing Board can act as would Cabinet for those 

matters that are reserved to it in the Constitution.  The Council’s principles of 
transparency and access to information will apply to the Health & Wellbeing Board. 

 
2.8 This further means that the Health & Wellbeing Board will be subject to call-in and 

scrutiny in the same way that applies to decisions of Cabinet.  The legislation is 
clear that the health scrutiny function remains as a separate entity to the Health & 
Wellbeing Board.  It is assumed that the Health & Adult Services Select Committee 
would be the usual route for scrutinising matters raised through the Health & 
Wellbeing Board, but other select committees may also play a role. 

 
 Membership 
 
2.9 The proposed membership is as follows (an * indicates members required by the 

Health & Social Care Act): 
 

• Cabinet Member for Health, Chair * 

• Cabinet Member for Adult Services & HR 

• Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 

• Cabinet Member for Finance 

• The Director of Adult Social Services * 

• The Director of Children’s Services * 

• The Director of Public Health * 
 

• A member appointed by local Healthwatch * 
 

• Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group * 

• Further Board-level GP appointment from the Clinical Commissioning Group 

• Accountable Officer for the Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

• Executive Director level appointment from Barking, Havering & Redbridge 
University Hospitals NHS Trust 

• Executive Director level appointment from North East London Foundation 
NHS Trust 

 

• Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Service 
 

ASSEMBLY 

HEALTH & 
WELLBEING BOARD 

CABINET 

Page 152



The Act requires that one councillor and one Clinical Commissioning Group 
representative are appointed to the Board, the identification of specific posts, as 
outlined above, is a local decision. 

 
2.10 Members may wish to note particularly that, under the statutory arrangements, the 

Council’s places on the Board are shared between Members and officers, and the 
regulations disapply Section 80(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 to permit 
this.  The regulations also disapply requirements in the Local Government Act 1972 
around political balance amongst appointed Elected Members.  

 
2.11 The regulations enable all members of the committee, whether or not Members of 

the Authority, and including Council officers, to exercise a vote in connection with 
decisions of the Board, but provide an option to the Council about whether this is 
enacted.  All members of the Board (whether or not Elected Members of the 
Council) will be bound by the Code of Conduct and the procedure for declaring 
interests. 

 
2.12 Once established, the Board can vary its own membership under the terms of the 

Act.  For the Council to vary the membership of the Board after its establishment, it 
must first consult the Board. 

 
 
3. Options Appraisal  
 
3.1 The establishment of a Health & Wellbeing Board is a statutory requirement under 

the Health & Social Care Act 2012, with much of its terms of reference and core 
membership set out in the legislation.  Secondary legislation further establishes 
some of the terms under which the Board will operate.  

 
3.2 There is an alternative option to leave responsibilities and/or membership at the 

statutory minimum requirement, but discussions with the Board have consistently 
emphasised the importance of tailoring the approach to ensure that the Board is set 
up to deliver in Barking & Dagenham’s best interests. 

 
 
4. Consultation  
 
4.1 The future structure and function of the Health & Wellbeing Board has been the 

subject of a number of discussions at Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board meetings 
over the past year, including specific development days.  All proposed members of 
the statutory Board have indicated their agreement to taking up their places. 

 
4.2 There has been consultation with the Cabinet over the options proposed for 

membership and terms of reference, and they have indicated their approval. 
 
4.3 A number of discussions have taken place with the Clinical Commissioning Group 

over their representation on the Board, outside of the discussions at the Shadow 
Health & Wellbeing Board.  

 
 

Page 153



5. Financial Implications  
 

Implications completed by:  Dawn Calvert,  
Group Manager (Finance, Adults & Children) 

 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  The work of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board must be contained within current resources.    
 
 
6. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by:  David Lawson,  
Deputy Head of Legal & Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 
6.1 The requirement of s.194 (11) of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 is that the 

Health & Wellbeing Board must be “a committee of the local authority which 
established it and, for the purposes of any enactment, is to be treated as if it were a 
committee appointed by that authority under section 102 of the Local Government 
Act 1972”. To comply with the statutory provision the Health & Wellbeing Board 
must become a committee in its own right rather than a sub-committee, or its work 
being absorbed by another existing committee. 

 
6.2 The HSCA 2012 is prescriptive of the minimum membership of Health & Wellbeing 

Boards. The local authority has power to add members to the Health & Wellbeing 
Board as it sees fit.  The Health & Wellbeing Board as a statutory Council 
committee will be accountable to the full Council and are also subject to overview 
and scrutiny functions. 

 
6.3 The regulations published in January 2013: 
 

• Modify the relevant section of the 1989 Act to make it clear that key 
members of the H&WB (those prescribed in section 194 of the 2012 Act) 
could vote alongside the nominated elected representatives; 

• Disapply the provisions requiring political balance and this matter is left to 
local determination; 

• Retain the existing committee membership disqualifications but disapply or 
modify the disqualification that would prevent officers from being members of 
the board. 

 
7. Other Implications 
 
7.1 Risk Management  
 
 The responsibilities proposed for the Board represent a balance of widening the 

scope of the Board with ensuring that there are no requirements that are deemed to 
be unmanageable.  Advice has been sought on the establishment of the Board, and 
guidance from pan-London and national organisations has been used.  

 
7.2 Contractual Issues  
 

The Health & Wellbeing Board proposals contain no contracts specifically, but 
Members should note that the proposed terms of reference include authority for the 

Page 154



Health & Wellbeing Board to sign off agreements between the Council and the NHS 
under Sections 75 and 256 of the National Health Service Act 2006.  The terms of 
reference also allow the Health & Wellbeing Board to authorise the letting of some 
contracts where the funding source is principally the Public Health Grant or social 
care resources.  

 
7.3 Staffing Issues  
 
 There is minimal staffing impact, other than the requirement that the establishment 

of the Board will place on the Council to service its operation.  This has been 
absorbed into existing posts, notwithstanding the reducing numbers of support 
officers, and so is contained within the existing staffing establishment. 

 
7.4 Customer Impact  
 
 The Health & Wellbeing Board represents an opportunity to improve the 

co-ordination of services designed to improve residents’ health and wellbeing.  With 
Healthwatch as a core member of the Board, it will bring the views of service users 
and patients together with the plans and proposals of commissioners from both the 
Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group.  Whilst the Board does not, 
ultimately, commission services directly, it will provide a mechanism for challenging 
commissioners to think more widely and creatively about the services that they are 
planning and overseeing. 

 
7.5 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults 
 
 Responsibility for establishing standards and challenging local partners on their 

practice around safeguarding children and vulnerable adults remains firmly with the  
Local Safeguarding Children Board and the Safeguarding Adults Board.  However, 
the creation of the Health & Wellbeing Board will strengthen the partnership around 
health and social care services, and serve as an additional base from which to 
develop joint work and protocols on safeguarding, as well as a further arena in 
which concerns about institutional culture and practice can be aired and worked 
through.  Inclusion of providers on the Board will further ensure that frontline 
practice continues to inform strategic decision-making and discussion. 

 
7.6 Health Issues  
 
 The Board’s primary remit is to promote integration of services and their 

consequent improvement, bringing together the major commissioners, providers 
and public and patient engagement leads.  The Board is the ‘owner’ of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and, as such, will 
be a strong champion for the improvement of local health and social care services. 

 
 The Health & Wellbeing Board is a critical part of making the health reforms set out 

in the Health & Social Care Act 2012 work, bringing a democratic accountability to 
all partners’ joint work on improving health, and improving the health and social 
care services that local residents receive.   

 

Page 155



7.7 Crime and Disorder Issues  
 
 A number of issues have both health and crime and disorder impacts, including 

domestic violence and alcohol use, and they feature strongly in both the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy and the Crime & Disorder Strategic Assessment.  In addition, 
fear of crime can be one driver for people feeling isolated, bringing heightened risks 
of depression, or avoiding use of parks and open spaces that might provide them 
with opportunity for exercise.  Planning improvements to health therefore requires 
consideration of community safety issues.  The inclusion of the Borough 
Commander as a member of the Board (alongside the equivalent status of the 
Clinical Commissioning Group as a statutory ‘responsible authority’ and required 
participant in the Community Safety Partnership) is evidence of the commitment to 
ensure that strategies are established that deliver the widest benefit, with both 
health and community safety outcomes maximised.  

 
7.8 Property / Asset Issues 
 
 The establishment of the Health & Wellbeing Board creates no direct implications 

for property or assets. 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Health & Social Care Act 2012 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted  

• The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/introduction/made  

• Operating Principles for Health & Wellbeing Boards (NHS Confederation and 
the Local Government Association, inter alia) 
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=c40f27d7-7208-
4dc1-9120-fa5fd67e5253&groupId=10171  

 
 
List of appendices: 
 

Appendix A:  Proposed entry to the Constitution: Part B 
Appendix B:  Proposed entry to the Constitution: Part C 

 

Page 156



APPENDIX A 

ARTICLE x 
 

THE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 
 
 
1. Legal Status 
 
1.1 Section 194 of the Health & Social Care Act 2012 requires that the 

Council establish a Health & Wellbeing Board.  The Act sets out the 
core membership that is expected, and places certain duties upon the 
Board.   

 
1.2 The Act specifies that the Health & Wellbeing Board is to be treated as 

an executive committee under Section 102 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. However, regulations have disapplied or modified some of 
the enactments relating to Section 102 committees, as they apply to 
Health & Wellbeing Boards. 

 
2. Role 
 
2.1 The primary duty of the Health & Wellbeing Board is to encourage 

those who arrange for the provision of health or social care services to 
work in an integrated manner.  This is further extended to include 
encouraging integrated working with those who arrange for the 
provision of health-related services (defined as services that may have 
an effect on the health of individuals but are not health services or 
social care services). 

 
2.2 When the Council enters into joint arrangements with National Health 

Service bodies, it does so under Section 75 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006.  The Health & Wellbeing Board must also provide 
such advice, assistance or other support as it thinks appropriate for the 
purpose of encouraging the making of such joint arrangements. 

 
2.3 The Health & Wellbeing Board should also ensure the development, 

authorisation and publication of a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and Health & Wellbeing Strategy, with joint involvement and authority 
of the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group.  Section 116B of 
the Local Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 then 
places a duty on the Council, the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
the National Health Service Clinical Commissioning Board (where it is 
relevant) to have regard to these documents when exercising its 
functions. 

 
3. Membership 
 
3.1 Membership of the Board is as follows (an * indicates members 

required by the Health & Social Care Act): 
 

Page 157



APPENDIX A 

• Cabinet Member for Health, Chair * 

• Cabinet Member for Adult Services & HR 

• Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 

• Cabinet Member for Finance 

• The Director of Adult Social Services * 

• The Director of Children’s Services * 

• The Director of Public Health * 
 

• A member appointed by local Healthwatch * 
 

• Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group * 

• Further Board-level GP appointment from the Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

• Accountable Officer for the Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

• Executive Director level appointment from Barking, Havering & 
Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust 

• Executive Director level appointment from North East London 
Foundation NHS Trust 

 

• Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Service 
 
 The Act requires that one councillor and one Clinical Commissioning 

Group representative are appointed to the Board; the identification of 
specific posts, as outlined above, is a local decision. 

 
3.2 In addition, a representative of the NHS National Commissioning Board 

is entitled to attend to participate in discussions, and can be required to 
attend by the Board.  Invitations will be sent to them as standard.  They 
will not be a voting member of the Board. 

 
3.3 Upon establishment, the Act provides the power to the Health & 

Wellbeing Board to amend its membership.  Such amendments will be 
reported to the next meeting of the Assembly.  On approval of 
Assembly, the Council may appoint further members to the Health & 
Wellbeing Board, but must have consulted the Board prior to making 
the appointments. 

 
3.4 All members of the Health & Wellbeing Board outlined in this section, 

including those who are not Members of the Council have a vote at 
Board meetings, in line with the procedures set out in Article 1. 

 
3.5 Amendments to the membership of the Board determined by the 

Health & Wellbeing Board will require a 75% majority of members 
present and voting.  

 
3.6 The Health & Social Care Act 2012 requires the Council to consult the 

Board when varying its membership.  Where the Council, through 
resolution of Assembly, seeks to amend the membership of the Health 

Page 158



APPENDIX A 

& Wellbeing Board, a discussion of the proposal will be scheduled at 
the Health & Wellbeing Board, with the views of the Board recorded in 
its minutes and reported to Assembly. 

 
4. Quorum 
 
4.1 Five members of the Board, including at least two Elected Members of 

the Council. 
 
5. Chair and Deputy Chair 
 
5.1 The Cabinet Member for Health is the Chair of the Board, as 

nominated by the Leader of the Council. 
 
5.2 The Health & Wellbeing Board will agree a Deputy Chair annually from 

amongst the Elected Members appointed to the Board. 
 
6. Frequency of meetings 
 
6.1 The Board will meet formally between six and eight times per year, 

unless the Chair, on advice from the Corporate Director of Adult & 
Community Services, determines otherwise. 

 
7. Venue and time 
 
7.1 Barking Town Hall, on Tuesdays at 6pm or at another time or location 

to be determined by the Corporate Director of Adult & Community 
Services, in consultation with the Chair. 

 
8. Terms of Reference 
 
8.1 See Scheme of Delegation in Part C of the Constitution for details. 
 
9. Appointment and accountability 
 
9.1 Members of the Board prescribed in the Health & Social Care Act 2012 

are appointed by virtue of the position they hold.  Additional members 
are appointed by Assembly.  The Health & Wellbeing Board is 
accountable to the Assembly and the Board will report to the Assembly 
on matters requiring the latter’s approval. 

 
9.2 As an Executive Committee of the Council that includes 

representatives of partner agencies, the Health & Wellbeing Board will 
also provide such reports to the Local Strategic Partnership 
arrangements as are required to ensure that partnership activity on 
health and wellbeing is adequately accounted for in that forum. 

 

Page 159



APPENDIX A 

10. Decisions and Call-In 
 
10.1 Details of decisions made by the Health & Wellbeing Board will be 

circulated by the end of the next working day after the meeting to all 
Members of the Council (and statutory co-opted members) to enable 
them to exercise their right of Call-in. 

 
10.2 The Call-in Procedure Rules, set out in Article 5a, shall apply to the 

Health & Wellbeing Board.  Decisions which are called in with respect 
to the Health & Wellbeing Board will be principally referred to the 
Health & Adult Services Select Committee. 

Page 160



APPENDIX B 

Constitution Part C 

SECTION x 

 

THE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
1. To promote and advance the health and wellbeing of the people of 

Barking & Dagenham, and work to secure improvements in the 
health, social care and health-related services available to them. 

 
2. To encourage all agencies who arrange the provision of health and 

social care services, or who provide those services, to do so in an 
integrated manner. 

 
3. To encourage and support the making of arrangements under 

Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 for the joint 
commissioning and provision of health and social care services 
between relevant bodies.  To authorise the signing of those 
agreements on behalf of the Council, where the resources have 
already been allocated by Cabinet or Assembly for the purposes 
described in the agreement. 

 
4. In order to facilitate the widest view of health and wellbeing, to work 

with those agencies who provide, or arrange provision of, health-
related services (being those services that are not directly health 
services, but which may impact on health, to include housing, 
environmental services and education, amongst others.) 

 
5. To approve the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on behalf of the 

Council and to authorise its publication on behalf of the Council and 
partnership. 

 
6. To approve the Health & Wellbeing Strategy on behalf of the 

Council and to authorise its publication on behalf of the Council and 
partnership, and to receive reports on performance and work with 
responsible agencies to ensure delivery of the Strategy. 

 
7. To ensure that the commissioning and policy priorities of the 

member agencies of the Board, in particular the Council and the 
Clinical Commissioning Group, have due regard to the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and prior 
decisions of the Board. 

 
8. To approve the Council’s tender documents for the provision of 

local Healthwatch and to receive reports on its performance as 
deemed appropriate. 

 
9. To undertake the approval of contracts as delegated to Cabinet 

where the funding streams are principally the Public Health Grant or 
from within social care budgets, as determined by the relevant 

Page 161



APPENDIX B 

Corporate Director in consultation with the relevant Cabinet 
Member(s), to include the Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Board.  

 
10. To approve the Council’s Local Account for Adult Social Care, and 

any related annual reports to the local community on performance. 
 

11. To report annually to Assembly on progress against established 
priorities and objectives and on the discharge of these terms of 
reference. 

Page 162



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title: Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
 

Open Report For Decision  

Wards Affected: All  
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  Claire Adams 
 Principal Planning Policy Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 5274 
E-mail: claire.adams@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director:  Jeremy Grint, Divisional Director 
 Regeneration and Economic Development 
 

Accountable Corporate Director:  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive  
 

Summary:  
 
At its meeting on the 14 February 2012, the Cabinet authorised the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Preliminary Draft Charging schedule for consultation (Minute 114 
refers).  Responses were received from eleven bodies.  In response it is proposed to 
change the charges for retail uses.  
 
Originally a nil charge for small retail (under 370 square metres) and £10 for all other retail 
(shops, banks, estate agents, cafes, takeaways, restaurants and pubs) was set with the 
exception of supermarkets/superstores over 1500 square metres which were set a charge 
of £300 per square metre.  Officers are now proposing to reduce this to £175 per square 
metre but to apply it to supermarkets and superstores of any size with all other retail uses 
paying £10 per square metre.   
 
These changes have been made first of all to address uncertainty about the legality of 
having different charges for different sizes of shops and to ensure that the charge for 
supermarkets/superstores is viable under the terms of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations.   
 
Officers have also reduced the charge for business uses (Use Class B1b – Research and 
Development, Use Class B1c - Light Industrial, Use Class B2 - General Industrial and Use 
Class B8 - Storage and Distribution).  After further scrutiny it is considered that the 
proposed levy for some of these uses, at £10 per square metre, was on the margins of 
viability and as such the charge has been reduced to £5 per square metre.  No other 
changes are proposed.  
 
If Assembly agree these changes, the Council can proceed to the next stage of statutory 
consultation which is to consult on the Draft Charging Schedule and then submit it for 
examination.  The Draft Charging Schedule is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.  The 
responses and the Council’s suggested response to these are attached as Appendix 2 to 
this report.  
 
The Cabinet considered this report at its meeting on 12 February 2013 and endorsed the 

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 163



recommendations below.  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to agree the Borough’s Community Infrastructure Levy 
Draft Charging Schedule for consultation and for submission for examination.    
 

Reason(s) 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy will help deliver two key priorities in the Council’s 
Policy House; school and post 16 education and housing and estate renewal.   
 

 
1.  Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 At its meeting on the 14 February 2012, the Cabinet agreed to approve the 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule for 
consultation (Minute 114 refers).  A six week consultation took place between 27 
February and 10 April 2012.  This report sets out the responses received and 
recommends a revision to the proposed CIL charge following responses to the 
consultation process and further consideration of the representations and 
assessment of the potential effect of charges on the viability of development. 
 

2. Proposal and Issues 
 

2.1 Responses to the consultation were received from eleven bodies.  These are 
summarised below along with the suggested Council response, which is provided in 
full in Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 Four responses did not raise any objections so are not covered here.  
 
2.3 English Heritage were concerned that CIL should be spent on investment in 

heritage.  It is suggested that no changes are necessary.  The consultation was on 
the proposed charges not on what the proceeds of CIL would be spent on. 

 
2.4 The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) advocated that new 

fire stations should be exempt from the levy and that consideration be given to 
spending CIL on investment in them.  In response to this, it is observed that no 
changes are necessary because again the consultation was not about what CIL 
should be spent on.   Furthermore the LFEPA provided no evidence that fire station 
development would not be viable if they were subject to the proposed £10 per 
square metre CIL.  It is important to note that the Mayor of London’s CIL applies to 
fire stations and is set at £20 per square metre.  

 

2.5 Peacock and Smith acting on behalf of Morrison’s supermarket strongly objected to 
the proposed CIL rate of £300 per square metre for large convenience retail (>1500 
square metres).  They consider that supermarket operators are being used as a 
scapegoat.  They think that the charge will put undue additional risk on the delivery 
of food store proposals.  They compare the Council’s proposed charge to 
Lewisham, Merton and Croydon which are set between £80 and £120 per square 
metre. 

 

Page 164



2.6 Across the country the charges set for retail are proving the most controversial.  The 
focus of objectors, particularly the big four supermarkets, is the varying of charges 
on the basis of the size of a premises. Whilst the CIL regulations do not expressly 
allow this, neither do they expressly disallow it. Undoubtedly until a national and 
regional picture emerges there will be uncertainty and a charging base at variance 
will present a risk of Judicial Review particularly if there is not robust evidence to 
back up a CIL figure.  It is the threat of a High Court challenge which has led some 
authorities to remove their differential retail charges, equally others have opted to 
proceed with them. 

 

2.7 The CIL regulations do expressly allow different charges to be applied to different 
uses or the same uses in different locations.  For this reason officers recommend 
substituting the initial proposed charge for large convenience retail (£300 per 
square metre for large convenience stores over 1500 square metres).  Whilst in 
viability terms there is a justification for a higher charge for large convenience stores 
this is clearly a differentiation on the basis of the size of a premises not its use.  
Therefore if a charge is levied on convenience stores it has to apply to all stores 
regardless of size.  The Council has undertaken further viability testing to 
understand the level to set the charge on this basis.  In this regard it is important to 
note that in setting rates regard has to be had to the potential effects (taken as a 
whole) of the imposition of CIL on the economic viability of development across its 
area.  On this basis the testing has established that a charge of £175 per square 
metre is more in keeping with the borough circumstances.  Therefore officers 
recommend a charge of £175 per square metre for supermarkets and superstores 
of any size, these being self service stores, usually with car parking mainly selling 
food or food and non-food goods.   

 
2.8 Previously the Cabinet had agreed a nil charge for small retail so that all shops, 

cafés, restaurants and pubs below 370 square metres would not pay CIL.  Any such 
uses above this size would pay £10 per square metre except for large supermarkets 
/superstores over 1500 square metres which would pay £300 per square metre.  
Officers recommend that the nil charge for small retail is revised because this is a 
charge based on the size of a premises.  This means that apart from supermarkets/ 
superstores, all other shops, cafés, takeaways, restaurants and pubs would pay £10 
per square metre.  Please note that since the Council adopted the Supplementary 
Planning Document “Saturation Point – Addressing the health impacts of hot food 
takeaways” in July 2010, only one takeaway has been permitted and that was on 
appeal by the Planning Inspectorate.  As it involves a change of use and not new 
floor space it would not be liable for CIL in any event.  

 
2.9 Officers do not consider that the £175 per square metre charge will impact on the 

viability of small supermarkets whether these are small independent grocers or the 
more recent trend for metro supermarkets as these tend to be established through 
changes of use to existing premises.  The CIL charge only applies to new build floor 
space over 100 square metres. 

 
2.10 Turning back to Morrisons’ actual objection that supermarket operators are being 

used, as they choose to call, as a “scapegoat”, this observation is rejected.  The 
meaning of scapegoat is an object for which the blame for all the ills of a community 
is attached.  The CIL can only be set on the basis of viability and the Council’s latest 
viability evidence, evidences that a charge of £175 per square metre can be 

Page 165



supported.  Moreover no evidence was provided by the respondent on the issue of 
viability. 

 
2.11 The Agents for Sanofi (Savills) also expressed concern about the original £300 per 

square metre proposal charge for large convenience retail.  Notwithstanding that the 
recently approved Sanofi development is not liable for CIL they are concerned 
about the impact of CIL on new planning applications and its impact on the viability 
of the entire proposal.  They suggested that a nil charge should apply to the Sanofi 
site at Dagenham East.  In response to this objection it is suggested that no change 
is necessary apart from the changes to the retail charges as detailed previously.  No 
evidence has been provided by the respondent that this charge is not viable. 
 

2.12 Gerald Eve acting on behalf of Freshwharf Developments Limited noted that if the 
CIL is set at too high a level it will put further pressure on an already weakened 
property market and stifle development.  They query the charge of £70 per square 
metre for Barking Town Centre and how this has been arrived at, they query the 
specification of the GVA appraisal model and finally they query the evidence which 
supports the residential land value benchmarks which they consider are too low.  In 
response to this objection it is suggested that no changes are necessary.  The 
Council’s Economic Viability Report demonstrates that the £70 per square metre 
charge for housing in Barking Town Centre is viable.  The report also clearly details 
the methodology of the viability testing and it explains that the benchmark land 
values reflect prevailing development values sourced from analysis of the current 
situation in Barking and Dagenham and corroborated through Valuation Office 
Agency data, GVA’s own Agency Team knowledge of transactions in the Borough 
and local stakeholder discussions.  
 

2.13 Iceni, acting on behalf of Estates and Agency Properties Limited, made 
representations that the Council’s CIL is a one size fits all approach and provides 
no flexibility and therefore does not respond to the commercial realities of 
development and could undermine schemes that help meet the borough’s 
regeneration aims.  They want the CIL to be amended so it takes account of the 
provision of on-site facilities and benefits.  They consider that the CIL should 
prioritise investment and incentivise developers in Barking Town Centre by applying 
a discounted rate to retail and residential floor space in this location.  They consider 
the charge for residential and large convenience retail in Barking Town Centre is 
disproportionate to developers’ reasonable expectations of a financial return.  
Therefore they want three changes, removal of paragraph 3.1 of the Preliminary 
Draft Charging Schedule, a lowering of the charge on large retail development with 
the costs spread more evenly over the use classes, and lowering the charge on 
residential development within town centre areas to improve flexibility and viability.  
In response to this objection it is suggested that no changes are necessary other 
than the changes to the retail charges as previously detailed.  Unlike the Mayor of 
London, the Council has chosen to offer Discretionary Relief for Exceptional 
Circumstances, so the Council is being flexible.  Removing paragraph 3.1 would 
remove this mechanism.  The regulations do provide for charging authorities to 
accept transfers of land as a payment “in kind” for the whole or part of a CIL 
payment.  Again it is important to stress that CIL can only be set on the basis of 
viability.  The Council is not allowed to set CIL to achieve regeneration objectives.  
Finally no evidence has been presented that large convenience retail developments 
or residential in Barking Town Centre cannot afford to pay the charge that has been 
set.  

 

Page 166



2.14 CGMS on behalf of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime  (MoPC) and the 
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) advocate that new policing facilities should be 
exempt from the levy as otherwise this will impact upon the Council’s ability to 
deliver a safe and secure environment.  In response to this objection it is suggested 
that no changes are necessary because the levy can only be set on the basis of 
viability.  No evidence has been presented that new policing facilities cannot afford 
to pay the modest charge of £10 per square metre that has been set.  It is also 
relevant to note that whilst the Mayor of London is responsible for supervising the 
Metropolitan Police the Mayor of London’s CIL does apply to new policing floor 
space.  The Mayor of London’s CIL is £20 per square metre.  Therefore, the 
Council’s CIL would only represent 33% of the overall CIL charge for new policing 
facilities. 
 

Timetable for adopting the Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

2.15 The table below sets out the timetable for implementing the Barking and Dagenham 
Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 
 

Task Progress 

1. Approval of Draft Charging Schedule Cabinet 22 January 2013 
Assembly 25 February 2013 

2. Publish Draft Charging Schedule 
(advert required Reg 16 a (d) 

March 2013 

3. Public Consultation on Draft Charging 
Schedule (4 + weeks) 

March/April 2013 

4. Submit the Draft Charging Schedule to the 
examiner plus also to PINs. 

May 2013 

5. Charging Schedule Examination August 2013 

6. Adoption and Publication  

- Report to Cabinet and Assembly for approval 
of Charging Schedule 

October 2013 

- Publish Charging Schedule  

7. CIL comes into effect October 2013 

 
 
3. Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charges 

 
3.1 Proposed Level of Residential CIL (per sq.m) – NO CHANGE 
 
  

 0% Affordable Housing 

Barking Town Centre Key Regeneration Area 
and Leftley and Faircross Estates 

£70 

Barking Riverside Key Regeneration Area £25 

Rest of Borough £10 

 
  

Page 167



Proposed Level of Commercial CIL (per sq.m) – CHANGES TO RETAIL CHARGES 
 

ORIGINAL CHARGES CIL  PROPOSED NEW CHARGES CIL 

Large Convenience Retail 
(>1,500sqm) 

£300  Supermarkets/Superstores £175 

Small Retail (A1-A5 <370 sqm) Nil  Office (B1a) Nil 

Office (B1a) Nil  Municipal Leisure Nil 

Municipal Leisure Nil  Health1 Nil 

Health1 Nil  Education2 Nil 

Education2 Nil  Business (Research and 
Development - B1b, Light Industry 
- B1c, General Industrial - B2 and 
Storage and Distribution - B8)  

£5 
 All other non-residential uses £10  

   All other non-residential uses 
including all other retail 

£10 

 
3.2 Benchmark data with other Authorities (see below) indicates that the proposed 

charges for LBBD are on the whole low / competitive in comparison.  This reflects 
land values and development viability within the Borough.  Please note that for 
London Boroughs the Mayor of London CIL charge applies on top of the authorities 
charges.  The Mayoral charge for each of the London Borough’s is detailed in row 1 
of the table below.  Since Thurrock is outside London the Mayor of London’s CIL 
does not apply. 

 
£ / sq.m Newham 

Draft 
  

Waltham 
Forest 
Prelim-
Draft 

Red-
bridge 
Adopted 
 

Thurrock 
Prelim-
Draft 

 

Tower 
Hamlets 
Prelim- 
Draft  

Islington 
Prelim-
Draft 

Southwark 
Prelim-
Draft 

 

LBBD 
 

Mayoral 
CIL /sqm 

20 20 35 NA 35 50 35 35 

Residen-
tial 

40-80 70 70 0-38 35-200 300 50-400 10-70 

Retail 30 0-150 70 0-150 0-200 200-300 0-250 10-175 

Business 0 0 70 0-25 0 0 0-100 5 

Hotel 120 20 70 0 425 450 125-250 10 

Leisure 0 0 70 0 0 80 50 10 

 
4. Options Appraisal  
 
4.1 Two other options were considered. 
 

• Option 1: No CIL and maximum affordable housing via S106 

• Option 2: CIL and 10% indicative affordable housing target 
 

These were detailed in the report of 14 February 2012 to Cabinet (Minute 114 
refers) and are not repeated here. 

 

                                            
1
 Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of any publicly funded medical or health services except the use of 

premises attached to the residence of the consultant or practitioner 
 
2
 Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of education as a school or college under the Education Acts or as an 

institution of higher education 

 

Page 168



5. Consultation  
 
5.1 The CIL Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule was consulted on between 27 

February 2012 and 10 April 2012.  The consultation was in accordance with the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011 and the Council’s adopted Statement of 
Community Involvement.  

 
5.2 Letters were sent out to the Local Development Framework database and 

stakeholders involved in earlier stakeholder workshops.  Consultation material 
regarding the CIL Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule was also made available in 
various locations and formats including on the Council website, in the borough 
Libraries, and the Civic Centre and Town Hall Receptions for the entire consultation 
period.  

 
5.3 Section 2 of this report details the feedback received. 
 
5.4 In line with the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 as amended 

representations will be invited on the Draft Charging Schedule for a minimum period 
of four weeks.  The Draft Charging Schedule, the representations and the other 
documentation stipulated by the regulations will then be sent to an examiner for an 
independent examination. 

 
6. Financial Implications  
 
 Implications completed by: Philip Horner, Principal Accountant 
 
6.1 The report follows up on the report of 14 February 2012 in which Cabinet gave 

approval to consult on the proposed CIL charges.  
 
6.2 The CIL is expected to generate funding for the infrastructure needed to support 

new development.  Section 106 payments will still exist but only for site specific 
infrastructure. 

 
6.3 The main significant difference in controlling S106 and CIL proceeds is that with 

S106 contributions there is a legal requirement that any payment should be directly 
related to the development whereas with CIL the payment will go to an accumulated 
fund to finance infrastructure projects generally (as defined in legislation and 
regulation).  S106 contributions are negotiated on a development-by-development 
basis and therefore it is not possible to say at present whether the introduction of 
the CIL will impose greater costs for developers.  However, as the CIL is based on a 
charging schedule, developers will have much greater certainty in calculating their 
likely costs. 

 
6.4 From 1 April 2012 a Mayoral CIL has applied to all qualifying developments, 

meaning the Council collects £20 per net additional square metre of new 
development from the developer and passes it on to the Mayor of London.  Subject 
to approval, the Authority’s own CIL element will be added to the amounts collected 
from August 2013.  The total CIL charge (comprising the Mayoral and Authority’s 
own CIL) will be collected as one payment, and the mayoral element will then be 
forwarded on.   After 2019 it is anticipated that the mayoral CIL will cease. 

 

Page 169



6.5 The Council will be required to exercise proper governance and monitoring 
arrangements to be able to demonstrate what monies have been received and how 
they have been spent in line with existing reporting and accounting procedures. 
 

6.6 The incremental cost of producing and consulting on the CIL have been incurred 
over the past 18 months and met from within the current Regeneration & Economic 
Development revenue budget, which are summarised below (some figures are 
approximate / ongoing): 
 
  Viability study (consultants) £22,640 
  Adverts    £2,100 
  Printing and postage  £1,000 
  Inspectors fees   £20,000 
  Room hire    £1,000 
  TOTAL    £46,740 
 

6.7 There is also a cost in terms of the time spent by current staff.  The cost of 
administering and collecting the CIL and setting up the systems to do this is allowed 
to be met from the CIL proceeds provided this does not exceed over 5% of the total 
CIL collected in the first three years.  In year four, and each subsequent year, the 
total amount of CIL that may be applied to administrative expenses incurred during 
that year shall not exceed five per cent of CIL collected in that year. 

 
7. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by: Paul Field, Senior Lawyer 
 
7.1 Development of land or change of use inevitably has an effect on the community.  A 

balance has to be struck between allowing land use and mitigating negative effects 
of development.  The historical basis for ensuring developments did not have a cost 
on the community was by the granting of planning permission subject to an 
agreement which might involve payment or works that is to say that a development 
would not be agreed without a contribution from the Developer.  This is referred to 
as S,106 Town and Country Planning Act Agreements or “S.106 Agreements” for 
short.  The problem with that approach was that it could be seen as arbitrary in 
nature and, as it were; putting a price on the grant.  As the developers 
circumstances and the viability of the scheme varied so did the contribution.   In 
reality it meant that some developments were charged different amounts under 
S.106 agreements or not at all. 

 
7.2 To address concerns about the S.106 payments the Planning Act 2008 introduced 

the Community Infrastructure Levy, the application is set out in the Community 
Infrastructure Regulations 2010.  Unlike the Section 106 arrangements most new 
developments will be liable to pay the levy.  This includes from 6 April 2013 new 
buildings that are granted permission by way of a general consent, such as via the 
General Permitted Development Order or through a Local Development Order.  

 
7.3 The CIL regime is designed to be transparent and while it will still reflect local 

planning considerations the charges will be open for all to see.  This report has set 
out the process and suggests a potential charging framework.  It is important that 
the schedule for the CIL is backed by an evidential basis.  Further there needs to be 
evidence as to what infrastructure is needed and how the CIL would contribute, 
though it does not need to be the only source 

Page 170



 
7.4 There are a broad range of measures that can be taken to ensure recovery of 

payment.  Furthermore late payments will incur a surcharge.  Prosecution can 
follow if the commitment to pay is breached as effectively it will be as if a condition 
has not been met which means that resort can be made to stop notices and if 
necessary an injunction. 

 
7.5 Finally the CIL regime does not affect contributions secured for highway work or 

improvements under Section 278 Highways Act 1980 such agreements will 
continue. 

 
8. Other Implications 
 
8.1 Risk Management  
 

Risk Probability Impact Priority Action 

Proposed 
charges are 
challenged by 
developers 
and 
landowners 

Medium Medium High Developers and landowners were 
consulted in the early stages of 
developing the draft charging 
schedule to ensure that it was 
based on local evidence. A 
number of objections as detailed 
in this report have been received 
during the first stage of 
consultation and changes have 
been made to the retail charges 
to ensure that they are legal and 
therefore to reduce the risk of 
High Court challenge.  
 

Draft charging 
schedule is 
rejected by the 
Examiner 

Low Medium High The Council has followed the 
relevant legislation and 
Government guidance in arriving 
at the charges proposed in the 
Draft Charging Schedule. 
 

Levy stops 
development 
coming 
forward 

Low High High In line with the CIL regulations 
2010 the Council has not set 
charges at the margins of 
viability. 
 

Neighbouring 
Councils set 
Levy at lower 
rate 

High Medium Low The CIL charge can only be set 
on the basis of development 
viability.  It is the responsibility of 
neighbouring boroughs to do 
likewise.  The only neighbouring 
Council to have an adopted CIL 
is Redbridge and with the 
exception of the charge for 
supermarket/superstores their 
charges are significantly higher 
than LBBDs.  

Page 171



 
 
8.2 Staffing Issues - The proposals will not necessitate the need for additional staff.  

The Council has been collecting the Mayor of London’s CIL from 1 April 2012.  The 
Council can recover its administration costs from CIL. 

 
8.3 Customer Impact - In line with the CIL regulations the charge has been set based 

on development viability.  The charge cannot be varied to achieve policy objectives.  
However it is relevant to note that a nil charge will apply to public health, schools 
and municipal leisure centres and residential extensions and alterations below 100 
square metres.  In addition affordable housing and charitable development is 
exempt from the charge. 
 
The CIL will have a positive impact on the local community as it will help maximise 
developer contributions to meet the costs of new infrastructure generated by new 
development.  The Council will have increased flexibility to ensure that funds from 
CIL are spent where they are most needed in the borough; this will enable the 
Council to ensure that the needs of residents from different areas, age groups, 
incomes and equality groups can be taken into account in deciding which 
infrastructure developments to support. 

 
8.4 Safeguarding Children - The proposal will have a positive impact on the wellbeing 

of children as it will help provide funding for the Council’s Capital Strategy which 
includes extensions to existing schools and new schools to meet the needs 
generated by new development.  Monies generated by CIL can also be used to fund 
Children’s Centres and community services, which are important for family welfare, 
and also to provide places for young people to help reduce anti-social behaviour.  
Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of education as a school or 
college under the Education Acts or as an institution of higher education will not pay 
the levy. 

 
8.5 Health Issues - Developments used wholly or mainly for the provision of any 

publicly funded medical or health services will not pay the levy.  
 
8.6 Crime and Disorder Issues - Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

requires local authorities to consider the crime and disorder implications of any 
proposals.  New developments can often raise issues of concern around crime and 
disorder both within the development phase but also long term if due crime design 
advice is not given or adhered to.  This proposal may therefore have a positive 
impact if CIL is spent on community safety initiatives which will mitigate any impact 
either directly on the development, or on the surrounding area, eg CCTV provision 
or better lighting.  Whilst CIL is payable on new policing facilities the Council’s CIL 
is half that of the Mayor of London’s and therefore it is not considered that the 
Council’s CIL will adversely impact on the provision of these. 

 
8.7 Property / Asset Issues - The Council, as a landowner and developer, will be 

liable to pay CIL on qualifying developments. The Asset Management service is 
concerned about the impact on small retail businesses and considers that the 
charges could lead to more shops within the borough closing.  It is important to 
clarify that the charge is only on net new development and therefore will only apply 
to new retail floor space.  Therefore, existing shops, or new shops taking existing 
space, will not be affected by this charge. 

 

Page 172



 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 

• Cabinet Report, 14 February 2012: Community Infrastructure Levy (Minute 114 - 
14/02/12). 

• Cabinet Report, 22 January 2013: Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging 
Schedule 

• CLG March 2010, Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance: Charge Setting and 
charging schedule procedures. 

• CLG May 2011, Community Infrastructure Levy: An overview 

• CLG May 2011, Community Infrastructure Levy Relief. 

• National Planning Policy Framework 
 
List of appendices: 
Appendix 1: LBBD Draft Charging Schedule 
Appendix 2: Responses to the Council’s Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
Community Infrastructure Levy 

Draft Charging Schedule  
January 2013 

 
1.  The Charging Authority  

 
1.1 This Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule has been 

published by the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham. The Council will be 
both a Charging Authority and a Collecting Authority. 

 

2. The date on which the charging schedule was approved 
To be completed 
 

3. The date on which the charging schedule takes effect 
To be completed 
 

4.  Statutory Compliance  
 
4.1 The Draft Charging Schedule has been approved for publication at a meeting of the 

Council’s Assembly on (to be completed). It is published in accordance with Part 11 
of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended by Part 6 of the Localism Act 2011), and the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended by the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011 and 2012). 

 
5.  Who will pay CIL? 
 
5.1 The charge will be levied on development of more than 100 sq.m of new floor space 

and those creating 1 or more dwellings even where the floor space is less than100 
sq.m. In principle, this affects all types of development that involve buildings ‘into 
which people normally go’. 

 
5.2 Subject to caveats the levy will not be charged on developments that do not involve 

a net increase in floor space.  Therefore sub-divisions of existing dwellings to form 
other dwellings will not be charged.  Structures which are not buildings, or which 
people do not regularly go into to use will not be liable, in accordance with the CIL 
regulations as amended.  Affordable housing development and development for 
charitable purposes will also be exempt in accordance with the regulations. 

 
6  Relief for Exceptional Circumstances 
 
6.1 The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham will make relief available for 

exceptional circumstances in its area.  The power to do this will be activated 
following the adoption of the Charging Schedule.  The regulations on this matter 
make clear that relief should only be granted in truly 'exceptional circumstances’. 
The fact that a development might be unviable at the time a planning application is 
considered is unlikely to constitute an ‘exceptional circumstance’ in relation to the 
CIL Regulations as amended. 

 
 

Page 175



7 When will the levy be collected? 
 
7.1 The levy will become due from the date that a chargeable development is 

commenced in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning permission. 
 
7.2 When planning permission is granted, LBBD will issue a liability notice setting out 

the amount of the levy that will be due for payment when the development is 
commenced, the payment procedure and the possible consequences of not 
following this procedure. 

 
7.3 The levy’s payment procedures encourage someone to assume liability to pay the 

levy before development commences.  Payments must be made in accordance with 
the instalment policy published by the Mayor of London or, in the case of the 
Council adopting one, in accordance with the Council’s instalment policy.  In the 
absence of no instalment policy being in place by the Mayor of London or the 
Council, parties liable to pay the levy will always benefit from a 60 day payment 
window beginning with the commencement date. 

 
7.4 The responsibility to pay the levy runs with the ownership of land on which the liable 

development will be situated.  That benefit is transferred when the land is sold with 
planning consent, which also runs with the land.  Although ultimate liability rests 
with the landowner, the regulations recognise that others involved in a development 
may wish to pay.  To allow this, anyone can come forward and assume liability for 
the development. 

 
7.5 There may be circumstances where it will be more desirable for a charging authority 

to receive land instead of monies.  The regulations provide for charging authorities 
to accept transfers of land as a payment in kind for the whole or part of the levy. 
This will be subject to negotiation with the Council. 

 
8 Evidence for Draft Charging Schedule 
 
8.1 The regulations require the ‘Charging Authority’ (LBBD) to strike an appropriate 

balance between the desirability of funding infrastructure from the levy and the 
potential effect of the imposition of CIL on the economic viability of development 
across the area. 

 
8.2 Charging authorities are therefore required to prepare evidence about the effect of 

the levy on economic viability in their area to demonstrate to an independent 
examiner that their proposed rates strike an appropriate balance. 

 
8.3 The development of the Draft Charging Schedule has been informed by the 

following pieces of evidence: 
 

• Barking and Dagenham Local Development Framework 

• LBBD Community Infrastructure Plan 2012/13 – 2025/26 

• Affordable Housing and Community Infrastructure Levy/S106 Economic Viability 

Assessment 2011 

• CIL Economic Viability Study: Addendum on Retail 

 

Page 176



Community Infrastructure Plan 
 
8.4 The Barking and Dagenham Community Infrastructure Plan (CIP) outlines 

community infrastructure provision across the borough.  It is based on the London 
Plan housing monitoring target of 1,065 homes per year which equates to 14,910 
new homes and 36,082 new residents (based on a yield of 2.42 persons per new 
home).  The CIP looks at the impact of growth on education, transport, health, 
public realm, open space, allotments, leisure, play, children’s centres, cemeteries, 
libraries, flood defences and mitigation measures, employment and local labour and 
emergency and essential services 

 
8.5 For each of these it examines: 
 

• Current provision of facilities 

• Existing shortfall or surplus 

• Projected shortfall or surplus based on the demand from an additional 36,082 
residents 

• New facilities required to meet new demand 

• Costs of meeting new demand 

• Potential available funding sources 
 
8.6 The table below summarises the overall requirement for new community 

infrastructure facilities to 2025, estimated costs and the responsible delivery 
agencies.   

 

Cost of Community Infrastructure to support growth in Barking and Dagenham 
to 2025.  

 

Type of Facility Existing shortfall 

Council’s and Local Education Authority’s Responsibilities 

Education (incl. land for 4 additional primary schools 
and 2 additional 8FE secondary schools all on confined 
sites.  Also includes 6398 primary school places and 
4,570 primary school places) 

£147,613,529 

Transport (incl. £500m for DLR Extension, £70m for 
Renwick Road Junction Improvements) 

£633,511,000  

Public Realm (incl. London Road/North Street Market 
Square, A406 roundabout, BTC East Street, Street 
Scene Enhancement, Becontree Station Improvements, 
Creekmouth Industrial Area) 

£2,660,000 

Open Space (incl. Abbey Green, Mayesbrook Park) £7,540,000 

Allotments (maintenance and creation of allotment 
space) 

£649,476 

Leisure (Indoor) (Build and land costs for 2 additional 4 
court leisure centres. This assumes Barking Riverside 
will provide land and building for 8 lane swimming pool) 

£4,032,900  

Leisure (Outdoor)  (additional 17.76 hectares of playing 
pitches, 1.5 tennis courts, 1 bowling green and 
upgrading of sports pavilion in eight strategic parks) 

 £6,814,140 

Page 177



Play (play provision for 5-9 year olds. Under 5s to be 
provided through S106 agreements (doorstep play)). 

£1,049,920 

Children’s Centres £5,600,000 

Cemeteries No information 

Libraries (Revenue costs for Barking Riverside Library, 
Ongoing maintenance costs of existing estate) 

£3,600,000 

Flood Defences (Measures to manage surface water 
flooding in LBBD. Does not include fluvial or tidal 
flooding) 

£56,310,823 

Employment and Local Labour (Revenue requirements 
for Barking Business Centre. Local Labour agreements 
to be provided through S106 agreements) 

£2,600,000 

Emergency Services None 

 

NHS Outer North East London’s responsibilities 

Health (capital requirements for 36,082 people) £22,144,757 

  

Further Education Provider’s Responsibilities 

Further Education Tbc 

Total £894,126,545 

 
CIL Economic Viability Assessment 2011 
 
8.7 The Council appointed GVA Grimley in September 2011 to undertake three pieces 

of work: 
 

• Preparation of a construction cost schedule 

• Preparation of a land value appraisal study 

• Preparation of an economic viability assessment 
 

In September 2012 further testing was undertaken by GVA on retail development. 
 
8.8 GVA has drawn on both primary and secondary evidence sources in order to test 

the viability of CIL/S106 and affordable housing delivery in Barking and Dagenham. 
 
8.9 The work has taken the form of quantitative viability testing of a series of possible 

housing splits, tenure variations and CIL/S106 charging options for a range of types 
of development in order to identify the levels of viability for future development. 
Work has also included extensive discussions with stakeholders including local 
authority planning officers, local landowners, developers and agents. 

 
8.10 GVAs analysis suggests that Barking and Dagenham should adopt three different 

residential charging zones – a higher one for Barking Town Centre Leftley and 
Faircross (£70) a medium one for  Barking Riverside (£25) and a lower charge for 
the rest of the borough (£10). 

 
8.11 For commercial developments, the viability findings are more varied.  Office 

schemes are unable to make any contribution, whilst retail, private leisure, industrial 

Page 178



and waste uses can afford to contribute more.  Supermarkets and superstores can 
afford to make a significant CIL/S106 contribution. 

 
8.12 GVA's analysis shows that public health, education and municipal leisure 

development cannot afford any level of CIL/S106 tariff contribution. 
 
8.13 These charges have been set on the basis of the Council continuing without an 

affordable housing target. 
 
9. Proposed CIL Rates and Charging Areas 
 
9.1 Having examined the findings of the evidence base, the Council consider that the 

most appropriate approach is to have variable rates of CIL by area and use. The 
proposed areas and charges per square metre are set out in the plans and tables 
below. 

LBBD Charging Zones – Residential 

Zone LBBD Area Rates 
(£ per sq. 

m.) 

1 Barking Town Centre, Leftley and Faircross1 £70 

2 Barking Riverside2 £25 

3 Rest of borough3 £10 

Differential Rates: intended uses 

Use Rates  

(£ per sq. 

m.) 

Supermarkets and Superstores of any size4 £175 

Office (B1a) Nil 

Business (Research and Development - B1b, Light 

Industry - B1c, General Industrial - B2 and Storage and 

Distribution - B8) 

£5 

Municipal Leisure Nil 

                                                           
1
 The area covered by the Barking Town Centre Area Action Plan plus the area bounded by the District Line, 

Mayesbrook Park and the London Borough of Redbridge including the former University of East London site. 
2
 The area covered by the Barking Riverside Key Regeneration Area as shown on the adopted Local Development 

Framework Proposals Map 
3
 The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham excluding Barking Town Centre and Barking Riverside 

4 Supermarkets: Self-service stores selling mainly food, with a trading floorspace less than 2,500 square metres, often 

with car parking. 

Superstores: Self-service stores selling mainly food, or food and non-food goods, usually with more than 2,500 square 

metres trading floorspace, with supporting car parking. 

 

Page 179



Health 
Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of any 

publicly funded medical or health services except the use of 

premises attached to the residence of the consultant or 

practitioner 

Nil 

Education 
Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of education 
as a school or college under the Education Acts or as an 
institution of higher education 

 

Nil 

All other non-residential uses £10 

 
10. How will CIL rates be calculated? 
 
10.1 CIL will be levied in pounds per square metre of the net additional increase in floor 

space of any given development. The rate will be calculated based on Regulation 
40 - Calculation of chargeable amount, as set out within ‘The Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 and (Amendment) Regulations 2011’. 

 
10.2 The chargeable rate will be indexed linked.  The index referred to in the calculation 

formula is the national All-in Tender Price Index published from time to time by the 
Building Cost Information Service of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; 
and the figure for a given year is the figure for November of the preceding year. 

 
11. Mayor of London’s Crossrail CIL 
 
11.1 London Boroughs are also required to collect the CIL charged by the Mayor of 

London.  This was implemented 1st April 2012.  At present the Mayor proposes a 
CIL of £20 per sq.m in Barking and Dagenham. 

 
11.2 The following types of development are exempt: 
 

• Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of any medical or health 
services except the use of premises attached to the residence of the 
consultant or practitioner 

 

• Development used wholly or mainly for the provision of education as a school 
or college under the Education Acts or as an institution of higher education 

 
12. Commenting on the Draft Charging Schedule 
 
12.1 This consultation is the Council’s second step in preparing a CIL Charging 

Schedule.  
 
12.2 Any person may make representations about the draft charging schedule and that 

person must be heard before the examiner at the CIL examination if they have 
requested to do so. 

 
12.3 There are a number of ways in which you can make a representation on the Draft 

Charging Schedule: 
 

Email:  planningpolicy@lbbd.gov.uk 

Page 180



Telephone:  020 8724 5274 
Fax:   020 8227 3490 
Post:  Planning Policy Team, London Borough of Barking and Dagenham, 

Room 106, Barking Town Hall, 1 Town Square, Barking, IG11 7LU  
 

Your comments should arrive no later than ????? 2013. 
Please note that your comments will be made available as public documents. 

 
13. Next Steps 
 
13.1 When the consultation period has ended the Council will send the Draft Charging 

Schedule, the representations and the other documentation stipulated by the 
regulations to an examiner for an independent examination. It is anticipated that this 
will take place in June 2013. 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 L
e
v
y
 

P
re
lim

in
a
ry
 D
ra
ft
 C
h
a
rg
in
g
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 

 
 

Page 183



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e
 

N
o

. 
R

e
s

p
o

n
d

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e
 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 

1
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 
S

u
g
g
e

s
t 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 t
h

a
t 

g
ro

w
th

 
c
a

n
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
g
a

rd
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

t 
o
f 

C
IL

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
h

is
to

ri
c
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
, 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 
c
e

m
e
te

ri
e

s
. 

C
h

a
rg

in
g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 r

e
fe

rs
 

to
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
, 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 

c
e

m
e
te

ri
e

s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
is

ti
n

c
ti
o

n
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
p

le
a

s
e

 n
o

te
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 n

o
t 
o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e

v
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 c
o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d
 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
s
 i
ts

 R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

1
2

3
 l
is

t 
w

h
ic

h
 l
is

ts
 t

h
e

 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

y
p

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 

b
y
 C

IL
. 

  

N
o

n
e
 

2
 

B
re

tt
 G

ro
u

p
 

C
IL

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 m

in
e

ra
ls

 e
x
tr

a
c
ti
o

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 B
re

tt
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
is

h
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 t
h

is
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 

 

N
o

te
d
 

N
o

n
e
 

3
 

D
ro

n
 W

ri
g
h

t 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

ts
  

a
c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 F

ir
e

 
a

n
d

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

A
s
 f
ir
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

 v
it
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f
ro

m
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 l
e

v
y
. 

T
h

is
 

is
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 t
h

a
t 
fi
re

 s
ta

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
8
 

 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
y
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
b

a
s
is

 o
f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

N
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
fi
re

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

c
a

n
n
o

t 
a
ff
o

rd
 t
o

 p
a

y
 t

h
e

 m
o

d
e

s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
£

1
0
 p

e
r 

s
q
u
a

re
 m

e
tr

e
 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t.

 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 
n

o
te

 t
h
a

t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

lo
o

rs
p

a
c
e

 t
o

 b
e

 
d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d

/r
e

ta
in

e
d
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
d

is
c
o

u
n
te

d
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 

N
o

n
e
 

      N
o

n
e
 

Page 184



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

D
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

la
n

 
s
a

y
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 f
ir
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

in
 n

e
e
d

 o
f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 i
s
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 o
f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 S
ta

ti
o
n

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a

 P
F

I 
p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 n

in
e

 n
e

w
 f

ir
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
. 
W

it
h
 t

h
is

 i
n

 m
in

d
 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 
th

e
 a

re
a

 L
F

E
P

A
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 
e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
m

. 
It
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f
o

r 
L

F
E

P
A

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
. 

 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
 u

s
e

 f
o

r 
s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 
tw

e
lv

e
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 L

F
E

P
A

 i
f 

th
e

y
 p

la
n

 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 c

la
ri
fy

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 n

o
t 
o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e

v
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 L
F

E
P

A
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
n

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

s
 i
ts

 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 1

2
3

 l
is

t 
w

h
ic

h
 l
is

ts
 t

h
e

 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

y
p

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 

b
y
 C

IL
. 

4
 

 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
N

o
n

e
 

N
o

n
e
 

5
 

J
o

in
t 

N
a

tu
re

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
N

o
n

e
 

N
o

n
e
 

6
 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 s
e
e
m

s
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

w
is

h
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
a

n
y
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y
 r

a
te

. 
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 i
s
 p

le
a

s
e

d
 t
o

 s
e

e
 t
h

e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a
c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.5
.2

 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
n

e
w

 o
p

e
n

 

N
o

n
e
 

     N
o

n
e
 

N
o

n
e
 

     N
o

n
e
 

Page 185



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
a

s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 

G
re

e
n

 G
ri
d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
o

 b
e

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
. 

 

7
 

P
e

a
c
o

c
k
 a

n
d

 
S

m
it
h
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

M
o

rr
is

o
n

’s
 

S
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 o
b

je
c
t 

to
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 C

IL
 r

a
te

 o
f 

£
3

0
0

 s
q
m

 f
o

r 
la

rg
e

 c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 r
e

ta
il 

fl
o
o

rs
p

a
c
e

 (
>

1
5

0
0

 s
q
m

) 
 It

 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 b
y
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 G

V
A

 G
ri
m

le
y
, 

o
u

r 
c
lie

n
t 

is
 

g
ra

v
e

ly
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

u
g
g
e

s
te

d
 

‘a
b

n
o

rm
a

l’ 
c
h
a

rg
e

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 (
la

rg
e

) 
c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 r
e

ta
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
in

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
A

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 f
o
u

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f
u
n

d
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

E
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
, 

s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 
o

p
e

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 
s
c
a

p
e

g
o

a
t.
 

 M
o

rr
is

o
n

s
 r

a
is

e
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

ll 
lik

e
ly

 c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 n
e

w
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 
w

it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 b
ro

w
n
fi
e

ld
 s

it
e

 (
e

.g
. 

s
it
e

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
) 

c
a
n

 b
e

 
e

x
to

rt
io

n
a

te
. 

 T
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 c

h
a

rg
e

 w
ill

 p
u

t 
u
n

d
u
e

 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
y
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
b

a
s
is

 o
f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

P
a

g
e

 2
2

6
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

la
rg

e
 

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

il 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
(>

1
5

0
0

 s
q
m

) 
c
a
n

 a
ff
o

rd
 a

 l
e

v
y
 o

f 
u

p
 t
o

 £
1

5
0
0

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 
to

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 t
h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 c
o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

 a
n

d
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 h
a

s
 t
e

s
te

d
 

th
e

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
/s

u
p
e

rs
to

re
s
 i
n

 
g
e

n
e

ra
l.
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
e

rs
to

re
s
 

c
a

n
 a

ff
o

rd
 a

 c
h
a

rg
e

 o
f 
£

1
7
5

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

. 
 

 

Page 186



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ri
s
k
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
fo

o
d

s
to

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

  
a

n
 '
u
n

re
a

lis
ti
c
' f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
b

u
rd

e
n

. 
T

h
is

, 
in

 
tu

rn
, 

p
o

s
e

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

th
re

a
t 

to
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
e

w
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 j
o
b

 
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h
, 

e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n

 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
, 

a
t 
a

 t
im

e
 o

f 
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

  F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 n
o

te
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 £

3
0

0
/s

q
 m

 l
e

v
y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

il 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

is
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
o

s
e

 
b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

  
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
. 
B

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 o

f 
L
e

w
is

h
a

m
, 

M
e

rt
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

ro
y
d

o
n

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
  

ra
te

s
 o

f 
£

8
0

/s
q
 m

, 
£
1

0
0

/s
q
 m

 a
n

d
 

£
1

2
0

/s
q
 m

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

h
ic

h
, 

o
n

 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

, 
a

re
 a

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 
th

e
  

c
h

a
rg

e
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 b

y
 L

B
 B

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

. 
 

8
 

 
 

S
a

v
ill

s
 a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
S

a
n

o
fi
 

E
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

la
n

k
e
t 

c
h
a

rg
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 

£
3

0
0

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

 f
o

r 
‘la

rg
e

 c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 r
e
ta

il’
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

S
a

n
o
fi
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
c
e
p

ts
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
e

rm
it
te

d
 S

a
n
o
fi
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

lia
b

le
 f
o

r 
M

a
y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 

C
IL

 a
s
 i
t 

w
a

s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 1

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
e

it
h

e
r 

is
 

it
 l
ia

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 C

IL
. 

 

 

Page 187



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

re
s
e

rv
e

d
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 l
ia

b
le

 t
o

 
c
h

a
rg

e
 b

u
t 
a

re
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 a

b
o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 a
n

y
 f

re
s
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

S
a
n

o
fi
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
a

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
th

is
 l
e

v
e

l 
c
o

u
ld

 
u

n
d
e

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 

a
lm

o
s
t 
c
e

rt
a

in
ly

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

it
 b

e
in

g
 b

u
ilt

. 
T

h
e

 C
h

a
rg

in
g
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
s
it
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
fa

c
to

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

  •
 

h
ig

h
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti
o
n

 c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 
w

it
h

 a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
 

 •
 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

ta
il 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
u

s
e

s
 

s
u

b
s
id

is
e

s
 l
e

s
s
 v

a
lu

a
b

le
 u

s
e

s
 o

n
 a

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 j
o

b
 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
c
a

re
  

  T
h
e

 C
h

a
rg

in
g
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t
a

k
e

 
th

e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 
a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
a

 l
o

w
e

r,
 i
f 

n
o

t 
‘n

il’
, 

ra
te

. 
 

 T
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
h

a
rg

e
 t

a
k
e

s
 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
v
a

ri
a

b
le

 
ra

te
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
p
p

ly
 d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 
O

u
r 

s
it
e

 f
a

lls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

‘R
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’ 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 

T
h
e

re
fo

re
 S

a
n

o
fi
’s

 c
o
n
c
e

rn
s
 a

re
 

o
n

ly
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 a

n
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 n

e
w

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

 N
o

tw
it
h

s
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

it
e

 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
s
 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o
f 

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 f
o

r 
a

 s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,
 n

o
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

 e
n

ti
re

ly
 n

e
w

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 f
o

r 
a

 s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t 

c
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
a
ff
o

rd
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
y
 b

e
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
. 

 A
ll 

th
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

u
s
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

it
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 p

a
y
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 £
5

 -
 £

1
0

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 
m

e
tr

e
 i
n

 c
o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
 t
o
 t

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 c
h
a

rg
e

 o
f 
£

2
0

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 u

n
re

a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 
a

g
a

in
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

v
ia

b
le

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 s

h
o

w
s
 

th
a

t 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

tr
u
e
 f
o

r 
n

o
n

-
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

s
. 

 

Page 188



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

lo
w

e
s
t 

ra
te

. 
W

e
 c

a
n

 n
o
t 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 w

h
y
 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 
fo

r 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
u

s
e

s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
w

e
 n

o
te

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
B

1
a
 a

n
d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 u
s
e

s
 

is
 N

il 
a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 o

u
r 

v
ie

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

a
te

s
 f
o

r 
re

ta
il 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

n
o

n
-r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 n
il 

in
 c

e
rt

a
in

 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u

t 
a
b

o
v
e

. 
 

 U
n

le
s
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
rg

in
g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 t

h
is

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 
u

n
v
ia

b
le

. 
 

9
 

G
e

ra
ld

 E
v
e

 a
c
ti
n

g
 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
F

re
s
h

 
W

h
a
rf

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
 

lim
it
e

d
 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 L
B

B
D

 C
IL

 i
s
 s

e
t 

m
u

s
t 
h

a
v
e

 c
a

re
fu

l 
re

g
a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

’s
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
c
o

n
te

x
t.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
t 

th
e

 m
o
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 i
n

 a
 

w
e

a
k
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
. 

If
 t
h

e
 C

IL
 i
s
 s

e
t 
a

t 
to

o
 

h
ig

h
 a

 l
e

v
e

l 
it
 w

ill
 p

u
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 

a
n

 a
lr
e
a

d
y
 w

e
a

k
e

n
e

d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 s

ti
fl
e

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t.
 

        

T
a
b

le
s
 3

1
 a

n
d

 3
2

 o
f 

th
e

 E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

V
ia

b
ili

ty
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
m

o
d
e

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a
s
is

 o
f 

0
%

 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o

w
s
 

th
a

t 
a

 L
B

B
D

 C
IL

 (
M

a
y
o

ra
l 
C

IL
 i
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 a

 c
o

s
t)

 v
a

ry
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
£

1
2
2

-1
5

4
 p

e
r 

s
q
 m

 c
a
n

 b
e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
o

n
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
 o

f 
2
5

0
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d

 
b

e
lo

w
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
fo

r 
a

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
1

0
0
0

 u
n

it
s
 C

IL
 i
s
 m

o
re

 m
a

rg
in

a
l 

d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

x
tr

a
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 
b

u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 

C
o

d
e

 L
e

v
e

l 
5

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
p

o
lic

y
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d

 C
o

d
e

 
L

e
v
e

l 
5

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

iz
e

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 

 

Page 189



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

  It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
th

e
 

fi
n
a

l 
ra

te
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h
e

 P
D

C
S

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

b
y
 G

V
A

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
L

e
ft

le
y
 a

n
d

 
F

a
ir
c
ro

s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
£

7
0

 s
q
m

. 
N

o
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 G

V
A

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

m
a

d
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
0

%
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

v
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

P
D

C
S

, 
o

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 o
r 

in
d

e
e

d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 

s
im

p
ly

 t
h

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

te
s
 “

w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t”

. 
 G

V
A

 h
a

v
e

 u
s
e
d

 a
 n

o
n

-s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
m

o
d

e
l.
 W

e
 a

s
s
u

m
e
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 

a
 b

e
s
p

o
k
e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
a
s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
 o

r 
s
o
ft

w
a

re
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
. 
W

e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
a

re
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 m

o
d
e

ls
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ra
is

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 A

rg
u

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r,

 t
h
e

 G
L

A
 

T
h

re
e

 D
ra

g
o

n
s
 T

o
o

lk
it
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

C
A

 
m

o
d
e

l 
in

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
to

 b
e

s
p
o

k
e

 m
o
d

e
ls

 
s
o

m
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

d
. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
s
e
 a

d
o

p
t 
to

 v
a

ry
in

g
 d

e
g
re

e
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
, 

th
e

 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
y
 d

o
e

s
 v

a
ry

 i
n

 s
o

m
e
 

c
a

s
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 t
o

 s
m

a
lle

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 s

im
ila

r 
C

IL
 l
e

v
e

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
in

g
 a

 C
IL

 o
f 

£
7

0
 s

o
 t
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
t 
th

e
 m

a
rg

in
s
 o

f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 
0

%
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
. 

         T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g
y
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 i
n

 
C

h
a

p
te

r 
2

 o
f 
th

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
V

ia
b

ili
ty

 R
e

p
o

rt
. 

A
 m

a
rk

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 u

s
e

 v
a

lu
e

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
p
p

lie
d

. 
         

Page 190



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

o
b

je
c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 a

d
v
o

c
a

ti
n

g
 a

 b
e

s
p

o
k
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 l
im

it
a

ti
o
n

 
o
f 

th
e

 G
L

A
 T

o
o

lk
it
, 

b
u

t 
th

is
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t
o

 
e

x
a

m
in

e
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
y
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

 
v
a

lu
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 N
e
t 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
L
a

n
d

 V
a

lu
e

 
o

n
c
e

 a
ll 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 t
a

k
e
n

 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

ro
s
s
 

c
h

e
c
k
e
d

 w
it
h

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a
rk

 l
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

re
a
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

is
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
fo

rm
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 d

ra
ft
 

R
IC

S
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 N
o

te
 o

n
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 i
n

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
a

t 
th

e
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 l
a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
6

2
5
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
a

c
re

 f
o

r 
B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
la

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 i
s
 l
o

w
 t

o
 o

u
r 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 

       P
a

ra
g
ra

p
h

 2
.1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

V
ia

b
ili

ty
 R

e
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 l
a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

p
re

v
a

ili
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
e

s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 s
o
u

rc
e

d
 f
ro

m
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
it
u
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

o
b

o
ra

te
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 

d
a

ta
, 

G
V

A
’s

 o
w

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 T

e
a
m

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

tr
a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
. 

1
0
 

Ic
e

n
i 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g
 r

e
g
im

e
 i
s
 a

 o
n

e
 s

iz
e

 f
it
s
 a

ll 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 n

o
 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 

re
g
im

e
. 

It
 m

u
s
t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 a
n

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
re

a
lit

ie
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
  
W

it
h

 r
e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 R

e
lie

f 
fo

r 
E

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
  

th
e

 P
D

C
S

 
s
ta

te
s
 

U
n

lik
e

 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 t
h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 R

e
lie

f 
fo

r 
E

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 

S
o

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 b

e
in

g
 f
le

x
ib

le
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 c
la

ri
fy

 
th

a
t 

in
 e

x
e

rc
is

in
g
 t

h
is

 r
e

lie
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 

 

Page 191



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

 “K
th

e
 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
a

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 

u
n

v
ia

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 a
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
 a

n
 ‘
e

x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

’ 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

IL
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
”.

 
 S

u
c
h

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 
o

v
e

rl
y
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

ry
 t

o
 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
e

 m
in

is
te

ri
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
ti
tl
e

 
“P

la
n

n
in

g
 f
o

r 
G

ro
w

th
” 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

L
G

 C
IL

 
s
u

m
m

a
ry

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t.
 

 T
h
e

 P
D

C
S

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

o
ff
e

r 
a

n
y
 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 
c
h

a
rg

in
g
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 

th
a

t 
a

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

n
v
ia

b
le

 a
s
 

a
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

C
IL

. 
A

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n

 
o

n
e

ro
u

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

rl
y
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 C
IL

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 u
n

d
e

rm
in

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
h
o

rt
 t
e

rm
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

w
id

e
r 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 T

h
e

 P
D

C
S

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 w
h

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 o

f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 w

o
u

ld
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 u

n
d
u

e
 d

e
la

y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

w
id

e
r 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
im

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
 I

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
a

t 
in

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1
0

 a
s
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 
w

h
e

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 r

e
lie

f 
c
a

n
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 d

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
rg

in
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

p
t 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
la

n
d

 a
s
 a

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
‘in

 
k
in

d
’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

r 
a
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 

C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t,
 b

u
t 
o

n
ly

 i
f 
th

is
 i
s
 

d
o

n
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

s
in

g
 

th
e

 l
a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
, 

o
r 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f,

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
rg

in
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

re
a

. 
  T

h
e

 l
e

v
y
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
b

a
s
is

 o
f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 

re
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 s

e
t 
th

e
 l
e

v
y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 N
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 

th
a

t 
la

rg
e

 c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

il 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 (
>

1
5

0
0
 s

q
m

) 
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

 B
a

rk
in

g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
c
a

n
n
o

t 
a
ff
o

rd
 t
o

 p
a

y
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

lt
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
ta

il 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
, 

a
n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

Page 192



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

c
e

rt
a

in
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
o

n
-s

it
e

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 

–
 i
f 

n
o

t 
a
 g

re
a

te
r 

–
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 It

 i
s
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 d
is

p
a

ri
ty

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 
c
h
a

rg
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
e

rt
a

in
 

u
s
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
o

th
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

la
te

. 
 A

s
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 L
D

F
 t

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 r
e

ta
il 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
ill

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 b

e
 u

p
o
n

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
fu

lf
ill

in
g
 w

id
e

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 k

e
y
 s

it
e

s
. 

E
&

A
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 P

D
C

S
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

il 
fl
o
o
rs

p
a

c
e

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 c
h

a
rg

in
g
 r

e
g
im

e
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n
 

c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
e
ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
v
a

lu
e

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 r
e

n
d

e
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

u
n

v
ia

b
le

 a
n
d

 s
ti
fl
e
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

re
a

lis
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n

 a
d
o

p
te

d
 p

o
lic

y
.  

 T
h
e

 P
D

S
C

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 b
y
 a

d
o

p
ti
n

g
 

a
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

e
g
im

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

e
q
u

a
ti
n

g
 t

o
 2

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
h

a
rg

e
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p
a

ra
b

le
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

s
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
te

s
ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
s
 t

o
 c

h
a

rg
e

 
£

1
7
5

 p
e

r 
s
q
u
a

re
 m

e
tr

e
 f
o

r 
s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
e

rs
to

re
s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

iz
e

. 
 P

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 G
e

ra
ld

 
E

v
e

 f
o

r 
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 
le

v
y
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

 B
a

rk
in

g
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
. 

    

Page 193



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

T
C

A
A

P
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

. 
T

h
is

 
d

is
c
o

u
n
te

d
 r

a
te

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 r

e
ta

il 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
fl
o

o
rs

p
a

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

c
h

 a
 d

is
c
o

u
n

te
d

 r
a

te
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
th

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
lle

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

m
a

k
in

g
 i
t 
m

o
re

 n
o

 l
e

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

c
h
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

ill
 m

a
te

ri
a

lis
e

 a
n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 
in

c
e

n
ti
v
is

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 m

o
re

 e
x
p

e
n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 

s
it
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
e

a
s
ie

r 
o
p

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 t

h
e

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

. 
 H

a
v
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 P
D

C
S

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
v
e

ry
 r

e
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 l
a

rg
e

 r
e

ta
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

in
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 i
s
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

tu
rn

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u
c
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
 

im
p

a
c
ti
n

g
 u

p
o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
w

id
e

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 g

o
a

ls
. 

 C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
, 

it
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
id

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 h
a

s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
to

 s
ti
fl
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 k
e

y
 s

it
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

Page 194



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

s
h

o
rt

 t
o
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
. 

 In
 r

e
s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e
 i
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 c
h
a

rg
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
: 

 

•
 

T
h
e

 r
e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 3
.1

 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
c
h
a

rg
e

s
 

•
 

L
o

w
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

n
 l
a

rg
e

 
re

ta
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 s
p

re
a
d

in
g
 

c
o

s
ts

 m
o

re
 e

v
e

n
ly

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 u

s
e

 
c
la

s
s
e

s
; 

a
n

d
, 

•
 

L
o

w
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

n
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
re

a
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

1
1
 

C
G

M
S

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 

o
f 

th
e

 M
a

y
o

r’
s
 

O
ff

ic
e

 f
o

r 
P

o
lic

in
g
 

a
n

d
 C

ri
m

e
  

(M
o

P
C

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
a
n

 
P

o
lic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
(M

P
S

) 

T
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
o

lic
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
c
ru

c
ia

l 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 s

a
fe

 p
la

c
e

s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

re
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
. 

T
h

e
 M

o
P

C
 a

n
d

 M
P

S
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
v
it
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

u
c
h

 
a

s
 p

o
lic

in
g
 c

o
m

e
s
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
a
fe

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 It

 i
s
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o

 n
o

t 
in

te
n
d

 t
o
 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
y
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
b

a
s
is

 o
f 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 

N
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
p
o

lic
e

 
s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
a
ff
o

rd
 t
o

 p
a

y
 t

h
e

 
m

o
d
e

s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
£

1
0

 p
e

r 
s
q
u

a
re

 
m

e
tr

e
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t.

 I
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a

t 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 

M
a

y
o

r 
o

f 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
s
u

p
e

rv
is

in
g
 t

h
e

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
a

n
 

P
o

lic
e

 t
h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 
L

o
n

d
o
n

’s
 C

IL
 

d
o

e
s
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 n

e
w

 p
o

lic
in

g
 

fl
o
o

rs
p

a
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

IL
 i
s
 £

2
0

 p
e
r 

s
q
u

a
re

 
m

e
tr

e
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

IL
 

 

Page 195



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

im
p

o
s
e

 a
 c

h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 s
m

a
ll 

re
ta

il,
 

o
ff

ic
e

s
, 

le
is

u
re

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 
fl
o
o

rs
p

a
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

n
e

w
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

fl
o
o

rs
p

a
c
e

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

a
t 
p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
a
n

 P
o

lic
e
. 

 B
y
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 a
 C

IL
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t,
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 u

s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

in
g
 a

re
 

p
re

ju
d

ic
e
d

 i
n

 b
e

in
g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p

o
lic

in
g
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

im
p

a
c
t 
u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
ry

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

P
P

F
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

It
 i
s
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 
C

IL
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 p
o

lic
in

g
 f

lo
o

rs
p
a

c
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t,
 i
n

 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 (

i.
e

. 
n

e
w

 p
o

lic
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
) 

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 
a

tt
ra

c
t 
a

 C
IL

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
, 

th
e

 M
P

S
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

o
u

ld
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 b

e
 d

o
u

b
le

-c
o

u
n

te
d

. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 

th
e

 M
O

P
C

/M
P

S
 s

tr
o
n

g
ly

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 d

ra
ft
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

a
n

 e
x
e

m
p

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 C

IL
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

u
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

in
g
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
to

 s
m

a
ll 

re
ta

il,
 o

ff
ic

e
s
, 
le

is
u

re
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 u

s
e

s
. 

w
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
t 
3
3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 p
o

lic
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

 

Page 196



ASSEMBLY 
 

25 February 2013 
 

Title:  MANAGEMENT OF COMPLAINTS RELATING TO COUNCILLORS – 
Standards Regime  

Report of:  The Monitoring Officer  
 

Open 
 

For Information 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Key Decision: No 

Report Author: Paul Feild 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 227 5198 
E-mail: paul.feild@bdtlegal.gov.uk 
 

Accountable Divisional Director: Fiona Taylor, Monitoring Officer and Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Accountable Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
On 1 July 2012 the Assembly adopted, as required by the Localism Act 2011, a new 
Standards local Code of Conduct and Complaint Procedure. The new Code differs from 
the former statutory Code in that the Monitoring Officer now conducts an initial assessment 
of complaints about Members against approved criteria, may consult with the new 
Independent Person and tries to resolve matters informally if possible or appropriate. If the 
complaint requires further investigation / or referral to the Standards Committee there may 
still be a hearing of a complaint before a Sub-Committee 
 
This report sets out a proposed set of management rules to facilitate early resolution of the 
requirement to discharge the duty to investigate and conclude complaints made against 
Members, particularly in instances where the complaints made are incomplete or require 
further information. These management rules will enable the Monitoring Officer to request 
persons who make complaints to provide further details of their complaints including 
necessary evidence to make a decision; furthermore there are occasions where 
complaints are open-ended and dilatory and they require a complainant to respond in a 
reasonable time period.  These rules were presented to the Standards Committee on 17 
January 2013 for consultation and have been approved for presentation to the Assembly  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to approve the Complaints Management Rules attached at 
Appendix A to this report and their incorporation into the Constitution in Part E – the Code 
of Conduct for Councillors. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
To ensure that complaints are dealt with in a fair and timely process. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 12

Page 197



1.   Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 The new Code differs from the former statutory Code in that the Monitoring Officer 

now conducts an initial assessment of complaints about Members against approved 
criteria and may consult with the new Independent Person to try to resolve matters 
informally if appropriate.  If the complaint requires further investigation / or referral 
to the Standards Committee there may still be a hearing of a complaint before a 
Sub-Committee.  The legislation expects the Council to develop its own local 
process for dealing with complaints.  To be effective this requires the establishment 
of our own rules about managing the process. 

. 
1.2 All courts and tribunals have their own rules about timescales, rules of evidence 

and management of cases; to do otherwise leads to the injustice of a complainant 
effectively determining the pace of a complaint and ongoing uncertainty. 

 
1.3 During the first few months the need for proactive management has become 

apparent as a significant proportion of complaints concluded appeared to be 
motivated by complainants who, having utilised mechanisms for complaints and 
reviews, have then taken up complaints against Councillors as another option. The 
Secretary of State in January this year has expressed a concern that resources are 
not used to indulge vexatious complainants.  These rules will ensure that only well-
founded complaints are thoroughly investigated and those without merit are 
determined promptly. 

 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
2.1 This report proposes that a formal set of case management rules is adopted by the 

Council.  They are set out at Appendix A. 
 
2.2 The rules explained: 

 

2.2.1 The rules require a uniform presentation of complaints, that is to say all complaints 
against Members must take the form of a written complaint in the prescribed form 
unless there are special circumstances.  They are intended to provide certainty and 
while allowing clarification, ensure the complainant cannot change the facts or 
issues as the matter progresses, thus protracting the process.  This ensures that if 
the complaint is without foundation then it can be discharged promptly. 

 
2.2.2 Where the complaint is unclear in terms of particulars such that there is no identified 

specific breach of the Members' Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer can 
require the complainant to provide further information for clarification including: 
 

• What the breach is that is alleged 

• When it happened 

• Where it happened 

• Names and contact details of witnesses and 

• To attach evidence relevant to the complaint to support the allegation 
 

2.2.3 As observed, it is a key requirement that matters are dealt with effectively so that 
the Monitoring Officer can set a timescale for responses to requests for further 
information and if that is not forthcoming, make a decision based on what is 
available. 

Page 198



 
2.2.4 The rules take account of the regrettable fact that a significant proportion of 

complaints against Members are for mischievous reasons or are frivolous or 
vexatious in nature and in accordance with localism, may be dismissed at an early 
stage. 

 
2.2.5 Finally the rules set clarity about communication and data circulation so if a matter 

proceeds to investigation the Monitoring Officer may circulate copies of the 
complaint to whoever they consider necessary, including the Member and their 
representative(s) and outside agencies rather than let the complainant dictate the 
circulation. 

 
3. Options Appraisal 
 

• Do nothing 
 This is contrary to good practice as statutory bodies are rightly expected to 

efficiently manage their processes.  It is unfair on both the Member and complainant 
for matters to drag indefinitely and a waste of both time and scarce resources. 

  

• Do nothing just yet 
 We could adopt a wait and see approach; however early information is that follow 

up requests are having to be made to the complainants on a repetitive basis due to 
vagueness and incoherence of the initial complainant. This is unacceptable. 

 

• Take action 
 We consider this is the right approach; a pro-active case management is a hallmark 

of a well administered organisation. 
 
4. Consultation 
 Standards Committee 
 
5. Financial Implications - N/A 
 
6. Legal Implications 
 

Implications completed by: Paul Feild, Senior Governance Lawyer 
 

Telephone and email: 020 8227 3133     Paul.Feild@bdtlegal.org.uk 
 
6.1 The Localism Act 2011 sets the task to a Local Authority of developing a local 

management of complaints and the proposals set out in this report are devised to 
contribute to this aim. 

 
6.2 The Complaints Management Rules will contribute to a timely and fairer process 

which is in the interests of justice for all concerned. 
 
7. Other Implications N/A 
 
List of Appendices –  
Appendix A Management of Complaints rules relating to Councillors (2013) 

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
Management of Complaints relating to Councillors (2013) 

 
1. All complaints against Members must take the form of a written complaint in the 

prescribed form unless special circumstances exist as determined by the Monitoring 
Officer whose decision is final. 

 
2. Where the complaint is unclear in terms of particulars such that there is no specific 

breach of the Members' Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall invite the 
complainant to clarify: 

 

• What the breach is that is alleged 

• When it happened 

• Where it happened 

• Names and contact details of witnesses, and 

• To attach evidence relevant to the complaint to support the allegation. 
 

3. The Monitoring Officer may set a time for a response to rule 2 not less than 21 
days. 

 
4. The Monitoring Officer will only act where there is sufficient evidence in their opinion 

to do so. 
 
5. Following a period for clarification, the Monitoring Officer may proceed with the 

complaint and make a determination as to whether the complaint merits a formal 
investigation and if not, the matter is dismissed.  The Monitoring Officer, when 
making a determination, may consult with the Council's Independent Person.  

 
6. The Monitoring Officer may dismiss a complaint without resort to further 

investigation if they are of the opinion that the complaint is (any one of the following 
or more): 

 
a. lacking in evidence 
b. fails to identify any breach 
c. politically motivated  
d. vexatious  
e. repetitive 
f. defamatory  
g. has no reasonable prospect of success 
h. about a Council service.  Such a complaint will be referred to the relevant 

service area in accordance with the Council's complaints policy. 
 

7. If a matter proceeds to investigation the Monitoring Officer may circulate copies of 
the complaint form to whoever they consider necessary, including the Member and 
their representative(s) and outside agencies. 

 
8. During the investigation the Monitoring Officer may require the complainant to 

furnish further details or co-operate in terms of disclosure of evidence.  If the 
complainant fails to co-operate in a timely manner or do not make themselves 
available, the Monitoring Officer may continue their investigation in the absence of 
the complainant's co-operation, including making a determination to dismiss the 
complaint. 

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meetings held on 5 December 2012 and 14 January 2013
	Minutes , 14/01/2013 Assembly

	5 Barking & Dagenham Youth Forum Annual Report 2011/12
	6 Budget Framework 2013/14
	Appendix A  Revenue Budget 2013-14
	Appendix B  MTFS 2013-14 to 2014-15
	Appendix C  The Statutory Budget Determination
	Appendix D  Calculation of the Council Tax Requirement
	Appendix E  The Councils Draft 4 Year Capital Programme
	Appendix F Budget consultation responses

	8 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2013/14
	Treasury Management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1
	Treasury Management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1A Interest Rates
	Treasury management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1B Prudential Indicators
	Treasury management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1C MRP
	Treasury Management 2013-14 - Appendix 1D Annual Investment Strategy
	Treasury Management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1E Country Limit
	Treasury management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1F Scheme of Delegation
	Treasury Management 2013-14 - APPENDIX 1G Economic Update

	9 Pay Policy Statement 2013/14
	Pay Policy Statement - 2013-14 - Appendix A

	10 Constitutional Arrangements for the Health and Wellbeing Board
	Appendix A - Constitution Part B Article
	Appendix B Constitution Part C

	11 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule
	App 1 Charging Schedule
	App  2 PCS responses

	12 Management of Complaints relating to Councillors
	APPENDIX A - Management Rules


